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RehabLe. Productive. SustainabLe. 

Every hour of every day, Hycro One works 

to ensure Ontario has a safe, relia3Le and 

cost-effective eLectricity system. It takes 

time to build a system Like ours. We make 

prucent anc LogicaL investments anc we 

buiLc our system to Last .  

Hydro Ono Inc. 
is a faidina company with 

subsidiaries thot operde in the 

business areas oFeleork-hy 
rnmirsmissicc. arid distribulion 

and 14e:tiers services .  

Hydro Ono Networks Inc. 
Peprimiimes fiva ramify of our 

business. which is legulaseid by 

the Orriatio Energy Board. II is 

involved In the panning. consire/lan 

operalion arid maintenance of our 

ironsmissico and disci button networks .  

Hydro Oro Brampton 
Notwasics 
DWribuies electricity le) one d the 

lasieshgrowing urban is2sirres in 

Canada, lust 30 kiiorrildres outside 

of Tolonio. 

Hydra Ono Romani 
CornrolimilIes 
°mates and maimoins the 

generolicin and dissibulian assos 

used to supply 4earIcIty io 21 

ramie cornmuntiles aacss northern 

Ontario are nal acnnecied so the 

prcuhrice's NI•tricily Iranarri,ssoCri grid 

Hydro Ono Telecom Inc. 
Mark 41 7Ur hbreaptic capacity 

so business crmornors. This business 

rep-mews less Ilan 1 ply oar!' oF our 

scam assets 
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Capital Expenditures 
	

Total Assets 	 Net Income 
(Cone.thr:n drillars rn mi triorr t-,) 

dil:rfcr•; i!r 

	

1,3661,370 
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399 
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0 Transmission DDistribution 	■ Other 

Year ended December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 2010 2009 $ Change % Change 

Revenues 5,124 4,744 380 8 

Purchased power 2,474 2,326 I 48 6 

Operating costs 1,661 1,594 67 4 

Net income 591 470 121 26 

Net cash from operations 1,164 892 272 30 

Average Ontario 60-minute peak demand (MW)1  21,572 20,798 774 4 

Distribution — units distributed to customers (TVVh) 1  29.1 28.9 0.2 1 

' System reklied statistics include preliminary figures for December. 
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LE I 	I ER FROM 
1HE 

Our electricity wstem continued to perform reliably, safely and 

effectively this p st year, at a time of investing heavily to maintain 

and upgrade aging infrastructure and to accommodate the various 

demands of the green Energy Act and of the Pr 3virices Long•Term 

Energy Plan to encourage renewable energy generation. 

Hydro One's core mandate is the safe, reliable and cosh 

effective transmission and distribution of electricity to Ontario 

homes and businesses. In carrying out that mandate, Hydro 

One has a second mandate to operate as a commercial 

enterprise .  

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the 

management of the business and affairs of Hydro One and, 

as such, for overseeing the implementation of both mandates. 

In doing so, the Board has a general fiduciary responsibility 

and duty of care b act in the best interest of Hydro One. 

The Board has a more specific responsibility to act pursuant 

to the terms of our existing Memorandum of Agreement with 

the Province of Ontario — respecting mandate, governance, 

responsibilities, performance expectations and executive 

compensation. 

I believe the Board performed very well in 2010 in 

accordance with such oversight responsibilities. 

Our electricity system continued b perform reliably, safely 

and effectively this past year, at a time of investing heavily 

to maintain and upgrade aging infrastructure and to 

accommodate the various demands of the Green Energy Act 

and of the Province's Long•Term Energy Plan to encourage 

renewable energy generation. 

These investments have had significant rate ramifications. The 

Board is very aware of, and sensitive to, the impact of rate 

increases on our customers, and we will continue to seek 

productivity improvements to mitigate the costs of these heavy 

investments .  

At the same time, we delivered increased value to our 

shareholder. We maintained our long-term -A" credit rating, 

which enabled us to continue to borrow on advantageous 

terms, thus mitigating the costs of our work plan. 

A major oversight tool for the Board is the Corporate 

Scorecard, which measures management's performance in 

accordance with and against the approved Strategic Plan 

and annual Business Plan. I am pleased to report that, for 

2010, the goals of the Corporate Scorecard were met on 

balance. While management compensation was frozen 

pursuant to the ResIrctint Aci, appropriate short-term incentive 

compensation was paid to management in accordance with 

our existing plan as permitted by the Restraint Ad. 

The Board approved a significant senior management 

reorganization, which we believe will enhance the 

performance of the organization. We also approved the 

creation of a new pension-investment function and the 

creation of a new position of Chief Investment and Pension 

Officer, which should improve performance of the pension 

fund over the longer term .  

I want to thank all our employees, and my colleagues on the 

Board of Directors, for their commitment to Hydro One and its 

various stakeholders. 

James Arnett 

Chair of the Board of DiredOrs 

Hydro One Inc. 

2 	HYDRO ONE ANNUAL REI'ORt 2010 



LE I 	I ER FROM 

It is critical it we maintain an effective balance between 
lee,-1, and the urgent need to sustain our 

critical trant, 	nd distribution assets and connect new 

sources of renewable energy. 

 

2010 was a year of solid progress on many fronts. We 

are confident in our ability to achieve our longer-term 

mission and vision, which will enable us to continue serving 

our customers safely, reliably and cost-effectively.  

We are investing in Ontario's energy future. Our focus is 

on prudently maintaining and expanding our distribution 

and transmission systems while moving b adopt the 

technologies that will improve our value to our customers and 

our shareholder. It is critical that we maintain an effective 

bdance between our customers' needs and the urgent need 

to sustain our critical transmission and distribution assets and 

connect new sources of renewable energy. 

We know that meeting the expectations of the people of 

Ontario is a demanding task as our sector goes through a 

dynamic period of growth and change. We are listening to 

our customers and renewing our electricity system Fo enable 

clean and renewable sources of electricity. As we make 

prudent and efficient investments in Ontario's electricity grid, 

I am confident that Hydro One will continue to deliver on our 

promise of value in many different ways in the years ahead.  

We will continue to operate a safe and reliable system and 

look for increased efficiencies while building the system of 

tomorrow. Our customers deserve value for the price of the 

services they pay for and we remain committed b providing 

FhOfvcitue.dnd to improving our customers' satisfaction 

itfi HOri) Onee.We uvifl also continue to improve the 

stainability of: our operations and enhance our customers' 

ability tiP. manage, their eriergyposs and efficiency. 

As always, our focus must be on the safety of our employees. 

Our Journey to Zero program will enable us to fulfill our 

commitment to our co-workers and their families to be safe in 

our work. We must be relentless in our pursuit of this goal. 

I'd like to thank the employees of Hydro One for their 

dedication and hard work as the industry continues to 

change and transform. Together, we are industry leaders in 

developing the Smart Grid, we are facilitators in connecting 

renewable energy and we are a financially responsible 

Company providing value to our customers and the Province 

of Ontario. 

Laura Formusa 

President and CEO, Hydro One inc. 
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Improvements to system reliability 
Improving the reliability of Ontario's electricity system mews knowing 

when and where to make upgrades and repairs. By using analytical 

information like outage occurrences and inspection results, we ensure that 

the most important upgrades are done first .  

In 2010, we invested $1 .57 billion in capital expenditures to improve 

system reliability and performance, address an aging power system, 

facilitate the connection of new generation and improve service to our 

customers. 

Long-term initiatives like the 500-kV transmission line unbundling 

project from Cherrywood TS to Claireville TS provide operational 

and maintenance flexibility. 

Work on the Bruce b Milton Transmission Reinforcement Project moved 

ahead on schedule with tower construction underway on segments of 

the line where approvals have been obtained and land rights have been 

acquired. The project is expected to be in service by late 20 I 2 and 

will deliver approximately 3,200 MW of new, renewable and nuclear 

power from the Huron-Grey-Bruce area .  

Smart meter, smart grid 
Ontario's electricity grid is getting smarter. We completed the installation 

of more than I .3 million smart meters of which more than 1. I million 

are enabled to support Time-of-Use pricing. This is one of the largest 

deployments of smart meters undertaken by any utility in North America. 

We converted more than 553,000 customers to Time-of-Use pricing, 

exceeding the Ontario Energy Board's monthly cumulative 

Time-of-Use target. 
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$1.57 billion 
invested in 
improving our 

system. 

1.3 million 
smart meters 

instaLLed across 

the Province. 



INVESTING IN INFRASTRUCTURE 

 

HYDRO ONE CONTINUES TO MAINTAIN 
AND EXPAND OUR DISTRIBUTION AND 
TRANSMISSION SYSTEMS WHILE Ef 
THE RELIABLE DELIVERY OF POWER TO 
THE PROVINCE OF ONTARIO AND OUR 
CUSTOMERS. 

 

The 1.....org-Terrri Energy PL•n is pointing our indust.ry in an 
exciting new,  direction. it maps out ;:in integrated approz-3ch to 
the deveLopment of C..x.tarios etectricity system 	erilDLes 

b Le techno gy, 

On the cutting edge of innovation 
Innovation is playing a key role in Ihe future of Ontario's electricity 

system. Hydro One has partnered with Ryerson University to establish the 

Centre for Urban Energy, which will research innovative and practical 

solutions to urban energy issues. This partnership will help Hydro One 

identify solutions for integrating new technologies and develop the future 

leaders of the energy sector.  

Hydro One has also partnered with the University of Western Ontario 

and the University of Waterloo to promote the development of innovative 

electrical engineering solutions to connect clean and renewable energy.  

These partnerships also include funding student scholarships and awards .  

We are there when our customers need us 
In 20 I 0, high winds, snow, forest fires and tornadoes caused 

numerous outages across the Province. But customers can count on 

our highly-trained staff to respond rapidly and communities can depend 

on our mobile response efforts, which see crews from unaffected areas 

arriving to help get the power back on quickly. For example, when 

Chapleau lost power due to a forest fire, Hydro One crews travelled 

from across Ontario Id rebuild I 5 single and twin pole structures as soon 

as the fire was under control. 
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Strong financial performance 
Total revenues for 2010 were $5,124 million, an increase of 

$380 million from 2009. Transmission revenues of $1,307 million 

and distribution revenues of $3,754 million reflected various rate 

increases in support of necessary work program requirements and the 

impact of higher temperatures experienced this summer. 

We also maintained an "A" credit rating, which means the Company 

is able to access the long-term debt markets at a reasonable cost. This 

is critical to completing our work programs cost-effectively. During Ihe 

year, we successfully issued $1 .5 billion of debt financing through our 

Medium-Term Note Program. 
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VALUING EVERY DOLLAR 

Cost-cutting measures 
As Ontario's largest electricity transmission and distribution company, 

Hydro One must find ways to balance sustainment of assets and 

affordability of electricity. Employees across the Company are helping 

to find ways to reduce costs and improve productivity.  

Some areas which Hydro One has improved productivity and provided 

value to customers include 

• $34 million in savings in 201 0 by moving to standardized planning 

and reporting. 

• Automated meter reading associated with smart meters is expected 

to reduce costs by taking meter reads and detecting meter issues 

remotely rather than dispatching staff .  

    

PROVIDING VALUE TO OUR CUSTOMERS MEANS ENSURING 
EVERY DOLLAR SPENT IS A DOLLAR SPENT WISELY. HYDRO ONE 
IS FINDING WAYS TO INCREASE PRC.,r [ 71 ITY' AND BE 
TRANSPARENT AND ACCOUNTABLE TO Al L OLTARIANS. 

Measuring productivity 
In 2009, we introduced Iwo rigorous new performance metrics: Cost per 

Asset Value for transmission and Cost per Line Length for distribution. We 

met both targets in 2010 with a transmission unit cost of 4.6 per cent per 

transmission asset and a distribution unit cost of $6,600 per kilometre 

of line. We will continue to measure and benchmark productivity every 

year with the goal of placing in the top quartile when measured against 

comparable North American utilities. 

Connecting renewable energy 
Connecting solar, wind, hydro-electric and biomass generation to the 

electricity grid allows the Province to replace coal generation with 

clean power. Hydro One plays an important role in the connection 

of renewable energy projects under the Feed-In Tariff (FIT and Micro 

Feed-In Tariff (microFIT) programs. In 2010, we connected 2,397 

microFIT projects. In addition, since 2003, we have connected more 

than 2,000 megawatts of renewable generation and more than 

4,500 megawatts of natural gas general-ion That's enough to power 

42,000 homes for a year.  

We connected 
2,397 microFIT 
projects to our 

system in 2010. 
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AS PARTNERS IN POWERFUL COMMUNITIES ACROSS 
ONTARIO, HYDRO ONE PROMOTES SUSTAINABLE 
DECISION MAKING. BY i\AI' 	GPFR .FR CHC.E.-F , 

EMPLC, FFS AND OUR CUSTOMERS ARE 
REDUCING THEIR IMPACT ON THE ENVIRONMENT 

Release of 
2,595 tonnes 
of CO2  prevented 

by Greener 

Choices initiatives. 

Making Greener Choices 
Greener Choices, a grassroots employee-run environmental group in 

the Company, was established in 2008 to reduce greenhouse gases 

produced by Hydro One. It focuses on three areas, fleet, facilities and 

employees. In 2010, retrofits were conducted at the Central Maintenance 

System facility that reduced energy consumption by 280,000 kWh 

through lighting upgrades. Greener Choices is also taking aim at 

Hydro One's fleet, getting hybrids on lhe road and retiring vehicles that 

are no longer needed. Through hese efforts and others, the Greener 

Choices program prevented the release of 2,595 tonnes of CO2  into the 

atmosphere in 20 I 0. That's like taking more than 500 cars off the road 

Sustainability Company of the Year 
The Canadian Electricity Association named Hydro One the Sustainabilily 

Company of the Year. This honour is in recognition of our ongoing 

efforts to reduce environmental impacts in all aspects of our operations, 

including fleet and facilities, through our conservation and demand 

management programs and through our support for biodiversity projects 

in local communities .  

8 	HYDRO ONE ANNUAL REPOR1 2010 



PROMOTING CONSERVATION 

rry a strong arc pove corporate 
re. Cur employees give. generously to our 

31!:.;r1, volunteer their time in their locai, 
corn 	',ities arid are taking 	to re 	'le their 

`E 	.'t 	-Tact. 

Hydro One received the Canadian Electricity Association annual 

Environmental Commitment Award for our Biodiversity Initiciive for the 

Bruce to Milton Transmission Reinforcement Project. This project will 

create and enhance natural habitats in the communities touched by the 

project. We are working on this in partnership with First Nations and 

Metis communities and community-based agencies and stakeholders. 

Customer conservation and demand 
management programs 
Hydro One is helping to build a conservation culture within Ontario and 

our customers are leading the way. By retiring inefficient fridges and 

freezers and making energy retrofits to their homes, 1.5 million customers 

have helped save 500 million kWh of electricity since 2005. That's 

enough to power approximately 42,000 homes for a year, resulting in 

reductions in greenhouse gas emissions savings of more than 86,000 

tonnes of CO, 

Journey to Zero 
Achieving an injury-free workplace starts with each and every employee. 

That's why the Journey to Zero program was launched in 2009, aimed 

at identifying opportunities to improve Hydro One's health and safety 

performance. In 20 I 0, we had a frequency of 2.8 medical attentions 

and 0.05 loshtime injuries per 200,000 hours worked. This exceeded 

our target of 3.6 medical attentions and 0.23 lost-time injuries per 

200,000 hours worked. 

Our customers 

helped reduce 

demand for 

electricity by 

500 million 
kWh. 
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Carmine Marcella 

Executive Vice-President, 

Strategy 
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Executive Vice-President 

and Chief Financial Officer 
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MANAGEMENT'S 

We prepare our financial statements in Canadian dollars in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Canada. 

The following discussion is based upon our Consolidated Financial Statements for the years ended December 31, 201 0 and 2009 .  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
We are wholly owned by the Province of Ontario the Province), and our Transmission and Distribution Businesses are regulated by 

the Ontario Energy Board COBB). Our mission and vision have been refined to recognize the unique role we play in the economy 

of the province and as a provider of critical infrastructure to all our customers. We will be an innovative and trusted company 

delivering electricity safely, reliably and efficiently to create value for our customers. We operate as a commercial enterprise with 

an independent Board of Directors. Our strategic plan is driven by our values: health and safety, stewardship, excellence and 

innovation. Safety is of utmost importance to us because we work in an environment that can be hazardous. We take our 

responsibility as stewards of critical provincial assets seriously. We demonstrate sound stewardship by managing our assets in 

a manner that is commercial and transparent and values our customers. We strive for excellence by being trained, prepared 

and equipped to deliver high-quality service. We value innovation because it allows us to increase our productivity and develop 

enhanced methods to meet the needs of our customers. In 2010, we continued b focus on our core businesses, substantially 

maintained and improved our performance in various key areas of the Company, and made important contributions to the rebuilding 

of Ontario's core infrastructure while preparing to meet the requirements of the Green Energy Act (GEA). 

We manage our business using the following governance structure: 

Core Business 

and Strategy 

Key 

Performance 

Drivers 

Capability to 	 Results and 

Deliver Results 	 Outlook 

Core Business and Strategy 
Our corporate strategy is based on our mission and vision and our values. Our strategic goals, which are discussed on page 4, 

encompass the core values that drive our business. Our strategy touches every part of our core business: health and safety; our 

customers; innovation; the reliability and efficiency of our systems; the environment; our workforce; shareholder value; and productivly. 

Key Performance Drivers 
We have identified performance drivers critical to achieving our strategic goals. Each driver is specific to measuring our success in 

achieving a specific goal. We establish specific performance targets against each driver every year aimed at achieving our strategic 

goals over time. For example, we calculate lost-time injury frequencies and medical attentions to measure our progress toward an 

injuryfree workplace and the duration and frequency of unplanned interruptions to measure the success of our initiatives to increase 

the reliability of our transmission and distribution systems. Reduced carbon emissions demonstrate our commitment to protecting the 

environment. These and other key performance drivers are included in our discussion of our performance measures beginning on 

page 5. 

Capability to Deliver Results 
We continued to use a balanced scorecard approach and set 18 stretch targets for 2010 as we strive to manage our key 

performance drivers and deliver results each and every year. This year we met or exceeded 14 of 18 targets, representing an 

improvement over last year when we met or exceeded 8 of 13 stretch targets. We are on target to enable clean and renewable 

energy in Ontario with the implementation of our Bruce to Milton Project that will create Ontario's new clean energy corridor. 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

We continue to prioritize safety in the workplace, adding a new performance measure this year. We exceeded our target for lost-

time injuries by 78% and exceeded our new target for medical attentions by 22%. We are focused on balancing customer needs in 

the changing electricity sector and achieved an overall satisfaction score of 89% for both our transmission and distribution customers. 

The results of our efforts are fully discussed in the section Performance Measures and Targets, beginning on page 5. Oct capability 

to deliver results in each of our strategic areas is limited by risks inherent in the regulatory environment, our business, our workforce 

and the economic environment. These risks, as well as our strategies to mitigate them, are discussed beginning on page 25. 

Results and Outlook 
During 2010, our financial fundamentals remained strong, with current year net income of $591 million. Our OEB-approved 

revenue requirements for our Transmission and Distribution Businesses for 2010 were $1,257 million and $1,146 million, 

respectively. The approved rates support our work programs required to sustain our critical infrastructure and invest in a sustainable 

electricity system that supports renewable and cleaner generation. We maintained 'A' category credit ratings and successfully 

issued $1,500 million in debt financing, while repaying $600 million of debt maturing in the year. A full discussion of our results of 

operations and financing activities can be found beginning on pages 14 and 18, respectively. 

In 2010, we invested more than $1.5 billion in capital expenditures to improve system reliability and performance, address an 

aging power system, facilitate new generation and improve service to customers. Our estimated future capital expenditures for 2011 

and 2012 have decreased marginally horn those previously disclosed as a result of various letters received from the Minister of 

Energy, he introduction of a Long-Term Energy Plan (LTEP) and an OEB policy to further competition for transmission development. 

Similarly, we eliminated requirements for Green Transmission projects for new lines from our budgeted expenditures and refined our 

requirements to support distributed generation. The impacts were partially offset by requirements associated with our existing grid. 

We continue to focus on addressing aging infrastructure, including critical stations that serve industry and major customer load areas. 

Our future capital expenditures are more fully discussed beginning on page 21 

OVERVIEW 

Transmission 
Substantially all of Ontario's electricity transmission system is owned and operated by our Company. Our transmission system forms 

an integrated transmission grid that is monitored, controlled and managed centrally from our Ontario Grid Control Centre. Our 

system operates over relatively long distances and links major sources of generation to transmission stations and larger area load 

centres. In 2010, we earned total transmission revenues of $1,307 million primarily by transmitting approximately 142 T■Nh of 

electricity, directly or indirectly, to substantially all consumers of electricity in Ontario. Our transmission system is one of the largest 

in North America, and is linked to five adjoining jurisdictions through 26 interconnections. Through these interconnections, we 

can accommodate imports of about 4,600 MW and exports of approximately 6,000 MW of electricity. In terms of assets, our 

Transmission Business is our largest business segment, representing approximately 57% ci our total assets. 

Total Assets 
December 31, 2010 (CAD $ 

$609 

2010 Distribution Revenues 

0 Transmission 	❑ Distributron 	■ Other Residential. 	El General Service 

■ Embedded Distributors 	•Large User 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Distribution 

Our distribution system is the largest in Ontario and spans roughly 75% of the province. We serve approximately 1.3 million rural 

and urban customers, local distribution companies (LDCs) connected to the distribution system, and 412 large user customers. We 

also operate small, regulated generation and distribution systems in a number of remote communities across Northern Ontario that 

are not connected to Ontario's electricity grid. We earned [dal distribution revenues in 201 0 of $3,754 million. As illustrated in 

the accompanying chart, about half of our distribution revenues are earned from our residential customers. In terms of assets, our 

Distribution Business represents approximately 40% of our total assets. 

Other 

Our other business segment contributed revenues of $63 million in 2010 and has assets of about $609 million, which constitute 

3% of our total assets. This segment primarily represents the operations of our wholly owned subsidiary Hydro One Telecom Inc. 

(Hydro One Telecom), which markets fibre-optic capacity to telecommunications carriers and commercial customers with broadband 

network requirements, including a dedicated optical network providing secure, high-capacity connectivity across numerous health 

care locations in Ontario. 

Our Strategy 
Our corporate strategy is based on our mission and vision and our values. Our mission and \Asian is to be an innovative and trusted 

company delivering electricity safely, reliably and efficiently to create value for our customers. Our values represent our core beliefs! 

Health and safety: Nothing is more important than the health and safety of our employees and Ihose who work on our property 

as well as maintaining a safe environment for the public. 

Excellence: We achieve excellence through continuous training, ensuring we are prepared and equipped to deliver high-quality 

service. 

Stewardship: We invest in our assets and people to build a safe, environmentally sustainable electricity network in a commercial 

manner. 

innovation: We innovate through new processes, people and technology to allow us to find better ways to meet the needs of 

our customers. 

We have eight strategic objectives that do not stand alone and are inextricably linked with one another. They drive the fulfillment of 

our mission and vision. 

Creating an injury -free workplace and maintaining public safety. Health and safety must be integrated into all that we do. 

We must continue to create a passion for preventing injury. We will strengthen our already strong safety culture through our Journey to 

Zero initiative and achieve world-class results. We will continue to reinforce that nothing is more important than the health and safety 

of our employees.  

Satisfying our customers. We will meet our commitments, make customers our focus in our planning, communicate effectively, 

coordinate across lines of business, and maximize opportunities to improve our corporate image. 

Continuous innovation. Innovation is critical to achieving our mission and vision and represents one of our core values. Over the 

next two decades, we will install innovative solutions that improve the reliability and efficiency of the transmission and distribution 

systems and provide our customers with more capability to manage their power costs. 

Building and maintaining reliable, cost-effective power delivery systems. Our transmission strategy is to provide a robust 

and reliable provincial grid that accommodates Ontario's emerging generation profile, manages an aging asset base and meets 

demand requirements through prudent expansion and effective maintenance. Our distribution strategy is focused on incorporating 

smart grid technology, providing reliable service over a diverse geography, supporting the connection of renewable generation, 

seeking efficiencies through productivity initiatives and remaining open to opportunities to rationalize the distribution sector. 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Protecting and sustaining the environment. Consistent with our value of stewardship, Hydro One plays a central role in 

reducing Ontario's carbon footprint through the delivery of clean and renewable energy and through measures that allow our 

customers to manage and reduce their energy use. 

Employee engagement. We believe our primary strength is the capability of our people. In order to sustain this advantage, 

we must address the issues of labour demographics, diversity, development of critical core competencies, and skill and knowledge 

retention. Our labour strategy will enable us to make significant gains in the areas of labour flexibility, productivity improvement 

and cost reduction .  

Maintenance of a commercial culture that increases vatue for our shareholder. We are committed to keeping rates 

as low as possible for our customers, and delivering income and dividends to our shareholder. This is possible through our focus on 

reducing costs, managing our assets effectively and increasing productivity. 

Productivity improvement and cost-effectiveness. To achieve our mission and vision, we must constantly strive for 

productivity through efficiency and effective management of costs. Productivity is key to meeting our other strategic objectives and, in 

particular, to achieving value for our customers and our shareholder. 

We recognize the pivotal role innovation will play in building a smart electricity grid that supports a clean environment for Ontario. 

We are committed to becoming the industry leader in putting innovative solutions to work for the well-being of the Ontario economy 

and its residents. 

Performance Measures and Targets 

We measure and target our performance by using a balanced scorecard approach. Key performance drivers are closely monitored 

throughout the year to ensure that we achieve our strategic objectives. In 2010, we met or exceeded 14 of 18 stretch targets. 

Overall, we are making progress towards achieving our strategic goals. 

Creating an injury-free workplace and maintaining public safety 
The potentially hazardous nature of our business requires a continuous focus on safety. Our people underpin everything we do, and 

as a result, safety is paramount. Our efforts to achieve an injury-free workplace are measured by our lost-time injury frequency and 

our newly added reportable medical attentions frequency. Overall, we exceeded our challenging 2010 target of 0.23 lost-time 

injuries per 200,000 hours worked, which is also a considerable improvement over our 2009 results. We also exceeded our 2010 

target of 3.6 medical attentions per 200,000 hours worked. Medical attentions are incidents reported to the Workplace Safety and 

Insurance Board that are more serious than basic first aid. While we monitor both of these measures to identify possible situations 

that may increase the risk of injury, medical attentions are considered a leading indicator. These injuries range from physical strains 

to those caused by electrical contacts. We continuously emphasize the improvement of safely performance and strive to achieve 

zero lost-time injuries by ensuring that all staff are appropriately trained and equipped for the hazards they may face. This involves 

continued coaching and mentoring, and building on our learning and experience. 

At the end of 2009, we launched our Journey to Zero initiative aimed at identifying key opportunities for improvement in our health 

and safety system in order to achieve world-class health and safely performance. During 2010 we formed a steering committee for 

this initiative, held workshops to prioritize the opportunities identified at the end of last year and developed an action plan to address 

the top areas for improvement. In October 2010, we were pleased to be informed by the Workplace Safety and Insurance Board 

that we had passed our Workwell audit, a comprehensive independent review of all aspects of our workplace health and safety 

program including policies, standards, training, records, performance and employee representation. 

We continue to promote public safely and the safe use of electricity through public service announcements and education programs 

in schools b teach children how to stay safe. We also continue to work with law enforcement agencies to combat copper theft, 

which endangers our employees and the public .  
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Satisfying our customers 
Customer satisfaction is vital to our success. This is measured by a combination of independent surveys and transactional measures 

conducted for each of our customer segments. In 2010, the overall satisfaction level for both our distribution and transmission 

customers exceeded our targets. For our Distribution Business, overall customer satisfaction survey results of 89% exceeded our 

target of 81%. While we achieved consistent results compared to the prior year within our large distribution customer and residential 

and small business customer segments, we significantly increased customer satisfaction among distribution-connected generators. 

Satisfaction in this group was impacted by addressing concerns from last year's surveys, clarifying processes and enhancing 

communications with customers. Connection application volumes are increasing and we remain focused on managing customer 

expectations. 

For our transmission customers, we experienced slightly lower results for our LDC customers than planned and are assessing the results 

to improve processes next year However, our overall transmission customer survey results were offset by a significant improvement 

in our transmission-connected generator customer satisfaction as a result of addressing concerns noted in last year's surveys. We 

continue to strive for customer service excellence. We continue to make our customers a high priority, and implement targeted 

strategies designed to meet the unique needs of each customer segment and address their concerns through a range of initiatives to 

improve customer satisfaction levels. 

Continuous innovation 
We are committed to identifying and providing innovative solutions that will improve the reliability and efficiency of electricity delivery 

and provide our customers with more capability to manage their power consumption. Among our continuous innovation initiatives 

in 2010, smart meters remained a priority. We have more than 1,314,000 smart meters installed to date, of which approximately 

1,140,000 meters are enabled to support time-of-use billing. This represents a significant step forward in supporting the Smart Grid 

initiative. We fell short of our target of 1,170,000 meters enabled to support timed-use billing due to challenges encountered 

related to the communications network needed to address the diverse needs of the geography across the province. We continue to 

anticipate that our DEB commitments will be met in 2011. 

A new measure for continuous innovation this year monitors green grid initiatives, which are an integral part of the GEA These 

initiatives include establishing a communications network in the Greater Owen Sound area to test business applications for a smart 

electricity grid, developing a business case for further deployment of the communications network to the province, and developing 

utility solutions for the current challenges around installing and operating large numbers of distributed generation on our distribution 

system. We successfully achieved all 12 milestones related to these initiatives. 

Building and maintaining reliable, cost-effective power delivery systems 
As stewards of the province's electricity grid, we aim to maintain and build trust in our operations. In 2010, we continued our focus 

on this strategic priority by investing in the key assets of the electricity delivery system and by operating the existing system for our 

customers in a safe, reliable and efficient fashion. In addition, our aim is to meet the growing demand for renewable generation. The 

reliability of our transmission and distribution systems is measured by the duration of unplanned customer interruptions throughout the 

year and our transmission system is further measured by the frequency of unplanned customer interruptions. In 2010, our transmission 

system met our reliability targets for both frequency and duration of interruptions. The transmission frequency of customer unplanned 

interruptions met the target for the year. The transmission duration of unplanned customer interruptions was 9.1 minutes, significantly 

exceeding the target of 16.0 minutes, and significantly improved from 19.7 minutes in 2009. 

Due to a number of challenges experienced in the last quarter of the year, the reliability of our distribution system was impacted 

in terms of duration of interruptions. Two severe winter storms affected the reliability of our distribution system. The duration of 

interruptions for our distribution customers was 7.1 hours, or 0.2 hours higher than target and 0.1 hours higher than last year. We 

are conscious that residential customers and businesses d all sizes require reliable service, and consequently, we will continue to 

strive to improve the reliability of both our transmission and distribution systems. 
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Protecting and sustaining the environment 
As stewards of significant electricity assets, we have implemented a number of environmental initiatives aimed at instilling 

environmental awareness and action within our corporate culture. In 2010, we assessed two key metrics related to the Bruce to 

Milton Project and greenhouse gas reductions. We met our milestone targets related to the Bruce to Milton Project, which will create 

Ontario's new clean energy corridor Successful completion of the Bruce to Milton Project will increase transmission capability to 

deliver 1,700 MW of renewable generation identified in the area as well as about 1,5(X) MW of power from the refurbished 

units at the Bruce Power Facility. On December 16, 2009, we received conditional Environmental Assessment approval for the 

project. Preparation of this environmental assessment involved rhree years of technical and environmental field work, and extensive 

consultation with land owners, interest groups, elected officials and First Nations and Mars communities. This year, we were 

recognized by the CEA, receiving an Environmental Commitment Award for our extensive Biodiversity Initiative related to the Bruce to 

Milton Project. This initiative goes beyond our traditional approach to biodiversiy, using innovative ways of mitigating the effects of 

woodbt clearing. Our Biodiversiy Initiative will develop and support a number of stewardship and biodiversiry opportunities such as 

replanting grasslands, removal of invasive species and restoring forests in the communities affected by the Bruce lo Milton Project. We 

are funding 23 locally-designed biodiversity projects located on public lands within the four watersheds the Bruce to Milton Project 

crosses. These projects will help to ensure environmental sustainabiliry and will maintain and enhance the natural habitat. This initiative 

is being undertaken in collaboration with First Nations and Meh's communities and community-based stakeholders and agencies. 

We take our responsibility to reduce our carbon footprint very seriously. We did not meet our overall greenhouse gas reduction target 

as a result of not being able to verify our specific target to reduce sulphur hexafluoride emissions. However, we did exceed the target 

for the reduction of greenhouse gas emissions from other programs. In 2010, we removed approximately 2,595 metric tonnes of 

greenhouse gases from the environment, exceeding our target of 1,250 metric tonnes from these other initiatives that were aimed at 

improved deliveries of bio-diesel fuel at Hydro One Remotes, better efficiency of fleet utilization, including our Tire Smart Program, 

the purchase of fuel-efficient and hybrid vehicles and green initiatives at our facilities. Our continued commitment to the people 

of Ontario has been recognized again this year by Corporate Knights Inc., an independent company focused on promoting and 

reinforcing sustainable development in Canada. We were named one of the top five Corporate Citizens in Canada, our third top-ten 

ranking in three years. 

We have a publicly available environmental policy and are committed to protecting the environment for current and future 

generations. Adhering to this policy, we have many initiatives within our Company aimed at fulfilling our commitment to protect 

the environment, some of which are linked to a specific performance measure. All of our environmental initiatives are part of an 

internal program called Greener Choices. Greener Choices was created to help our Company become more energy-efficient and to 

reduce the emissions and environmental impacts of our fleet and our facilities. Our initiatives fall under four categories: helping our 

employees to be more aware of what they can do to reduce their environmental impacts; creating a culture of conservation within 

our Company; making our facilities more energy-efficient; and reducing the emissions of our fleet of vehicles. 

Skill development and knowledge retention 
Given the retirement profile of our employees, we are in a period of significant demographic change. This change is taking place 

across the electricity sector and we have taken a leadership role to address the transition. We have embarked on an aggressive 

workforce renewal program that will lead to a diverse, fully engaged workforce. In addition to our partnership with four community 

colleges, we strengthened our association with various Canadian universities as part of a comprehensive strategy to meet our staffing 

needs well into the future. We also helped to establish the Ryerson University Centre for Urban Energy (the Centre). Our goal to 

attract and retain future sector leaders involves demonstrating that Hydro One is an employer of choice. In addition, we aim to 

facilitate retention and mentoring by focusing on employee engagement. We measure employee engagement across all lines of 

business using a confidential employee engagement survey. The grand mean score in 201 0 was 3.70 out of 5, an improvement 

from the 2009 score of 3.63, but slightly lower than the 2010 target of 3.73. Detailed results of the 2010 survey will be used to 

actively address lower-performance areas and effectively implement targeted strategies designed to increase engagement levels. 

Maintenance of a commercial culture that increases valuator our shareholder 
In 2010, we continued our commitment to maintain strong financial fundamentals. Our targets included net income and our 

credit ratings, which were both achieved. Net  income for the year exceeded target mainly as a result of the higher temperatures 

experienced during the summer combined with effective cost management. A discussion of our financial results can be found on 

page 14 and of our liquidity and capital resources on page 18. 
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Our financial performance and the business environment in which we operate are taken into consideration in setting both our shoft-

term and bng-term credit ratings. During 2010, our long-term and short-term debt credit ratings remained unchanged. Credit ratings 

are provided by DBRS Limited, Moody's Investors Service Inc. and Standard & Poor's Rating Services Inc. (S&P). Maintaining credit 

ratings in the 'A' category allows us to continue to access the long-term debt markets. We have been able to successfully secure 

sufficient and cost-effective debt financing. Our current credit ratings facilitate ongoing access to debt markets at a reasonable cost 

to fund the infrastructure requirements of our system. 

Productivity improvement and cost-effectiveness 

In 2010, we remained focused on workplace productivity and its contribution as an enabler of our work programs. For our 

Transmission Business, productivity is measured using the cost per asset value, which is calculated as capital and maintenance 

program expenditures as a percentage of transmission assets. For our Distribution Business, the calculation is normalized for 

line length due to the rural nature of our service territory. The targets for both measures were to achieve top-quartile results when 

benchmarked against comparable North American utilities. Transmission and distribution productivity results for the year were both 

on target. 

Two additional corporate measures were implemented this year. The Collaborative Planning Index measures the effectiveness of 

workflow between key lines of business as a result of improved integration and teamwork. The other new measure assesses the 

savings derived from our entity-wide information system replacement and improvement project, placed in service in 2009. In 2010, 

we slightly exceeded our Collaborative Planning Index target of 85%, a measure based on the average of three metrics related 

to the release of work, planning and order filling. We have also exceeded our target savings of $28 million related to the entity- 

wide information system replacement and improvement project, with actual savings of approximately $34 million. We will continue 

to build on the success of our new entity-wide information system to increase the cost effectiveness of work program planning, 

processing and execution to achieve reductions in our labour unit costs. 

REGULATION 

Our electriciy Transmission and Distribution Businesses are licensed and regulated by the OEB. The OEB sets rates following 

oral or written public hearings. Our transmission revenues primarily include our transmission tariff, which is based on the uniform 

province-wide transmission rates approved by the OEB for all transmitters across Ontario. Our distribution revenues primarily include 

our distribution tariff, which is also based on DEB-approved rates, and the recovery of the cost of purchased power used by our 

customers. Consequently, our Distribution Business does not have commodity price risk. Transmission and distribution tariff rates are 

set based on an approved revenue requirement that provides for cost recovery and includes a return on deemed common equity. 

In addition, the OEB approves rate riders to allow for the recovery or disposition of specific regulatory assets and liabilities over a 

specified tirneframe. 

Electricity Rates 

Under the current market structure, low-volume and designated consumers pay electricity rates established through the Regulated 

Price Plan (RPP) and wholesale electriciy consumers pay a blend of regulated, contract and wholesale spot market prices. The OEB 

sets prices for RPP customers based on a two-tiered electricity pricing stnrcture with seasonal consumption thresholds. Unexpected 

shortfalls or overpayments associated with the RPP are temporarily financed by the Ontario Power Authority (OPA). Prices are 

reviewed every six months and may change based on an updated OEB forecast and any accumulated differences between the 

amount that customers paid for electricity and the amount paid to generators in the previous period. Effective May 1, 2010, we 

started migrating our customers to time-of-use (TOU) rates and have a plan in place to transition the majority of our RPP customers to 

TOU rates in 2011. On September 16, 2010, we filed an application with the OEB for an exemption from mandated time-of-use 

pricing, affecting approximately 150,000 customers located in very rural and sparsely populated portions of our service territory that 

are currently out of reach of our smart meter telecommunications infrastructure. In early 2011, the OEB approved our request for an 

extension until the end of 2012. 
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As announced in its 2010 fall economic update, the Province introduced the Ontario Clean Energy Benefit Act, 2010, which 

is designed to assist Ontario electricity consumers through the transition to a cleaner electricity system. Under this Act, eligible 

residential, farm and small business consumers receive financial assistance in the amount of a 10% credit with respect to the total 

cost of electricity on their bills, including tax. This assistance is being provided to eligible customers for a five-year period, beginning 

January 1, 2011. In January 2011, our Company issued its first bills to customers with rh is credit applied to their electricity costs. 

Customers that are not eligible for the RPP and wholesale customers pay the market price for electricity, adjusted for the difference 

between market prices and prices paid to generators under the Electricity Act, 1998. The Independent Electricity System Operator 

(IESO) is responsible for overseeing and operating the wholesale market as well as ensuring the reliability of the integrated power 

system. 

Green Energy Act and Long-Term Energy Pion 

In addition [0 the oversight role of the DEB, and the market-monitoring and coordination role of the IESO, the OPA was created 

through the Electricity Restructuring Act, 2004 to ensure the long-term supply of electricity, facilitate load management and 

conservation, and assist with the stabiliy of rates for RPP customers, among other roles. As part of its mandate, and consistent with 

the Province's direction regarding supply mix, the OPA developed the Integrated Power System Plan (IPSP), which was submitted 

for DEB review and approval in August 2007. On September 17, 2008, the Province directed the OPA to review a portion of its 

proposed IPSP focusing on renewable energy and conservation as well as to undertake an enhanced process of consultation with 

First Nations and Metis communities. As a result of the Minister of Energy and Infrastructure's directive, the DEB adjourned its review 

of the IPSP on October 2, 2008. 

On May 14, 2009, the GEA was passed in the Ontario Legislature. On September 21, 2009, to support the GEA and help 

bring renewable energy to the grid our Company received a letter from the then Minister of Energy and Infrastructure requesting us 

to immediately proceed with the planning and implementation of 20 major transmission projects. On May 7, 2010, the Minister 

of Energy and Infrastructure requested our Company to focus on those items that are essential to the safe and reliable operation of 

our existing assets or projects already under development and approved by the OEB, or are critical to the connection of renewable 

generation projects that have been identified by the OPA as part of the government's green energy agenda. As a result, we 

decided to suspend our work on the 20 major transmission projects. On August 26, 2010, the OEB released its new policy on the 

Framework for Transmission Project Development Plans. This policy sets out a framework for new transmission investment in Ontario 

by introducing competition for transmission development through an open bid process. 

An amendment to the deemed licence conditions of the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998, as set out in the GEA, requires that 

distributors provide priority connection access for qualified renewable energy generation facilities and prepare plans for approval 

by the DEB that identify expansion or reinforcement of the distribution system required to accommodate the connection of renewable 

energy generation facilities. 

The OPA continues to procure new, cleaner and renewable generation in Ontario. On October 1, 2009, the OPA launched the 

Feed-In-Tariff (FIT) Program in accordance with the directive issued by the Minister of Energy and Infrastructure to the OPA. The 

program is designed to procure energy from a wide range of renewable energy sources, including wind, solar, photovoltaic, 

bio-energy and waterpower up to 50 MW.  

On November 23, 2010, the Ministry of Energy released Ontario's LTEP which sets out the Province's expected electricity needs 

until 2030 and supports the continued procurement of new, cleaner generation. The LTEP addresses seven key areas: demand, 

supply conservation, transmission, Aboriginal communities, capital investments and electricity prices. In conjunction with the release 

of its LTEP, the Province released a draft Supply Mx Directive for consultation. The draft Supply Mix Directive outlines the goals to be 

achieved through a new detailed long-term plan and directs the OPA to prepare an IPSP to meet those goals, as set out in the LTEP. 

The comment period for the draft Supply Mix Directive expired on January 7, 2011. It is anticipated that a Supply Mix Directive will 

be formally issued to the OPA and will form the basis for a new IPSP. The OPA is anticipated to release an updated IPSP to the DEB 

in 2011 for its review and approval. 

The draft Supply Mix Directive to the OPA identifies five priority transmission projects over seven years. On December 22, 2010, we 

received a letter from the Minister of Energy updating the September 21, 2009 letter from the Minister of Energy and Infrastructure, 

and requesting us to immediately proceed with the necessary planning and development work to advance three of the projects in an 
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expedited timeframe, in combined consultation with the OPA and IESO. In addition, we were asked to develop a plan lo prioritize 

the cost-effective upgrades to our systems to safely and reliably accommodate additional renewable energy for small generation 

projects (see Future Capital Expenditures). 

The GEA continues to provide the framework for renewable energy projects and increased conservation. A number of regulations 

and programs required to fully implement the legislation were introduced in the latter port of 2009 .  

Transmission and Distribution System Codes 
In 2009, the OEB undertook a review of its codes, rules and guidelines in support of the GEA. On October 20, 2009, the OEB 

finalized amendments to the Transmission System Code (TSC), and adopted a "hybrid' approach to cost responsibility between 

transmitters and generators for "enabler facilities°. Enabler facilities are lines or stations that connect Nvo or more renewable 

generation facilities to the transmission grid. The hybrid option sees the initial pooling of the costs of enabler lines by the transmitter, 

with generators paying their pro-rata share, based on generator capacity, when ready to connect. To be eligible for this cost 

treatment, enabler facilities must meet certain detailed requirements outlined in the TSC. 

The amendments to the Distribution System Code (DSC), finalized on October 21, 2009, revised the OEB's approach to assigning 

cost responsibility between a distributor and a generator for the connection of renewable energy generation facilities. The OEB 

defined three types of distribution assets associated with the connection of renewable energy generation: connection assets, 

expansion assets, and renewable enabling improvements. For generators that are connecting directly to a distributor's system, 

connection asset costs will continue to be borne by generators, while distributors will be required to fund all expansion costs 

identified in a plan, other generator-requested expansion costs up to a cap of $90,000/MW per project (with the generator 

paying the rest), and all renewable enabling improvements. 

On June 30, 2010, Hydro One Networks Inc. (Hydro One Networks), in respect of our Distribution Business, filed an application 

with the OEB requesting an exemption from certain cost responsibility rules contained in the DSC for distributed generation projects 

under the Renewable Energy Standard Offer Program (RESOP). The application sought to deal with unanticipated costs that arose as 

a result of the connection of certain renewable generation facilities for generators. These generators applied to conned to our system 

prior to amendments made to the code on October 21, 2009. Under the rules in force at the time, all costs of connection were 

assigned to generators and we requested an exemption from those rules to allow for recovery of the unforeseen expenditures from 

ratepayers. On December 20, 2010, the OEB released its decision approving deferral accounts to capture the expenditures to be 

brought forward for review and approval at the next cost-of-service application. 

Conservation and Demand Management 
In 2009, the OPA continued to be responsible for coordinating the delivery and funding of conservation and demand management 

(CDM) programs. This coordination furthered initiatives undertaken by individual LDCs, including the distribution businesses of our 

subsidiaries Hydro One Networks and Hydro One Brampton Networks Inc. (Hydro One Brampton), as a result of OEB program 

requirements associated with the third phase Market Adjusted Rate of Return (MARR). Our CDM programs funded through the OPA 

in 2010 amounted to approximately $31 million, compared to $16 million in 2009. The Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998, as 

amended by the GEA, provides direction to the OEB to lake steps to establish CDM targets to be met by LDCs and other licensees. 

The Minister of Energy and Infrastructure's March 31, 2010 directive set a province-wide LDC CDM target for Ontario's LDCs. The 

two key CDM targets for LDCs over the four-year period beginning January 1, 2011 are to reduce 1,330 MW of provincial summer 

peak demand and 6,000 GWh of cumulative energy savings, collectively. 

On June 22, 2010, the OEB provided notice under the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998 of the creation of a proposed CDM 

Code for electricity distributors. The new code proposes specific CDM targets for all LDCs as directed by the Minister of Energy 

and Infrastructure earlier this year. The proposed allocation of the overall targets to our Company are a 256 MW reduction of 

provincial peak demand and a 1,208 GWh reduction of electricity consumption, representing, respectively, 19.2% and 20.1% of 

the total target savings established for all LDCs. The CDM Code also set out the conditions and rules that LDCs are required to follow 

if they choose to use OEB-approved CDM programs to meet their CDM targets. On November 1, 2010, Hydro One Networks' 

Distribution Business filed its CDM strategy and CDM Program application with the OEB in accordance with the requirements of the 

CDM Code. An oral hearing for the review and approval of our CDM application and funding of our CDM programs has been 

scheduled to start in March 2011. 
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The Energy Conservation Responsibility Act, 2006 furthers the broad objectives of CDM by providing the framework for the 
installation of smart meters in all homes and small businesses in Ontario by December 31, 2010. These meters are expected 

to be capable of measuring and reporting usage over predetermined periods, being read remotely, and, when combined with 

communications systems, will be capable of providing customers with access to information about their consumption. I n 2007, 

the Province appointed he IESO as the interim smart meter entity that will oversee the collection and management of data. LDCs, 

including our distribution businesses, are accountable for the deployment of smart meter infrastructure and related technology for 

communications to meet minimum requirements as defined in regulations, as well as the implementation of time-of-use rates. In 

2010, we continued our focus on building an advanced distribution solution and launched our smart grid initiative to leverage the 

infrastructure from our smart meter investment which is required to connect and manage large volumes of distributed generation on 

our distribution system (see Future Capital Expenditures). 

Renewed Regulatory Framework 

On October 27, 2010, the OEB announced its plan to develop a renewed regulatory framework for electricity given the significant 

role network investment will have in the electricity sector in the future. The renewed regulatory framework will be developed through 

three policy initiatives. First, the OEB will re-examine its approach to network investment planning by transmitters and distributors, 

including considering ways to encourage distributors and transmitters to plan their investments with the total bill impact in mind. 
Second, it will review its rate mitigation policy by examining alternative approaches and rate treatments that might smooth the impact 

of rate or bill increases on consumers. Third, it will review its current rate-making policies to ensure that they continue to facilitate the 

cost-effective and efficient implementation of OEB-approved plans. 

Transmission Rates 

Hydro One Networks 
The IESO facilitates payments to us based on the Ontario Uniform Transmission Rates (UTRs) approved by the OEB for all transmitters 

across Ontario. 

On August 16, 2007, the OEB issued its decision in respect of our 2007 and 2008 transmission rate application. As part of that 

decision the OEB approved the disposition of export and wheeling fees liability and the transmission market-ready regulatory aw'r,  

which was factored into rates and refunded to customers over the four-year period ending December 31, 2010. 

On May 30, 2008, we submitted an application to the OEB to adjust UTRs for our Transmission Business, effective January 1, 2009. 

On August 28, 2008, the OEB approved our application reflecting he 2008 OEB-approved revenue requirement given the full 

repayment to customers of the Earnings Sharing Mechanism and Revenue Difference Deferral Account as at December 31, 2008. 

This resulted in an average increase of approximately 9% in our revenue requirement allocation from UTRs and an approximate 1% 

increase on an average customers total bill. 

To achieve the necessary funding in support of aging critical infrastructure and investments, we submitted a transmission rare 

application for 2009 and 2010 rates in September 2008. The application sough t OEB approval for revenue requirements of 

approximately $1,233 million and $1,341 million based on an ROE of 8.53% and 9.35% for 2009 and 2010, respectively. 

On May 28, 2009, the OEB issued its decision, effective July 1, 2009, which resulted in a reduced revenue requirement of 

$1,180 million and $1,240 million in 2009 and 2010, respectively, primarily due to a lower approved ROE of 8.01% and 

8.16%. The decision also required the establishment of new variance accounts to track the difference between the forecasted and 

actual external revenues for export services, secondary land use and net maintenance services, primarily provided to generators. In 

its decision, the OEB disallowed development capital expenditures of $180 million in 2010, but agreed to reconsider the projects 

if additional evidence was provided. On September 4, 2009, we filed supplemental evidence regarding two of the development 

capital projects amounting to approximately $160 million. On December 16, 2009, he OEB approved our supplemental 

submission increasing the approved 2010 revenue requirement to $1,257 million on the basis of an updated 2010 ROE of 8.39%. 

These decisions resulted in an increase in transmission tariff rates of approximately 2% and 9% for 2009 and 2010, respectively, 

representing a less than 1% increase on an average customer's tota I bill in each year. 

On December 1 1, 2009, the OEB issued its final report on the cost-of-capital review, which concluded that the formula-based 

return on equity (ROE) needed to be reset and refined On January 5, 2010, we filed a motion with the OEB to review aspects of 

its decision on our 2010 transmission rates, including an increase of the ROE used in calculating the 2010 revenue requirement to 
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9.75% from 8.39%, based on the new OEB-approved formula. On April 5, 2010, the OEB issued its decision, denying Hydro One 

Network's motion to vary ihe ROE used to calculate the revenue requirement for 2010 transmission rates. As a result of the decision, 

the 2010 revenue requirement remained at $1,257 million on the basis of an ROE of 8.39%. 

On May 19, 2010 we submitted an application for 2011 and 2012 transmission rates in continued support of our aging critical 

infrastructure and the supply mix objectives for generation, including off-coal initiatives and initiation of investments in support of the 

GEA. This application sought the approval of revenue requirements of approximately $1,446 million for 2011 and $1,547 million 

for 2012, which represents an estimated increase in rates of 15.7% and 9.8%, respectively, or 1.2% and 0.7% on an average 

customer's monthly bill. The application was filed using Ifie new OEB-approved formula for ROE and took into consideration the 

OEB staff report on the regulatory treatment of infrastructure investment in connection with rate-regulated activities (RRA) of Ontario 

distributors and transmitters, issued in January 2009. 

On December 23, 2010, the OEB issued its decision effective January 1, 2011, which resulted in a revenue requirement of 

$1, 34b million for 2011 and $1,658 million for 2012, reflecting transmission rate changes of approximately 7% in 2011 and 

26% in 2012. The 201 1 revenue requirement was lower than requested primarily due to a lower prescribed ROE resulting from 

a lower forecasted cost of debt, Ihe denial of our request to recover the cost of capital of the construction work-in-progress for 

Bruce to Milton and an operation, maintenance and administration envelope reduction. Our 2012 revenue requirement was also 

impacted by the above noted factors, but was higher than originally submitted due to the OEB directing our Company to adopt 

IF RS accounting for indirect overheads capitalized, resulting in approximately a $200 million increase in 2012. Our Company was 

required to establish a variance account to capture any difference in the revenue requirement impact attributed to adopting IF RS 

capitalization accounting in 2012. 

On January 17, 2011, the Power Workers Union submitted an appeal of the decision to ihe Ontario Superior Court of Justice 

(Divisional Court) asserting that the DEB failed to permit our Company lo recover proposed prudently incurred operation, 

maintenance and administration costs and therefore, that a legal error was made. The appeal is not anticipated to affect the 

collection of the new 2011 transmission rules during the proceeding. 

Distribution Rates 
As a distributor, we are responsible for delivering electricity and billing our customers for our approved distribution rates, purchased 

power costs and other approved regulatory charges. Substantially all of our purchased power costs and other approved regulatory 
charges are settled through the IESO, which facilitates payments to other parties such as generators, the Ontario Electricity Financial 

Corporation (OEFC) and the IESO itself. 

In 2006, the OEB initiated a process to establish an Incentive Regulation Mechanism (IRM) for the years 2007 to 2010. The 

process included a formulaic approach lo establishing 2007 rates with a rate rebasing approach to be staggered across all Ontario 

distributors between 2008 and 2010. 

Hydro One Networks 
On December 18, 2008, the OEB issued a decision approving substantially all of ihe work program expenditures submitted in 

our 2008 cosi-of-service distribution rate application. The decision was effective May 1, 2008 with an implementation date of 

February 1, 2009, and approved the establishment of the Revenue Recovery Account or Rider 4 to record the revenue differential 

between existing distribution rates and new rates from May 1, 2008. The Rider 4 is being recovered over a 27-month period, 

commencing February 1, 2009 and ending April 30, 2011. As part of its decision, the OEB also approved certain excess 

functionality expenditures for smart meters and the continuance of the 93 cents per month per metered customer. In a past 

proceeding, the OEB approved for recovery our expenditures incurred related to minimum functionality for advanced metering 

infrastructure. As a result, the difference between revenue recorded on this basis and actual recoveries received under existing 

rate adders are reflected as the carrying value of the regulatory asset account. 

In late 2008, we filed an incentive regulation application for 2009 rates, which was updated in January 2009 to reflect the 

impact of the 2008 distribution rate decision. The application was filed on the basis of the OEB's third-generation IRM process, 

which adjusts rates by considering inflation, productivity targets, significant events outside the control of management and a capital 

adjustment mechanism lo recover costs for new incremental capital coming in service beyond a prescribed threshold. On 
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May 13, 2009, the OEB released its decision approving the basic IRM increase and a charge of $1.65 per month per metered 

customer for smart meters. The revised rates were approved effective May 1, 2009 with an implementation date of June 1, 2009, 

and resulted in an increase of less than 1.5% on an average customer's total bill. 

On July 13, 2009, we filed a cost-of-service application with the OEB for 2010 and 2011 distribution rates reflecting our plan 

to invest in our network assets to meet objectives regarding public and employee safey; regulatory and legislative compliance; 

maintenance of system security and reliability of system growth requirements; and investments required by the GEA. The application 

sought OEB approval of revenue requirements of approximately $1,150 million and $1,264 million based on an ROE of 8 11% 

and 9.09% for 2010 and 2011, respectively. The resulting distribution tariff rate increase was approximately 10% and 13% in 

2010 and 2011, respectively, or approximately 3% and 4% on an average customers total bill. 

Our application included the Green Energy Plan (GEP) for our Distribution Business, filed in response to the GEA, which directed 

the OEB to require transmitters and distributors to file plans that would lead to the expansion of their systems to facilitate renewable 

energy. Our plans identified the expansion and reinforcement of the distribution system required to accommodate the connection 

of renewable energy generation facilities and outlined the development and implementation of the smart grid in out distribution 

system. Our GEP reflected changes to the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998, as amended by the GEA and stipulated in Ontario 

Regulation 330/09. The amendments provided a new mechanism for rate protection, whereby some or all of the OEB-approved 

costs incurred by a distributor to make an eligible investment for the purpose of connecting or enabling the connection of renewable 

energy generation to its distribution system may be recovered from all provincial ratepayers, rather than solely from ratepayers of the 

distributor making the investment. 

On April 9, 2010, the OEB released its decision approving revenue requirements of $1,146 million for 201 0 and $1,236 million 
for 2011 to support the necessary work programs, the implementation of the GEA and the installation of smart meters. The 2010 

and 2011 revenue requirements were lower than originally requested, reflecting reductions in operation, maintenance and 

administration expenses, capital expenditures and working capital requirements. As part of its decision, the OEB also approved 

certain distribution-related deferral account balances sought by our Company in our application, including retail settlement variance 

accounts, the remainder of a regulatory asset recovery account, retail cost variance accounts and smart meters. The OEB ordered 

that the approved balances be aggregated into a single regulatory account (Rider 6) to be recovered over an 18-month period from 

May 1, 2010 to December 31, 2011. Further, the OEB requested the establishment of deferral accounts to track the difference 

between the revenue recorded on the basis of our GEP expenditures incurred and actual recoveries received under the approved 

funding adder or rider. 

The 2010 distribution rates were implemented on May 1, 2010, reflecting a rate increase of approximately 9.3%, or approximately 

3% on an average customer's total bill. Our 2011 revenue requirement was adjusted to reflect the OEB's decision to decrease 

OM&A by $40 million and was adjusted to reflect a $44 million capital program reduction. On November 15, 2010, the OEB 

issued its cost of capital parameter updates for rates effective January 1, 2011. The new ROE value for 2011 is 9.66%. Applying 

this lower ROE produces a revised revenue requirement of $1,218 million. The approved 2011 revenue requirement results in an 

average distribution rate increase of approximately 8.7% for 2011, or 3.0% on an average customer's total bill. 

Hydro One Brampton 
On November 7, 2008, our subsidiary Hydro One Brampton filed an application for 2009 rates on the basis of the OEB's second-

generation IRM policy, which incorporates an OEB-upproved formula that considers inflation and efficiency targets. On March 13, 

2009, the OEB released its decision and revised rates, including an amount of $1.00 per month per metered customer for smart 

meters, were approved for implementation effective May 1, 2009. Overall, the impact on an average customer's total bill was 

marginal. 

On November 6, 2009, an application for 2010 distribution rates was filed on the basis of the OEB's second-generation IRM 

process. On April 13, 2010, the OEB released its decision regarding this rate application approving our submission on the basis of 

the OEB's cost-of-capital and second-generation IPM policies. The revised rates were implemented on May 1, 2010 and resulted in 

a reduction of approximately 8.3%, or 2.2% on an average customer's total bill in the year. 

22 	HYDRO ONE ANNUAL RENORI 2010 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

On June 30, 2010, we submitted a 2011 cost-of-service application, which was subsequently adjusted on September 2, 2010 to 
reflect the Canadian Accounting Standards Board's decision to allow the deferral of the adoption of International Financial Reporting 

Standards (IFRS) implementation for rate-regulated entities to January 1, 2012. The updated submission was filed on November 8, 

2010 and requested a revenue requirement of approximately $63 million. The oral hearing concluded on December 7, 2010 and 

we expect a decision in the first quarter of 2011 

Hydro One Remote Communities inc. 
On August 29, 2008, we filed a 2009 cost-of-service rate application proposing an increase of about $10 million over the 2006 

approved revenue requirement as a result of increased fuel costs On April 30, 2009, the OEB issued a decision regarding this rate 

application approving all work program expenditures and the proposed rate increase of 4.4% effective May 1, 2009, resulting in a 

4.4% increase to an average residential customer's total bill. 

On November 4, 2009, we filed an application for 2010 rates under the OEB's third-generation IRK which sought approval of an 

increase to basic rates for the distribution and generation of electricity effective May 1, 2010. The increase reflected the standard 

inflationary adjustments incorporated in the third-generation IRM applications. On April 14, 2010, the OEB issued a decision 

regarding this rate application under the OEB's third-generation IRM policies. The revised rates were approved for implementation 

on May 1, 2010 and reflect an increase of approximately  0.4%, ihe overall impact of which on an average customer's total bill is 

marginal. 

On October 15, 2010, an application for 2011 distribution rates was filed on the basis of the OEB's Ihird-generation IRM seeking 

approval for an increase of approximately 0.4% to basic rates for the distribution and generation of electricity effective May 1, 

2011. We expect to update our requested rate increase when the OEB issues its inflation and productivity factors for IRM filers in the 
first quarter of 2011. 

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

Revenues 

Year ended December 31 (Canadian dollars in mrPions) 2010 2009 $ Change % Change 
Transmission 1,307 1,147 160 14 

Distribution 3,754 3,534 220 6 

Other 63 63 

5,124 4,744 380 
Average annual Ontario 60-minute peak demand (M1/41 I 21,572 20,798 774 

Distribution - units distributed to customers (TM' 29.1 28.9 0.2 

' Systerr melded stutistics include pelimirlthy Liyuie.3 Lcn Deuerr 

Transmission 
Transmission revenues predominantly consist of our transmission tariff, which is based on the monthly peak demand for electricity 
across our highvoltage network. The tariff is designed to recover revenues necessary to support a transmission system with sufficient 

capacity b accommodate the maximum expected demand. Demand is primarily influenced by weather and economic conditions. 

Transmission revenues also include export revenue associated with transmitting excess generation to surrounding markets and 

ancillary revenues which are primarily attributable to maintenance services provided 10 generators and secondary use of our land 

rig his-of-way. 

Our transmission revenues were higher by $160 million, or 14%, compared to 2009. The OEB rendered its decision on our 2009 

and 2010 transmission rate application on May 28, 2009. The decision followed extensive oral and written reviews of our evidence 

submitted for the necessary funding in support of system requirements. The resulting tariff increases approved effective July 1, 2009 

and January 1, 2010 support our in-service capital investments in respect of the Province's supply mix policy, including the phase-out 

of coal-fired generation and addressing aging infrastructure. These increases resulted in higher revenues of $119 million. We also 

experienced higher revenues of $12 million associated with certain OEB-approved deferral accounts as a result of the decision. 

HYDRO ONE ANNUAL REFOR 12U 10 	23 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Also contributing to increased revenue was the higher average monthly peak demand experienced during the year. The average 

annual Ontario 60-minute peak demand and the overall related load were 774 MW and 9,282 MW higher than last year, 

respectively, resulting in higher revenues of $37 million. Weather was generally milder over the winter months and unseasonably 

hot during the summer months, compared to the prior year. Our system performed well under rhese extreme conditions. 

Transmission tariff revenue increases were partially offset by lower ancillary revenues of approximately $8 million due to the impact 

of the May 28, 2009 OEB decision. Consistent with this decision, ancillary revenues received in excess of OEB-approved levels are 

recorded in a regulatory liability account and are not recognized as revenue. 

Distribution 
Distribution revenues include our distribution tariff and amounts to recover the cost of purchased power used by our customers. 

Accordingly, distribution revenues are influenced by the amount of electricity we distribute, the cost of purchased power and our 

distribution tariff rates. Distribution revenues also include a minor amount of ancillary distribution services revenues, such as fees 

related to the use of our poles by the telecommunications and cable television industries, and miscellaneous charges such as those 

for late payments. 

Distribution revenues increased by $220 million, or 6%, compared lo 2009, including an increase in the recovery of higher 

purchased power costs of $148 million, as described below in the section °Purchased Power' 

Increases in revenue reflect Iwo OEB decisions on the distribution tariff rates of our subsidiary, Hydro One Networks. On May 13, 

2009, the OEB approved new tariff rates under the third-generation IRM effective May 1, 2009. On April 9, 2010, the OEB 

approved new tariff rates following our cost-of-service application effective May 1, 2010. Both decisions followed extensive written 

and oral reviews of the evidence we submitted for the maintenance and investment requirements of the distribution system, including 

those lo support renewable distributed generation. The combined impact of these decisions was an $82 million increase. These 

tariff rate increases support the maintenance and investment requirements of our distribution system and enable the safe and reliable 

delivery of electricity to our customers throughout Ontario. We also experienced higher revenues of $7 million associated with 

certain OEB-approved deferral accounts for the year. 

Distribution revenue increases were partially offset by lower energy consumption, resulting primarily from the milder weather in the 

first quarter of the year, partially offset by unseasonably hot weather during the summer months, which reduced our distribution 

revenues by $3 million compared to last year. In addition, revenues associated with the recovery of a distribution-related regulatory 

account ceased effective April 30, 2010, resulting in a revenue reduction of $16 million compared to last year. 

We also experienced higher ancillary revenues of approximately $2 million compared to the prior year. 

Purchased Power 
Purchased power costs incurred by our Distribution Business represent the cost of electricity delivered to customers within our 

distribution service territory and comprise the wholesale commodity cost of energy, the Independent Electricity System Operator's 

IIESO) wholesale market service charges, and transmission charges levied by thelESD. The commodity cost of energy for certain 

low-volume and designated customers is based on the OE B's Regulated Price Plan (RPP), which consists of a Iwo-tiered pricing 

structure with threshold amounts and a separate pricing structure for RPP customers on rime-of-use billing, both adjusted twice annually. 

The vast majority of RPP customers are anticipated to be on time-of-use billing by the end of June 2011. Customers rhat are not 

eligible for the RPP pay the market price for electricity, adjusted for the difference between market prices and the prices paid to 

generators under the Electricity Restructuring Act, 2004. A summary of the RPP for the reporting period is provided below. 
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Summary of RPP 

	

Tier Threshold (kWh/month) 	 Tier Rates (cents/kWh) 

Effective Date 	 Residential 	Non-Residential 	First Tier 	Second Tier 
November 1, 2008 	 1,000 	 750 	 5.6 	 6.5 

May 1, 2009 	 600 	 750 	 5.7 	 6.6 
November 1, 2009 	 1,000 	 750 	 5.8 	 6.7 

May 1, 2010 	 600 	 750 	 6.5 	 7.5 
November 1, 2010 	 1,000 	 750 	 6.4 	 7.4 

RPP Time-of -Use 
	

Rates (cents/kWh) 

Effective Date 
	

On Peak 
	

Mid Peak 	 Off Peak 
May 1, 2010 
	

9.9 	 8.0 	 5.3 

November 1, 2010 
	

9.9 	 8. 1 	 5.1 

Purchased power costs increased in 2010 by $148 million, or 6%, to $2,474 million for the year compared b 2009. The increase 

in our purchased power costs was primarily due to the impact of changes in the OE B's RPP rate for residential and other eligible 

customers of $84 million, higher transmission charges of $33 million due to the OEB's transmission rate decisions effective July 1, 

2009 and January 1, 2010, higher purchased power costs for customers that are not eligible for the RPP of $33 million and higher 

demand for electricity of $13 million. The effect of these increases was partially offset by lower wholesale market service charges 
levied by the IESO of $15 million. 

Operation, Maintenance and Administration 

Our operation, maintenance and administration costs consist of labour, material, equipment and purchased services which support 

the operation and maintenance of the transmission and distribution systems. Also included in these costs are property taxes and 

payments in lieu thereof on our transmission and distribution lines, stations and buildings. 

Operation, maintenance and administration costs for each of our three business segments were as follows: 

Year ended December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 2010 2009 $ Change % Change 
Transmission 416 438 (22) (5) 

Distribution 602 564 38 7 

Other 60 55 5 9 
1,078 1,057 21 2 

Transmission 
Operation, maintenance and administration expenditures incurred to sustain our high-voltage transmission stations, lines and rig his-

of-way decreased by $22 million, or 5%, in 2010 compared to last year. Within our work programs, we continued to invest 

in the safe and reliable operation of our transmission system that spans Ontario. We substantially completed our work program 

requirements while focusing on productivity. Effective delivery of our maintenance program, particularly on power equipment, 

enabled us b reallocate resources to the timely delivery of our expanded capital programs. Given favourable weather conditions 

in the first half of the year, together with productivity improvements resulting from the implementation of our entity-wide information 

system, we were able to effectively execute our work programs. As a result, we experienced lower planned line maintenance 

expenditures, lower expenditures in our forestry programs and lower requirements for engineering support. Our expenditures in 

support of our transmission system have also decreased by $8 million, primarily reflecting the redirection of resources and the 

elimination of capital tax by the Canada Revenue Agency (CRA) effective July 1, 2010, partially offset by a one-time contribution 

of $27 million to the pension plan during the last quarter of this year. 
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Distribution 
Operation, maintenance and administration expenditures required to maintain our low-voltage distribution system increased by 

$38 million, or 7%, compared to last year. Our work program expenditures increased by $11 million primarily as a result of 

favourable weather allowing us to deliver a larger forestry program in a cost-effective manner. Additionally, we experienced 

increased requirements within our customer care and engineering support programs, as well as within our smart meter program 

due to ongoing operational costs for installed meters. These expenditures were partially offset by lower expenditures within our lines 

maintenance program, including storm restoration, inspection and testing of pole transformers and field meter readings as installed 

smart meters begin to reach the required level of reliable communication. Our expenditures in support of our distribution system were 

higher by $27 million, reflecting a one-lime contribution to the pension plan of $21 million during the last quarter of this year as 

well as the redirection of resources, partially offset by the elimination of capital tax by the CRA effective July 1, 2010. 

Depreciation and Amortization 

Depreciation and amortization expense reflect a net increase of $46 million, or 9%, to $583 million in 2010 compared to last year. 

This was mainly attributable to increased depreciation and amortization expense of $45 million from new assets coming into service, 

consistent with our ongoing capital work program. A further increase of $7 million was the result of increased fixed asset removals 

associated with our capital projects. Amortization of regulatory and other assets decreased by $6 million due to the completion of 

the amortization of a distribution regulatory account during the second quarter of this year, partially offset by increased amortization 

of our environmental regulatory asset related b higher expenditures necessary b comply with Environment Canada's regulations on 

the removal of polychlorinated biphenyls. 

Financing Charges 

Financing charges increased by $34 million, or 11%, to $342 million for 2010 compared to last year. Financing charges increased 

by $40 million mainly due to an increased average level of debt, partially offset by a lower average effective interest rate. lower 

capitalized interest of $4 million also contributed to higher financing charges this year. Although we had higher levels of construction 

in progress, we capitalized less [niecest due to lower OEB-approved interest capitalization rates. These increases were partially offset 

by changes in interest income and other ancillary amounts which reduced overall financing charges by $10 million. 

Provision for Payments in Lieu of Corporate Income Taxes 

We make payments in lieu of corporate income taxes (PILs) to the OEFC in accordance with the Electricity Acl, 1 998 and on the 

same basis as if we were subject to federal and provincial corporate taxes. In providing for payments in lieu of corporate income 

taxes, the liability method is used. The change in future taxes relating to both the unregulated and regulated businesses, in respect 

of temporary differences that are not considered for the rate-making process, results in a future tax provision that is charged to the 

income statement. The change in future taxes relating to temporary differences of the regulated business that are considered for the 

rate-making process results in a regulabry asset or regulatory 

The provision for payments in lieu of corporate income taxes increased by $10 million, or 22%, to $56 million compared to 2009.  

The increase was primarily due to higher pretax income in the year, partially offset by higher net temporary differences related to 

certain regulatory accounts and a reduction in the statutory rate from 33.0% to 31.0%. 

Net Income 

Net income of $591 million was higher by $121 million, or 26%, compared to 2009 results. Revenues were affected by rhe 

OEB-approved rate decisions that support investments in respect of supply mix policies, including rhe phase-out of coal-fired 

generation, necessary maintenance and investment requirements of our systems, and investments to address aging infrastructure. 

These investments in our transmission and distribution systems are reflected in the increase of approximately $1.1 billion in our fixed 

assets from the prior year. Revenues were also affected by a higher average monthly peak demand due to hotter than average 

weather during the summer months, partially offset by milder weather during the winter months. These impacts were partially offset by 

a one-time contribution to our pension plan, which was enabled by our effective cost management over operating costs in the year. 
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Quarterly Results of Operations 

The following table sets forth unaudited quarterly information for each of the eight quarters from March 31, 2009 through December 

31, 2010. This information is derived from our unaudited interim Consolidated Financial Statements, which, in the opinion of 

management, have been prepared on a basis consistent with the audited annual Consolidated Financial Statements and which 

include the normal recurring adjustments necessary for fair presentation of our financial position and results of operations for those 

periods. These operating results are not necessarily indicative of results for any future period and should not be relied upon to predict 

our future performance. 

(Canadian dollars in millions 2010 2009 

Quarter ended Dec.  31 Sep. 30 Jun. 30 Mar. 31 Dec. 31 Sep. 30 Jun. 30 Mar. 31 
Total revenues' 1,280 1,360 1,165 1,319 1,207 1,144 1,090 1,303 

Net income' 99 218 105 169 111 100 82 177 

Net income b common shareholder' 94 214 100 165 106 96 77 173 

ilhe deniund fu, efechicify woefully folk,ws noi mu! wedherieloted fooliCItiCKLY, und thelefue uuo elechicity-feluted ievenues and plait, ul other fhinys beiny 

ecpul, would tend to be hiyhe, in the first and third ouoitels than in the second and kUlth (.11)(31h313. 

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES 

Our primary sources of liquidity and capital resources are funds generated from operations, deb capital market borrowings 

and bank financing. These resources will be used to satisfy our capital resource requirements, which continue to include capital 

expenditures, servicing and repayment of our debt, payments related 10 our outsourcing arrangements, investing activities and 

dividends. 

Summary of Sources and Uses of Cash 

Year ended December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 2010  2009 

Operating activities 1,164 892 

Financing activities 

Long-term debt issued 1,500 1,150 

Long-term debt retired (600) (400) 

Short-term notes payable (55) 55 

Dividends paid (28) (188) 
Investing activities 

Capital expenditures (1,570) (1,566) 
Long-term investments' (250) 

Other financing and investing activities 37 15 
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 198  (42) 

Represents $2,50 million of F'ioyince of Ontuio Floofiny Rote 

Operating Activities 

Net cash from operating activities increased by $272 million to $1,164 million compared to last year. This increase primarily 

reflects higher net income and changes to accounts payable balances due to increases such as our purchased power costs related 

to the demand for electricity, timing of prepayments from customers and increased taxes payable related to the implementation of the 

HST. Changes in accounts receivable balances and in certain regulatory accounts also impacted net cash from operations. 

Financing Activities 

Short-term liquidity is provided through funds from operations, our Commercial Paper Program under which we are authorized to 

issue up to $1,000 million in short-term notes with a term to maturity of less than 365 days, our revolving credit facility and through 

our holdings of Province of Ontario Floating Rate Notes, 
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At December 31, 2010, we had no short-term notes outstanding. The Commercial Paper Program is supported by a total of 

$1,500 million in liquidity facilities comprised of a $1,250 million committed revolving credit facility with a syndicate of banks 

and the holding of $250 million of Province of Ontario Floating Rate Notes. The short-term liquidly under this program together 

with anticipated levels of funds from operations should be sufficient to fund our normal operating requirements. During the second 

quarter; we increased the amount of our $500 million revolving credit facility, entered into in the first quarter; to $1,250 million and 

we extended the term of the facility to June 2013. Also in the second quarter, we cancelled the $750 million revolving credit facility 

which would have matured in August 2010. 

At December 31, 2010, we had $7,775 million in long-term debt outstanding, including the current portion. Our notes and 

debentures mature between 201 1 and 2046. Long-term financing is provided by our access to the debt markets, primarily through 

our Medium-Term Note (MTN) Program. On July 27, 2009, we filed a base shelf prospectus to renew our MTN Program for another 

25 months. The maximum authorized principal amount of medium-term notes issuable under this program until August 201 1 is 

$3,000 million, of which $1,250 million was remaining and available as at December 31, 2010. 

Rating 

Rating Agency 
DBRS Limited 

Moody's Investors Service Inc. 

S&P 

 

Short-term Debt 	 Long-term Debt 

R-1 (middle) 	 A (high) 

Prime-1 	 Aa3 

A-1 	 A-i- 

 

We have the customary covenants normally associated with long-term debt. Among other things, our long-term debt covenants 

limit our permissible debt as a percentage of our total capitalization, limit our ability to sell assets and impose a negative pledge 

provision, subject to customary exceptions. The credit agreements related b our credit facilities have no material adverse change 

clauses that could trigger default. However, the credit agreements require that we provide notice a the lenders of any material 

adverse change within three business days of the occurrence. The agreements also provide limitations that debt cannot exceed 

75% of total capitalization and that debt issued by our subsidiaries cannot exceed 10% of the total book value of our assets. We 

are in compliance with all of these covenants and limitations as of December 3 1, 2010. 

In 2010, we successfully issued $1,500 million in cost-effective long-term debt under oLI MTN Program, consisting of $1,000 million 

in the first quarter and $500 million in the third quarter. We repaid $600 million in maturing long-term debt, including $400 million 

in the second quarter and $200 million in the fourth quarter. In 2009, we issued $1,150 million in long-term debt under our MTN 

Program and repaid $400 million in maturing long-term debt. During 2010, we reduced our short-term notes by $55 million, all in 

the first quarter. In 2009, we increased our short-term notes by $55 million. 

Common dividends are declared at the sole discretion of our Board of Directors, and are recommended by management based 
on results of operations and maintaining the deemed regulatory capital structure. Financial condition, cash requirements and other 

relevant factors such as industry practice and shareholder expectations are also taken into consideration. Common dividends 

pertaining to the quarterly financial results are generally declared and paid in the immediately following quarter. 

In 2010, we paid dividends to the Province in the amount of $28 million, consisting of $10 million in common dividends and 

$1 8 million in preferred dividends. In the comparative period, we paid common dividends of $170 million and preferred dividends 

of $18 million. In 2010, cash dividends per common share were $100 compared to $1,700 per common share in 2009. Cash 

dividends per preferred share were $1.375 in each of 2010 and 2009. 

Our objectives with respect to our capital structure are to maintain effective access to capital on a long-term basis at reasonable 

rates, and to deliver appropriate financial returns. In order to ensure ongoing effective access to capital, we target b maintain an 

"A" category long-term credit rating. 
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Investing Activities 

Cash used for investing activities, primarily representing capital expenditures to enhance and reinforce our transmission and 

distribution infrastructure in the pubic interest, was as follows! 

Year ended December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions, 	 2010 	2009 	$ Change 	% Change  

Transmission 	 936 	 918 	 18 	 2 

Distribution 	 629 	 643 	 (14) 	 (2) 

Other 	 5 	 5 

1,570 	1,566 	 4 

Transmission 
Transmission capital expenditures increased by $18 million in 2010 10 $936 million, compared to 2009. Expenditures to expand 

and reinforce our transmission system were $524 million, representing an increase of $7 million over last year. These expenditures 

primarily consist of those on inter-area network and local area supply development projects. We completed a number of multi-year 

projects and put them in service and other projects are beginning to progress. We continued to invest in a number of inter-area 

network upgrade projects to support the Province's supply mix objectives for generation. We also continued to make investments 

in our local area supply projects to address growing loads. These expenditures were partially offset by a reduction in expenditures 

associated with load customer connection projects as well as local area supply and inter-area network projects that were substantially 

completed this year. 

Inter-area network upgrades with significant expenditures included the Bruce to Milton Transmission Reinforcement Project to connect 

refurbished nuclear and new wind generation sources in the Huron-Grey-Bruce area, and the Northeast Transmission Reinforcement 

Project, which will increase the North-South interface transfer capability to access available northern generation. The Northeast 

Transmission Reinforcement Project is comprised of work to install static var compensators (SVCs) at Porcupine and Kirkland Lake 

Transformer Stations. In addition, we are installing SVCs at Nanticoke and Detweiler Transformer Stations, which in the short term 

will support increased generation from the Bruce Nuclear faciliy and in the longer term, will enhance the transfer capability between 

Southwestern Ontario and the Greater Toronto Area (GTA). The installation of SVCs represents new technology to our system and 

we successfully put one of them in service at the end of the year. These investments were partially offset by lower expenditures 

associated with the installation of capacitor banks in Southwestern Ontario, which is substantially complete. This equipment provides 

interim protection to the Bruce Nuclear facility and expands transmission capacity in Southwestern Ontario. In addition, we incurred 

lower expenditures associated with the Cherrywocxi Transformer Station to Claireville Transformer Station Connection Project, 

which will enable greater transfer capability across the GTA to accommodate power flows resulting from the new Hydro-Quebec 

interconnection. This work was substantially completed in the fourth quarter of the year. 

Local area supply projects with expenditures in the period include our Woodstock Area Transmission Reinforcement Project, which 

will increase capacity to ensure supply reliability in the Woodstock area, and our Switchyard Reconstruction Project at our Burlington 

Transformer Station, which will increase the load supply capacity to ensure reliability of supply to customers in the area. The GTA 

West Transmission Reinforcement Project, which has increased capacity to ensure supply reliability in the area, as well as the 

Hurontario Switching Station to Jim Yarrow Municipal Transformer Station connection, which has increased transmission capacity 

in the Western Brampton area to allow for future load growth, were both substantially completed in the first quarter of this year, 

contributing to the reduction in expenditures compared to the prior year. The final completion of our Niagara Reinforcement Project 

continues to be delayed by the aboriginal land dispute in the Caledonia area. Discussions related to the Niagara Reinforcement 

Project continue between the aboriginal peoples involved and various government entities and we expect to complete this project 

when site access becomes available. 

Expenditures to sustain our existing transmission system were $309 million, representing an increase of $25 million compared to 

2009. This increase was primarily due to increased requirements related to the refurbishment and replacement of end-of-life lines 

and stations and to higher targeted replacements of aging components, specifically within our breaker installation program. We 

also experienced increased expenditures within our protection and control equipment program compared to the prior year. These 

increases were partially offset by lower expenditures within our Spare Transformer Purchase and Hub Replacement Programs. 
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Our other transmission capital expenditures were $103 million, representing a decrease of $14 million compared to the prior 

year This reduction from the prior year was due to expenditures in 2009 on our investment in an entitywide information system 

replacement and improvement project which replaced end-of-life systems and improved productivity, the second phase of which was 

completed during the third quarter of last year. Further impacting the period are expenditures incurred to enhance information security 

at our Ontario Grid Control Centre, which were lower compared to the prior year as we completed a number of enhancements 

to meet North American Electric Reliability Corporation requirements in 2009. Partially offsetting these reductions were higher 

expenditures in 2010 related to the strategic purchase of power transformers in order to ensure transmission reliability through 

availability of critical long delivery lead time items. 

Distribution 

Distribution capital expenditures decreased by $14 million to $629 million in 2010, compared to the prior year. Capital 

expenditures to expand and reinforce our distribution network were $304 million, representing a reduction of $20 million compared 

to last year. We experienced reductions relating to expenditures on planned line development projects and demand line work for 

new connects and upgrades mainly due to a reallocation of resources to sustaining line work for line relocations. The reduction was 

also due to the substantial completion of smart meter installations across the province at the end of last year. During the year, these 

lower expenditures related to installations were partially offset by expenditures on the smart meter network infrastructure and the 

development and integration of the systems required for time-of-use billing, including meter reading capability and integration to the 

IESO meter data repository. Smart meter installations continued throughout the year as our total cumulative number of installations 

exceeded 1,314,000 as at December 31, 2010, thus nearing the program's total target. We currently have over 1,140,000 

meters enabled to support time-of-use billing and continue our efforts to migrate our customers to time-of-use pricing; over 553,000 

of our customers are now consuming power based on time-of-use pricing. Our program is one of the largest utility smart meter 

deployments in North America. These reductions were partially offset by the initiation of our Smart Grid Program which will enhance 

our operations and support distributed generation. 

Expenditures to sustain our distribution system were $275 million, an increase of $28 million from 2009. This increase was primarily 

a result of higher requirements for transport and work equipment and the reallocation of resources from planned line development 

projects to demand line work for line relocations in support of municipal road widening projects which are partially funded by the 

municipalities. These increases were partially offset by reduced expenditures as a result of fewer storms in 2010. 

Our other distribution capital expenditures were $50 million, representing a reduction of $22 million from 2009. This reduction 

primarily reflects our higher prior period investments in our entrtywide information system replacement and improvement project .  

Future Capital Expenditures 

Our capital expenditures in 2011 are budgeted at approximately 

$1.8 billion. The 2011 capital budgets for our Transmission and Distribution 

Businesses are about $1,050 million and $750 million, respectively. 

Capital expenditures, as shown in the accompanying chart, are expected to 

be approximately $1.9 billion in 2012 and approximately $1.8 billion in 

2013. These expenditures reflect the sustainment requirements of our 

aging infrastructure, budgeted at approximately $550 million in 2011, 

$700 million in 2012 and $700 million in 2013. Development projects, 

including smart grid, inter-area network upgrades that reflect supply mix 

policies to phase out coal generation, local area supply requirements and 

requirements to enable distributed generation, are budgeted at approximately 

$950 million in 2011, $950 million in 2012 and $850 million in 

2013. These development investments also reflect customer demand work, 

distributed generation connections and the rollout of smart grid. Other capital 

expenditures amount to approximately $300 million in 2011, $250 million 

in 2012 and $250 million in 2013. These expenditures include the 

replacement of our customer billing system to address end-of-life requirements 

and to further productivity realization from our entitywide SAP platform. 
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Transmission 
Transmission system capital expenditures are anticipated to be significant over the period 2011 to 2013, amounting to about 

$3.2 billion, including program expenditures to manage the replacement and refurbishment of our aging transmission infrastructure to 

ensure a continued reliable supply of energy to customers throughout the province. The investment plan includes targeted component 

replacements of air blast circuit breakers, switchgear, autotransformers and wood pole structures to maintain the performance of 

assets. Also, the reconstruction of transformer stations is planned for the Burlington TS 115 kV, Leaside, Hearn and Manby stations to 

ensure future reliability. These sustaining investments are necessary to ensure that we will continue to meet all regulatory, compliance, 

safety and environment objectives. 

Inter-area network projects, required to accommodate new generation related to supply mix policies, include our Bruce to Wilton 

Transmission Reinforcement Project to connect nuclear generation and new wind generation in the Huron-Grey-Bruce area. This 

project is anticipated to be in service in 2012. We are also installing station equipment, including SVCs in Southwestern Ontario, 

to increase transmission capacity. This equipment will mitigate congestion and enhance the transfer capability between Northern 

Ontario and Southern Ontario and the transmission system north of Sudbury enabling new hydroelectric generation. 

The budgeted capital expenditures do not include any amounts associated with new lines projects articulated in the September 

21, 2009 letter to us from the then Minister of Energy and Infrastructure. We suspended work on those projects after the Minister 

of Energy and Infrastructure requested our Company to focus on those items that are essential to the safe and reliable operation of 

our existing assets or projects already under development and approved by the OEB, or are critical to the connection of renewable 

generation projects that have been identified by the OPA as pan of the government's green energy agenda. In addition, in August 

2010, the OEB introduced competition for transmission expansion projects. As a result, we did not include in our budgeted capital 

expenditures any projects that could meet the definition of expansion under the DEB's competitive framework. 

On December 22, 2010, we received a letter from the Minister of Energy requesting us to proceed with the necessary planning and 

development work to advance specified transmission projects and upgrades to the system that will safely and reliably accommodate 

additional renewable energy from small generation projects. According to the LTEP, we are expecting to receive direction to carry out 

the three specified projects. These transmission projects, which are identified in the LTEP, include: 

• Southwestern Ontario Series Compensation 

• Reconductoring Sarnia to London circuits 

• New transmission line west of London 

While our current budget does not include the estimated capital expenditures associated with these projects and upgrades to the 

system, they could be up to approximately $1 billion over a period to the in-service dates of these projects. 

The actual timing and expenditures of many development projects are uncertain as they are dependent upon various approvals 

including OEB leave-toconstnxi approvals and environmental assessment approvals; negotiations with customers, neighbouring 

utilities and other stakeholders; and consultations with First Nations and Metis communities, as well as the timing and level of 

generator contributions for enabling facilities under recent amendments to the TSC. We will not undertake large capital expenditures 

without a reasonable expectation of recovering them in our rates, including those recently requested by the Ministry of Energy. 

Distribution 
Capital expenditures for the period 2011 to 2013 are estimated to be approximately $2.3 billion, including capital expenditures 

to support the sustainment of our capital infrastructure. Our core work will continue to focus on the performance of our aging 

distribution asset base in order to improve system reliability. There is a continuation of investments to replace end-of-life equipment 

and components, implement smart grid and focus on wood pole replacements and submarine cables to address deteriorating assets. 

In addition, we will continue to address the demand for new load connections, trouble calls, storm restoration and system capability 

reinforcement. 

Our Distribution sustainment work program has been reduced consistent with the decision on our distribution application for the 2010 

and 2011 rate years and as a result our work program will include in it a gradual increase in our intended Wood Pole Replacement 

Program to address the aging poles and deterioration. 
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Distribution development expenditures over the period are primarily related 10 customer demand work such as connections and 

upgrades, smart grid, distributed generation connections, including station upgrades, protection and control, new lines and some 

contestable work for which we receive capital contributions. During the 2011 and 2012 period we are managing a significant 

number of projects throughout the province to address load growth and the stress on our system components. 

Distributed generation expenditures are based on our estimate of the number of anticipated connections, taking into account the 

most recent data available from the OPA. Although distributed generation demand is expected to increase over the planning period, 
connection work is contestable and therefore the volume of work could fluctuate. 

The Company's current billing system is near end of life, and costly to maintain and operate. The replacement of this system is 

anticipated to commence in 2011 and be completed by 2014. 

Summary of Contractual Obligations and Other Commercial Commitments 

The following table presents a summary of our debt and other major contractual obligations under Canadian GAPP, as well as other 

major commercial comm it men ts: 

December 31, 2010 (Canadian dollars inmillions) Tatd 2011 2012/2013 2014/2015 After 2015 
Contractual Obligations (due by year): 

Long-term debt - principal repayments 7,775 500 1,200 1,000 5,075 
Long-term debt - interest payments 6,599 405 732 614 4,848 
Inergi LP (Inergi) outsourcing agreement' 569 143 274 152 
Operating lease commitments 53 5 14 9 25 
Environmental and asset retirement obligations' 391 23 60 73 235 
Total Contractual Obligations° 15,387 1,076 2,280  1,848 10,183 

Other Commercial Commitments (by year of expiry): 

Bank line' 1,250 1,250 
Letters of credit° 114 114 
Guarantees4  326 326 
Pension 307 145 162 
Total Other Commercial Commiimeni5 1,997 585 1,412 

' On Muy I, 2010, the Can 'puny extended the Master Services 	 Irteryi its u fuithei thee-rui period. I he tern, of the asieement, which would 

have expand an Imbluoly 29, 201 2, hos been extended k hebr xury 2f3, 201.5. Uncle' the extended oymerrient, 'nets' will provide business plocessins and 

information technolosy outsouiciry services, us well an cum system support 'elated primal ily to SAP iniplernentotion and uptiurizotion. the arruunts disclosed 

include on estinuted annual inflation udjustii ient in the ionse of 1.8% kJ 3.0%. 

2  We iecoid u liability for the estiniated future expenditures ussuciuted with the phase-out and desti 	of PCI3contarni noted insulating oil lion' eleuI icul  
equipment and fa' the assessment and ieinedution of contaminated lards as well as asset letiienientobl(yotionsfu the iernovul of asbestos-it:014(57'i muted 

iirotedul horn an facilities and the deconiiiiissionins arid removal of uu svvitchins station lowted ut Ontono Newer Genenstiun's Abitibi Canyon Generating 

Stution. Ihe wyendituie pattern reflects cur planned work plosion' ki the per iod.  

1  Asa backstop kin au conurreiciul pope, plosion', we have a $ 1,250 	ievolvins standby credit fcx.:ility with a syndicate of banks which matures in 

June 2013. 

We currently have bunk letters of credit of $ I 1 3 indium outstanding lekeing to mtiierimin compensation unonsenent5 IIKA.s}. I he other $1 inilhon included in 

letters of credit pertains to opeidins letters of credit. On Novernbe I, 20 10, we increased an, letter of credit 'elated to RCA5 to oppluxiiirotely $1 1 3 million 

Parr $10/ million. We hove also provided piLdentiol support to the IESO on behalf Of QUI subsidiar ies an required by the IESO's Musket Rules, wins puientul 

suarantees of up to u 	 Of $325 1111111U11 and all behalf of two dish ibutois 115i ny sucuanCms of up to a niuxiiiiurri of $660 thJusund. Althoush na letters 

of credit are required ful pndentid support, we would have to iesurire piovidiny bunk loners of credit if our cledit 'ohms deter ichuted to below the 

"Au" cotesoiy. 

Conti ibutions to the pension fund use mode aim iiionth in onecns. Can tiibutians fur 201 1 are bused Oil an artuurial valuation filed in Septenibei 20 10 and 

effective Deoembei 3 1, 2009. On, usual pension contiibutions fact 201 I and 20 12 will depend on futum investment ietums, clauses in benefits cm oducnial 

assumptions. Based on cul 'erg facto's, we estimate au' 	pension con tiibutions to be appioxiniutely $ 14.5 million in 201 1 and $149 million in 20 12 
bused an the level of pensionable euinilly5. GYItlibUti,J117 fa' 20 13 wit be based all all OdUCJIi01 valuation effective Deutnribei 3 I, 201 2. 

In addition, the Company has entered into various o9eements to pu chase scuds ar services in support of cap wink ployicans that are enfoiceuble and lesolly 

bindi9. None of these usieen rents um considered 	 mute' id, and the nioichity do not extend beyond December 3 I , 201 I. 
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The amounts in the above table under long-term debt - principal repayments are not charged to our results of operations, bur are 

reflected on our Balance Sheet and Statement of Cash Flows. Interest associated with this debt is recorded under financing charges 

on our Statement of Operations or in our capital programs. Payments in respect of operating leases and our outsourcing agreement 

with lnergi are recorded under operation, maintenance and administration costs on our Statement of Operations or within our capital 

expenditures. Expenditures resulting from our environmental programs and asset retirement obligations are not charged b our results 

of operations, but are reflected on our Balance Sheet and Statement of Cash Flows. 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Related party transactions primarily consist of our transmission revenues received from, and our power purchases payments made to, 

thelESO, which is a related party by virtue of its status as an agency of our shareholder, the Province. The year-over-year changes 

related to these amounts are described more fully in our discussion of our transmission revenues and purchased power costs. Other 

significant related party transactions include our dividends which are paid to the Province and our payments in lieu of corporate 

income taxes which are paid or payable to the OEFC. In January 2010, we purchased $250 million of Province of Ontario Fbaring 

Rate Notes, maturing on November 19, 2014, as a form of alternate liquidity to supplement our bank credit facilities. 

CONSIDERATIONS OF CURRENT ECONOMIC CONDITIONS 

Effect of Load on Revenue 

The load is expected b decline in 2011 due b the impact of CDM and Embedded Generation, partially offset by bad growth 

associated with economic growth in all sectors of the Ontario economy. Overall load growth due to the economy alone is forecasted 

to be approximately 1.0%, with the industrial sector slightly outperforming residential and commercial sectors. The load impact of 

CDM and Embedded Generation is expected to have a substantial negative impact on load growth of approximately 2.0% and 

0.3%, respectively. On the whole, load is expected to decline by about 1.3%. A reduction in load, beyond our toad forecast 

included in our approved revenue requirement, would negatively impact our financial results 

Effect of Interest Rates 

Changes in interest rates will impact the calculation of our revenue requirements filed with the (DEB. The first component impacted by 

interest rates is the return on equity. The OEB-approved adjustment formula for calculating return on equity will increase or decrease 

by 50% of the change between the cu-rent on Canada Bond Forecast and the risk-free rate established ar 4.25% and 50% of 

the change in the spread in 30-year 'A'-rated Canadian utility bonds over the 30-year benchmark Government of Canada bond 

yield established ar 1.415%. We estimate that a 1% decrease in the forecasted long-term Government of Canada bond yield or 

the "A'-rared Canadian utility spread used in the current OEB formula for determining our rate of return on equity would reduce 

our Transmission Business' results of operations by approximately $16 million and our Distribution Business' results of operations by 

approximately $10 million. The second component of revenue requirement that would be impacted by interest rates is the return on 

debt. The difference between actual interest rates on new debt issuances and those approved for return by the OEB would impact 

our results of operations. 

Input Costs and Commodity Pricing 

In support of our ongoing work programs, we are required to procure materials, supplies and services. To manage our total costs, 

we regularly establish security of supply, strategic material and services contracts, blanker orders, vendor alliances and manage a 

stock of commonly used items. Such arrangements are for a defined period of time and are monitored. Where advantageous, we 

develop long-term contractual relationships with suppliers to optimize the cost of goods and services and to ensure the ava ibbility  
and timely supply of critical items. As a result of our strategic sourcing practices, we do not foresee any adverse impacts on our 

business from current economic conditions in respect of adequacy and riming of supply and credit risk of our counterparties. Further, 

we have been able to realize significant savings through our strategic sourcing initiative& 
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Debt Financing 

Cash generated from operations, after the payment of expected dividends, will not be sufficient to fund capital expenditures or 

meet debt maturiy repayments and other liquidiy requirements (see Risk Management and Risk Factors - Risk Associated with 

Arranging Debt Financing). We rely on debt financing through our MTN Program and Commercial Paper Program. Our Commercial 

Paper Program is supported by a total of $1,500 million in liquidity facilities as of December 31, 2010, which is comprised of 
❑ $1,250 million syndicated bank line of credit and the holding of $250 million of Province of Ontario Floating Rate Notes. In 

2010, we continued issuing sufficient cost-effective debt financing through the MTN Program and Commercial Paper Program in 

the Canadian capital markets and we arranged sufficient available liquidity. Economic conditions continue to improve from the 
credit crisis of late 2008. 

Pension 

During 2010, the deferred pension asset reported on our Balance Sheet increased by $36 million to $460 million. We contributed 

$143 million into our pension plan in 2010 and made an additional payment of $48 million in December. We incurred 

$1 54 million in net periodic pension benefit cost. On an accounting basis, the 2009 unfunded benefit obligation of $230 million 

increased by $67 million to $297 million. The plan experienced positive returns of about 9.96% in the year. However, the plan 

was also impacted by an increase in the accrued benefit obligation, primarily as a result of a decrease in the discount rate used 
for accounting purposes (see Critical Accounting Estimates - Employee Future Benefits). 

RISK MANAGEMENT AND RISK FACTORS 

We have an enterprise risk management program that aims at balancing business risks and returns. An enterprise-wide approach 
enables regulatory, strategic, operational and financial risks to be managed and aligned with our strategic business objectives. 

While our philosophy is that risk management is the responsibility of all employees, the Audit and Finance Committee of our Board 

of Directors annually reviews our Company's risk tolerances, our risk profile and the status of our internal control framework. Our 

President and Chief Executive Officer has ultimate accountability for risk management. Our Leadership Team, comprised of direct 

reports to the President and Chief Executive Officer, provides senior management oversight of risk in our Company. Our Chief Risk 
Officer is responsible for the ongoing monitoring and reviewing of our risk profile and practices, and our Executive Vice-President 
and Chief Financial Officer is responsible for ensuring that the risk management program is an integral part of our business strategy, 
planning and objective setting. Each of our subsidiaries, as well as key specialist functions and field services, are required to 

complete a formal risk assessment and to develop a risk mitigation strategy. 

The Audit and Finance Committee, the President and Chief Executive Officer, and the Executive Vice-President and Chief Financial 

Officer are supported by our Chief Risk Officer. This support includes coordinating risk policies and programs, establishing risk 

tolerances, preparing risk assessments and profiles and assisting line and functional managers in fulfilling their responsibilities. Our 

internal audit staff is responsible for performing independent reviews of the effectiveness of risk management policies, processes 
and systems. 

Ownership by the Province 

The Province owns all of our outstanding shares. Accordingly, the Province has the power to determine the composition of our Board 

of Directors and appoint the Chair, and influence our major business and corporate decisions. We and the Province have entered 

into a memorandum of agreement relating to certain aspects of the governance of our Company. Pursuant to such agreement, 

in September 2008 the Province made a declaration removing certain powers from our Company's directors pertaining to the 
off-shoring of jobs under the outsourcing arrangement with Inergi LP. In 2009, the Province required Hydro One, among other 

agencies, to adhere to certain accountability measures regarding consulting contracts and employee travel, meal and hospitaliy 
expenses. The Province may require us to adhere Fo further accountabiliy measures or may make similar declarations in the future, 
some of which may have a material adverse effect on our business. Hydro One's credit ratings may change with the credit ratings 

of the Province, to the extent the credit rating agencies link the two ratings by virtue of Hydro One's ownership by the Province. 

Conflicts of interest may arise between us and the Province as ❑ result of the obligation of the Province to act in the best interests 

of the residents of Ontario in a broad range of matters, including the regulation of Ontario's electricity industry and environmental 
matters, any future sale or other transaction by the Province with respect to its ownership interest in our Company, the Province's 
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ownership of Ontario Power Generation Inc. (OPG), and the determination of the amount of dividend or proxy tax payments. We 

may not be able to resolve any potential conflict with the Province on terms satisfactory to us, which could have a material adverse 

effect on our business.  

Regulatory Risk 
We are subject to regulatory risks, including the approval by the OEB of rates for our transmission and distribution businesses that 

permit a reasonable opportunity to recover the estimated costs of providing safe and reliable service on a timely basis and earn the 

approved rates of return. 

The OEB approves our transmission and distribution rates based on projected electricity load and consumption levels. If actual load 

or consumption falls below projected levels, our rate of return for either, or both, of these businesses could be materially adversely 

affected. Also, our current revenue requirements for these businesses are based on cost assumptions that may not materialize. There is 

no assurance that the OEB would allow rate increases sufficient to offset unfavourable financial impacts from unanticipated changes 

in electricity demand or in our costs. 

Our load could also be negatively affected by successful CDM programs. The recently proposed LTEP directs the OPA LO achieve 

interim CDM targets of 4,550 MW of provincial summer peak demand and 13 IVVh of cumulative energy savings by rhe end of 

2015. The Minister of Energy and Infrastructure's March 31, 2010 directive set a provincewide LDC CDM target of 1,330 MW 

and 6,000 GVVh for the period 2011-2014. Our targets have been set at 214 MW and 1,130 GWh for the period 2011-2014. 

These expectations are factored into our revenue requirements for OEB approval, to ensure that the targeted CDM accomplishments 

do not result in deteriorated revenues. There is a risk that our revenues would be reduced if these targets are exceeded. In September 

2010, the Conservation and Demand Management Code for Electricity Distributors was established and sets out the obligations and 

requirements that licensed distributors must comply with in relation to the CDM targets set out in their licenses. This code also sets out 

the conditions and rules that licensed distributors are required to follow if they choose to use OEB-approved CDM programs to meet 

their CDM targets. The implementation of this code could further deteriorate revenues without appropriate compensation. The OEB 

has recognized the need to compensate utilities for such lost revenue, but the approach, level and timing of any such compensation 

mechanism is yet to be determined. We are also subject to risk of revenue loss from other factors, such as economic trends and 

weather. 

In response to the LTEP, we expect to make investments in the coming years to connect new renewable generating stations. There 

is the possibility that we could incur unexpected capital expenditures to maintain or improve our assets, particularly given that new 

technology is required to support renewable generation and unforeseen technical issues may be identified through implementation 

of projects. The risk exists that the OEB may not allow full recovery of such investments in the future. To the extent possible, we aim 

to mitiga te this risk by ensuring prudent expenditures, seeking from the regulator clear policy direction on cost responsibility, and 

pre-approval of the need for capital expenditures. 

While we expect all of our expenditures to be fully recoverable after OEB review, any future regulatory decision to disallow or limit 

the recovery of such costs would lead to potential asset impairment and charges lo our results of operations, which could have a 

material adverse effect on our Company. 

Risk Associated with Arranging Debt Financing 
We expect to borrow to repay our existing indebtedness and fund a portion of capital expenditures. We have substantial amounts 

of existing debt which mature between 2011 and 2014, including $500 million maturing in 2011 and $600 million maturing 

in 2012. We plan to incur capital expenditures of approximately $1.8 billion in 2011 and capital expenditures are expected to 

increase to approximately $1.9 billion in 2012. Cash generated from operations, after the payment of expected dividends, will 

not be sufficient to fund the repayment of our existing indebtedness and capital expenditures. Our ability to arrange sufficient and 

cost-effective debt financing could be materially adversely affected by numerous factors, including the regulatory environment in 

Ontario, our results of operations and financial position, market conditions, the ratings assigned to our debt securities by credit rating 

agencies and general economic conditions. Any failure or inability on our part to borrow substantial amounts of debt on satisfactory 

terms could impair our ability to repay maturing debt, fund capital expenditures and meet other obligations and requirements and, 

as a result, could have a material adverse effect on our Company. 
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Risk Associated with Transmission Projects 

The amount of power that can flow through our transmission networks is constrained due to the physical characteristics of transmission 

lines and operating limitations. Within Ontario, new and expected generation facility connections, including those renewable energy 

generation facilities connecting as a result of the FIT program stemming from the GEA, and bad growth have increased such that 

parts of our transmission and distribution systems are operating at or near capacity. These constraints or bottlenecks limit the ability 

of our network to reliably transmit power from new and existing generation sources (including expanded interconnections with 

neighbouring utilities) to load centres or meet customers' increasing loads. As a result, investments have been initiated to increase 

transmission capacity and enable the reliable delivery of power from existing and future generation sources to Ontario consumers. 

In marry cases, these investments are contingent upon one or more of the following approvals and/or processes: environmental 

approval(s); receipt of OEB approvals, which can include expropriation; and appropriate consultation processes, and where 

appropriate, accommodation with First Nations and Metis who may potentially be affected by a project. Obtaining these approvals 

and carrying out these processes may also be impacted by public opposition to the proposed site of transmission investments; thus 

there is a risk that necessary approvals may not be obtained in a timely fashion or at all. This will adversely affect transmission 

reliability and/or our service quality, both of which could have a material adverse effect on our Company. 

With the introduction on August 26, 2010 of the OEB's competitive transmission project development planning process, all interested 

transmitters will be required to submit a bid to the OEB for identified enabler facilities and network enhancement projects. Historically, 

we would have been awarded such projects through our rates and Section 92, leave to Construct, applications. The facilitation 

of competitive transmission could impact our future work program and our ability to expand our current transmission footprint. In 

addition, bid costs are only recoverable by the successful proponent. 

Asset Condition 
We continually monitor the condition of our assets and maintain, refurbish or replace them to maintain equipment performance and 

provide reliable service quality. Our capital and maintenance programs have been increasing to maintain the performance of our 

aging asset base. Execution of these plans is partially dependent on external factors, including the fad that opportunities to remove 

equipment from service to accommodate construction and maintenance are becoming increasingly limited due to customer and 

generator priorities. lead times for material and equipment have also increased substantially due to increased demand and limited 

vendor capability. 

Adjustments to accommodate these external dependencies have been made in our planning process. However, if we are unable to 

carry out these plans in a timely and optimal manner, equipment performance will degrade which may compromise the reliability of 

the provincial grid, our ability to deliver sufficient electricity and/or customer supply security and increase the costs of operating and 

maintaining these assets. This could have a material adverse effect on our Company. 

Work Force Demographic Risk 
By the end of 2010, approximately 1 8% of our employees were eligible for retirement and by 2012 there may be about 22% 

eligible to retire. Accordingly, our success will be tied to our ability to attract and retain sufficient qualified staff to replace those 

retiring. This will be challenging as we expect the skilled labour market for our industry to be highly competitive in the future. In 

addition, many of our employees possess experience and skills that will also be highly sought after by other organizations both 

inside and outside the electricity sector. We have already lost a considerable number of management staff, both those in executive 

positions and those who are logical successors for executive positions. Moreover, we must also continue to advance our training and 

apprenticeship programs and succession plans to ensure that our future operational staffing needs will be met. If we are unable to 

attract and retain qualified personnel, it could have a material adverse effect on our business. 

Environmental Risk 
Our health, safety and environmental management system is designed to ensure hazards and risks are identified and assessed, 

and controls are implemented to mitigate significant risks. This system includes a standing committee of our Board of Directors that 

has governance over environmental matters. Given the territory that our system encompasses and the amount of equipment that we 

own, we cannot guarantee, however, that all such risks will be identified and mitigated without significant cost and expense to our 

Company. The following are some of the areas that may have a significant impact on our operations. 
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We are subject to extensive Canadian federal, provincial and municipal environmental regulation. Failure to comply could subject 

us to fines and other penalties. In addition, the presence or release of hazardous or other harmful substances could lead to claims by 

third parties and/or governmental orders requiring us to take specific actions such as investigating, controlling and remediating the 

effects of these substances. We are currently undertaking a voluntary land assessment and remediation (LAR) program covering most 

of our stations and service centres. This program involves the systematic identification of any contamination at or from these facilities, 

and, where necessary, the development of remediation plans for our Company and adjacent private properties. Any contamination 

of our properties couki limit our ability to sell these assets in the future. 

We record a liability for our best estimate of the present value of the future expenditures required to comply with Environment 

Canada's polychbrinated biphenyl (PCB) regulations and for the present value of the future expenditures to complete our LAR 

program. The future expenditures required to discharge our PCB obligation are expected to be incurred over the period ending 

2025 while our LAR expenditures are expected to be incurred over the period ending 2020. Actual future environmental 

expenditures may vary materially from the estimates used in the calculation of the environmental liabilities on our balance sheet. 

We do not have insurance coverage for these environmental expenditures. 

As a result of regulatory changes, we expect to incur future expenditures to identify, remove and dispose of asbestos-containing 

materials installed in some of our facilities. With the assistance of an external expert, we completed a study to estimate the 

expenditures associated with removing such materials from our facilities. We used this information to record an asset retirement 

obligation at December 31, 2010 .  

There is also risk associated with obtaining governmental approvals, permits, or renewals of existing approvals and permits related 

to constructing or operating facilities. This may require environmental assessment or result in the imposition of conditions, or both, 

which could result in delays and cost increases. 

We anticipate that all of our future environmental expenditures will continue to be recoverable in future electricity rates. However, 

any future regulatory decision to dillow or limit the recovery of such costs could have a material adverse effect on our Company. 

Scientists and public health experts have been studying the possibility that exposure to electric and magnetic fiekis emanating from 

per lines and other electric sources may cause health problems. If it were to be concluded that electric and magnetic fields present 

a health risk, or governments decide to implement exposure limits, we could face litigation, be required to take costly mitigation 

measures such as relocating some of our facilities or experience difficulties in locating and building new facilities. Any of these could 

have a material adverse effect on our Company. 

Risk of Natural and Other Unexpected Occurrences 

Our facilities are exposed to the effects of severe weather conditions, natural disasters, man-made events including cyber and 

physical terrorist type attacks and, potentially, catastrophic events, such as a major accident or incident at a facility of a third party 

(such as a generating plant) to which our transmission or distribution assets are connected. Although constructed, operated and 

maintained to industry standards, our facilities may not withstand occurrences of this type in all circumstances. We do not have 

insurance for damage to our transmission and distribution wires, poles and towers located outside our transmission and distribution 

stations resulting from these events. Losses from lost revenues and repair costs could be substantial, especially for many of our 

facilities that are located in remote areas. We could also be subject to claims for damages caused by our failure to transmit or 

distribute electricity. Our risk is partly mitigated because our transmission system is designed and operated to withstand the loss of 

any major element and possesses inherent redundancy hat provides alternate means to deliver large amounts of power. In the event 

of a large uninsured loss we would apply to the OEB for recovery of such loss; however, there can be no assurance that the DEB 

would approve any such applications, in whole or in part, which could have a material adverse effect on our net income. 

Risk Associated with Information Technology Infrastructure 

Our ability to operate effectively in the Ontario electricity market is in part dependent upon us developing, maintaining and 

managing complex information technology systems which are employed to operate our transmission and distribution facilities, 

financial and billing systems, and business systems. Our increasing reliance on information systems and expanding data networks 

increases our exposure to information securily threats. Although security and system disaster recovery controls are in place, system 

failures or security breaches couki have a material adverse effect on our Company. 
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Pension Plan Risk 

We have a defined benefit registered pension plan for the majority of our employees. Contributions olhe pension plan are 

established by (actuarial valuations which are filed with the Financial Services Commission of Ontario on a triennial basis. The most 

recently filed valuation was prepared as al December 31, 2009 and was filed in September 2010. Our Company contributed 

$145 million to its pension plan in respect of 2010 lo satisfy minimum funding requirements. A one-time additional payment of 

$48 million was made in December 2010. Contributions beyond 2010 will depend on investment returns, changes in benefits and 

actuarial assumptions, and may include additional voluntary contributions from lime to lime Nevertheless, future contributions are 

expected to be significant. A determination by the OEB that some of our pension expenditures are not recoverable from customers 

could have a material adverse effect on our Company, and this risk may be exacerbated as the quantum of required pension 

contributions increase. 

Market and Credit Risk 

Market risk refers primarily to the risk of loss that results from changes in commodity prices, foreign exchange rams and interest 

rates. We do not have commodity risk. We do have foreign exchange risk as we enter into agreements lo purchase materials and 

equipment associated with our capful programs and projects that are settled in foreign currencies. This foreign exchange risk is not 

material. We could in Ihe future decide to issue foreign currency denominated deb which we would anticipate hedging back to 

Canadian dollars, consistent with our Company's risk management policy. We are exposed to fluctuations in interest rates as our 

regulated rate of return is derived using a formulaic approach, which is in part based on the forecast for long-term Government 

of Canada bond yields. We estimate that a 1% decrease in the forecasted bng-term Government of Canada bond yield used in 

determining our rate of return would reduce our Transmission Business' net income by approximately $16 million and our Distribution 

Business' net income by approximately $10 million. Our net income is adversely impacted by rising interest rates as our maturing long-

term debt is refinanced at market rates. We periodically utilize interest rate swap agreements lo mitigate elements of interest ram risk. 

Financial assets create a risk that a counter-party will fail ka discharge an obligation, causing a financial loss. Derivative financial 

instruments result in exposure to credit risk, since there is a risk of counter-party default. We monitor and minimize credit risk through 

various techniques, including dealing with highly-rated counter-parties, limiting total exposure levels with individual counter-parties, 

and by entering into master agreements which enable net settlement and by monitoring the financial condition of counterparties. We 

do not trade in any energy derivatives. We do, however, have interest rate swap contracts outstanding from time to lime. Currently, 

there are no significant concentrations of credit risk with respect to any class of financial assets. We are required to procure 

electricity on behalf of competitive retailers and embedded LDCs for resale to their customers. The resulting concentrations of credit 

risk are mitigated through the use of various security arrangements, including letters of credit, which are incorporated into our service 

agreements with these retailers in accordance with be OEB's Retail Settlements Code. The failure to properly manage these risks 

could have a material adverse effect on our Company. 

Labour Relations Risk 

The substantial majority of our emp 	are represented by either the Power Workers' Union (PWU) or the Society of Energy 

Professionals (Society). Over the past several years, significant effort has been expended to increase our flexibility to conduct 

operations in a more cost-efficient manner. Although we have achieved improved flexibility in our collective agreements, including 

a reduction in pension benefits for Society staff similar to a previous reduction affecting management staff, we may not be able 

to achieve further improvement. The existing collective agreement with the PVVU will expire on March 31, 2011 and the existing 

Society collective agreement will expire on March 31, 2013. We face financial risks related to our ability lo negotiate collective 

agreements consistent with our rale orders. In addition, in the event of a labour dispute, we could face operational risk related to 

continued compliance with our licence requirements of providing service to customers. Any of these could have a material adverse 

effect on our Company. 

Risk from Transfer of Assets Located on Indian Lands 

The transfer orders by which we acquired certain of Ontario Hydro's businesses as of April 1, 1999 did not transfer Ole to some 

assets located on lands held for bands or bodies of Indians under the Indian Act (Canada). Currently, OEFC holds these assets 

Under the terms of the transfer orders, we are required Io manage these assets until we have obtained all consents necessary to 

complete the transfer of title of these assets to us. We cannot predict the aggregate amount that we may have to pay, either on an 

annual or one-lime basis, to obtain the required consents. However, we anticipate having to pay more than the $761,500 that 

we paid to these Indian bands and bodies in 2010. If we cannot obtain consents from the Indian bands and bodies, OEFC will 
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continue b hold these assets for an indefinite period of time. If we cannot reach a satisfactory settlement, we may have 10 relocate 

these assets from the Indian lands to other locations at a cost that could be substantial or, in a limited number of cases, to abandon a 

line and replace it with diesel generation facilities. The costs relating 10 these assets could have a material adverse effect on our net 

income if we are not able to recover them in future rate orders. 

Risk Associated with Outsourcing Arrangement 

Consistent with our strategy of reducing operating costs, we amended and extended our outsourcing services agreement with 

Inergi LP, effectively renewing the arrangement until February 28, 2015. If the agreement with Inergi LP is terminated for any reason, 

we could be required to incur significant expenses b transfer to another service provider, which could have a material adverse effect 

on our business, operating results, financial condition or prospects. 

Risk from Provincial Ownership of Transmission Corridors 

Pursuant to the Reliable Energy and Consumer Protection Act, 2002, the Province acquired ownership of our transmission corridor 

lands underlying our transmission system. Although we have the statutory right to use the transmission corridors, we may be limited in 

our ability to expand our systems. Also, other uses of the transmission corridors by third parties in conjunction with the operation of 

our systems may increase safety or environmental risks. 

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 

The preparation of our financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgements that affect the reported amounts of 

assets, liabilities, revenues and costs, and related disclosures of contingencies. We base our estimates and judgements on historical 

experience, current conditions and various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the 

results of which form the basis for making judgements about the carrying values of assets and liabilities as well as identifying and 

assessing our accounting treatment with respect to commitments and contingencies. Actual results may differ from these estimates 

and judgements under different assumptions or conditions. 

We believe the following critical accounting estimates involve the more significant estimates and judgements used in the preparation 

of our financial statements! 

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities 

Regulatory assets as at December 31, 2010 amounted to $1,055 million and principally relate to future income tax, environmental 

costs and the pension variance account. We have also recorded regulatory liabilities amounting to $612 million as at December 31 

2010. These amounts pertain primarily to deferred pension, the external revenue variance account, future income tax and retail 

settlement variance accounts. These assets and liabilities can be recognized for rate-setting and financial reporting purposes only if 

the OEB directs the relevant regulatory treatment or if future OEB direction is judged to be probable. If management judges that it is 

no longer probable that the OEB will include a regulatory asset or liability in the setting of future rates, the relevant regulatory asset 

or liability would be charged or credited to results of operations in the period in which that judgement is made. 

Environmental Liabilities 

We record liabilities and related regulatory assets based on the present value of the estimated future expenditures to be made to 

satisfy obligations related lo legacy environmental contamination inherited upon our de-merger from Ontario Hydro in 1999. These 

liabilities fall into Nvo main categories: the management of assets contaminated with PCB-laden mineral oils and the assessment 

and remediation of contaminated lands. In determining the amounts to be recorded as environmental liabilities, we estimate the 

current cost of completing mitigation work and make assumptions for when the future expenditures will actually be incurred in order 

to generate future cash flow information. A long-term inflation assumption of 2% has been used to express our current cost estimates 

as estimated future expenditures. Future estimated LAR expenditures are expected to be incurred over the period ending 2020 and 

are discounted using factors ranging from 3.75% to 6.25%, depending on the appropriate rate for the period when an increase in 

obligation was first recorded. Consistent with the requirements of Environment Canada's PCB regulations issued on September 17, 

2008, estimated future PCB remediation expenditures are expected to be incurred over the period ending 2025 and are discounted 

using factors ranging from 5.14% to 6.25%, depending on the appropriate rate for the period when an increase in obligation was 

first recorded. 
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Recording a liability now for such long-term future expenditures requires that many other assumptions be made, such as the number 

of contaminated properties and the extent of contamination; the number of assets to be inspected, tested and mitigated; oil volumes; 

and contamination levels of equipment with PCBs. All factors used in deriving our environmental liabilities represent management's 

best estimates based on our planned approach of meeting current legislative and regulatory requirements. These include Environment 

Canada's regulations governing the management, storage and disposal of PCBs. However, it is reasonably possible that numbers 

or volumes of contaminated assets, current cost estimates, inflation estimates and the actual pattern of annual future cash flows may 

differ significantly from our assumptions. Estimated environmental liabilities are reviewed annually or more frequently if significant 

changes in regulation or other relevant facts occur Estimate changes are accounted for prospectively. 

Employee Future Benefits 

We provide future benefits to our current and retired employees, including pension, group 	 ance, health care and long-term 
disability. 

In accordance with our rate orders, we record pension costs when employer contributions are paid to the pension fund (the Fund) 

in accordance with the Pension Benefits Act (Ontario). Our annual pension contributions in respect of 2010 were approximately 

$193 million, $145 million of which was based on an actuarial valuation effective December 31, 2009. Contributions after 2012 

will be based on an actuarial valuation effective December 31, 2012, and will depend on investment returns, changes in benefits 

or actuarial assumptions. Pension costs are also disclosed in the notes to the financial statements on an accrual basis. We record 

employee future benefit costs other than pension on an accrual basis. The accrual costs are determined by independent actuaries 

using the projected benefit method prorated on service and based on assumptions that reflect management's best estimates. The 

assumptions were determined by management recognizing the recommendations of our actuaries. 

The assumed return on pension plan assets of 6.50% per annum is based on expectations of long-term rates of return at the 

beginning of the fiscal year and reflects a pension asset mix consistent with the Fund's investment policy. During the year the Fund's 
target asset mix was 63% exposure to equities, 33% to fixed income and 4% in alternative assets consisting of hedge funds and 

private equity. Returns on the respective portfolios are determined with reference to published Canadian and U.S. stock indices and 

long-term bond and treasury bill indices. The assumed rate of return on pension plan assets reflects our long-term expectations. We 

believe that this assumption is reasonable because, with the Fund's balanced investment approach, the higher volatility of equity 

investment returns is intended to be offset by the greater stability of fixed income and short-term investment returns. The net result, on 

a long-term basis, is a somewhat lower return than might be expected by investing in equities alone. In the short-term, the plan can 

experience aberrations in actual return. In 2010, the return on pension plan assets was higher than this long-term assumption. 

The discount rate used to calculate the accrued benefit obligations is determined each year end by referring to the most recently 

available market interest rates based on AA corporate bond yields reflecting the duration of the applicable employee future benefit 

plan. The discount rates at December 31, 2010 decreased to 5.75% from 6.50% used at December 31, 2009 in conjunction with 

decreases in bond yields over this period. The decrease in discount rates has resulted in a corresponding increase in liabilities. 

Yields on AA corporate bonds decreased by approximately 70-120 basis points between December 31, 2009 and December 31, 

2010. Based on the duration of the plan's liabilities, discount rates would be 5.75% per annum for each of the pension plan, 

the post-retirement benefit plan and the post-employment plan. The overall discount rate applied to all plans for liability valuation 

purposes as at December 31, 2010 was 5.75%. 

Further, based on differences between long-term Government of Canada nominal bonds and real return bonds, the implied inflation 

rate has increased from approximately 2.50% per annum as at December 31, 2009 to within the range of 2.25% - 2.50% per 

annum as at December 31, 2010. Given the Bank of Canada's commitment to keep long-term inflation between 1.00% and 

3.00%, management believes that the current implied rate is too high to be used as a long-term assumption and as such, has used 

a 2.00% per annum inflation rate for liability valuation purposes as at December 31, 2010. 

The costs of employee future benefits other than pension are determined at the beginning of the year. The costs are based on 

assumptions for expected claims experience and future health care cost inflation. A 1% increase in the health care cost trends would 

result in an increase in service cost and interest cost of about $1 5 million per year and an increase in the year-end obligation of 

about $185 million 
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Employee future benefits are included in labour costs that are either charged to results of operations or capitalized as part of the cost 
of fixed assets. Changes in assumptions will affect the accrued benefit obligation of the employee future benefits and the future years' 

amounts that will be charged to our results of operations or capitalized as the cost of fixed assets. 

Goodwill and Asset Impairment 
In assessing the recoverability of goodwill, we must make assumptions regarding estimated future cash flows and other factors to 

determine the fair value of the distribution reporting unit. If these estimates or their related assumptions change in the future, we may 
be required to record impairment charges related to goodwill. An impairment review of goodwill was carried out during 2010 and 

we determined that the carrying value of our goodwill has not been impaired. 

Within our regulated businesses, carrying costs of our other assets are recovered in our revenue requirements and are included in 
rate base, where they earn a return. Such assets would be tested for impairment only in the event that the OEB disalkrwed recovery 

or if such a disalbwance was judged to be probable. We periodically monitor the assets of our unregulated Telecom Business for 

indications of impairment. No asset impairments have been recorded to date for any of our businesses. 

STATUS OF OUR TRANSITION TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (IFRS) 
On February 13, 2008, the Canadian Accounting Standards Board (AcSB) confirmed that publicly accountable enterprises will 
be required to adopt IFRS in place of Canadian generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) for interim and annual reporting 

purposes for fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2011, with comparative data also reported under IFRS. On September 10, 

2010, the AcSB decided to permit rate-regulated entities to defer their adoption of IF RS for one year. We plan on adopting the 

one-year deferral and therefore will adopt IFRS for our fiscal year beginning on January 1, 2012. 

In anticipation of the 2008 decision from the AcSB, we commenced our IF RS conversion project in 2007. The project has four 

separate phases. diagnostic, design and planning, solution development, and implementation. We completed the diagnostic 

phase in 2008. It involved a high-level review and identification of the major differences between current GAAP and IFRS in all 

subject areas, resulting in the identification of the areas of accounting difference with the highest potential to significantly impact our 

Company. 

In 2009, we completed the design and planning and the solution development phases of our project, including substantial 

completion of all our policy analyses. We are currently engaged in he implementation phase which is the final phase of our project. 

We are preparing b begin tracking our comparative results under IFRS next year. Our teams continue to monitor progress relative 
to key milestones, monitor developments of both the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB or the Board) and the AcSB, 

update recommendations and develop financial reports. We continue to have ongoing dialogue with our external auditors about 

possible cmcomes of our pro ject. 

We continue to evaluate the impacts of current and prospective IFRS on all of our business activities, including those of our 
subsidiaries and the impact on our entity-wide information system. We are simultaneously analyzing the impacts of changes on our 

disclosure controls and internal controls over financial reporting, our debt covenants and our performance measures. We continue 
to provide formal communications b our employees. We have completed numerous staff training sessions and will plan for future 
training sessions as standards continue to evolve. 

Accounting Policies 
The areas with the highest potential to significantly impact our Company upon conversion to IFRS, identified during the diagnostic 

phase, are regulatory assets and liabilities, fixed-assets, payments in lieu of corporate income taxes, employee future benefits, as 
well as initial adoption of IF RS under the provisions of IFRS 1, First-Time Adoption of IFRS (IFRS 1). 

Property, Plant and Equipment 

On May 6, 2010, the IASB issued the omnibus improvements to IFRS, which included an amendment to IFRS 1 applicable to entities 
with RRA. It includes transition relief for first-time adopters by offering an optional exemption to use the carrying amount of fixed assets 

or intangible assets as deemed cost on the transition date when the carrying amount includes costs that would not otherwise qualify 

for capitalization. We will elect this exemption for our regulated businesses. 
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Regulatory Assets and Liabilities 

RRA is not permitted under IFRS. RRA affects the timing of the accounting recognition of costs, revenues, losses and gains. The 

inability to recognize regulatory assets and liabilities after implementing IFRS in 2012 will impact our statement of operations by 

causing a change in the timing of recognition of these amounts. In the absence of rate-regulated accounting, the writeoff of our 

regulatory assets and regulatory liabilities would have resulted in a net reduction to retained earnings of approximately $249 million 
as at December 31, 2010 .  

In-Progress Construction and Development 

Current IFRS are significantly different from Canadian GAAP in terms of the expenditures that can be capitalized to in-progress 

construction and development programs and projects. Certain fixed asset and intangible asset expenditures are ineligible for 

capitalization under IFRS. In the absence of rate-regulated accounting, the estimated impact on our financial statements would 

have been a reduction of approximately $300 million in capital expenditures and an increase of approximately $300 million in 
operations, maintenance and administration expenditures had this accounting been followed in 2010. For 2012 rates, the OEB 

directed our Company to adopt this change in accounting classification for ineligible expenditures in determining the revenue 

requirement of our Transmission Business. We currently have approval for a deferral account for such expenditures within our 

Distribution Business and we anticipate applying for revenue requirement treatment, consistent with that directed for our Transmission 
Business, in our next distribution rate application. 

Employee Future Benefits 

In the absence of RRA, the continuation of accounting for expenditures related to employer-sponsored pension plans on a cash 

basis is not permissible. Regulatory assets and liabilities, representing the cumulative difference between our Company's pension 

contributions currently accounted for on a cash basis at the direction of the regulator, and the costs that would be recognized on 

an accrual basis under Canadian GAAP, would not meet the definition of assets or liabilities under IFRS and hence will require 

de-recognition at the IFRS transition date. We have assessed our options with respect to the recognition of accumulated, unamortized 

actuarial gains and losses associated with employment benefits. The possible alternatives to account for these pension and other 

employee benefit amounts include charging unamortized actuarial gains and losses immediately upon adoption under IFRS 1 or 

recognizing an adjustment to those amounts retrospectively to comply with IAS 19, Employee Benefits (IAS 1 9). In the absence of 
rate-regulated accounting, we intend to recognize a retrospective adjustment for these amounts under IAS 19, without the IFRS 1 

exemption. The impact of adopting IAS 19 retrospectively at December 31, 2010 would have been a reduction to retained 
earnings of $319 million. 

In April 2010, the IASB published an exposure draft, Defined Benefit Plans (Proposed Amendments to lAS 19 Employee Benefits), 

with significant implications for both financial position and income reporting. Deferred recognition of actuarial gains and losses 
would be eliminated and instead all changes in the defined benefit obligation and in the fair value of plan assets would be 

recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income when those changes occur. The exposure draft also proposed a new 

presentation approach where the changes in the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets would be segregated 

and separately disclosed as service cost, finance cost and re-measurement adjustments. Service cost and finance cost components 
would be recognized in the Statement of Operations. The re-measurement adjustments representing actuarial gains and losses would 

be recognized as part of other comprehensive income. As per the IASB's revised timeline, the final standard is expected in the first 
quarter of 2011 with an effective date not earlier than 2013. The new accounting standard when adopted in 2013 or in later years 

will result in higher volatility in the Statement of Comprehensive Income due to the recognition of the full amount of actuarial gains 

and losses. 

Payments in Lieu of Corporate Income Taxes 

We recognize future tax assets and liabilities in accordance with Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants Handbook section 
3465, Income Taxes, which was amended effective January 1, 2009 to bridge the convergence to IFRS. As such, we have 
determined that there is no potential fora significant impact for this class of transactions based upon contingent outcomes regarding 
transactions for payments in lieu of corporate income taxes. Without RRA, the impact on our provision for payments in lieu of 
corporate income taxes would be recognized using the liability method and there would be no regulatory accounts established for 

taxes to be recovered through future rates. As a result the provision for PILs for the year ended December 31, 201 0 would have 

been higher by approximately $100 million including the impact of a change in substantively enacted tax rates. 

42 	HYDRO ONt ANNUAL RLF'ORI 2010 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

OEB Consuttation 

On July 28, 2009, the OEB released some preliminary views on how regulatory reporting requirements will change in response to 

IFRS. The OEB has initiated a second phase of its consultative process to amend certain regulatory instruments. We are continuing to 

assess the impact of the CE B's report and other recommendations on our IFRS conversion project. 

On February 24, 2010, the 0E8 issued a leiter to all licensed electricity distributors and rate-regulated natural gas utilities for the 

purpose of clarifying the CE B's view released in July on accounting for overhead costs in the cost of new capital works effective 

January 1, 2011. The OEB stated in the letter that it would be requiring full compliance with IFRS requirements, including those in 

IAS 16, Property Plant and Equipmenr(lAS 16), as applicable to non-regulated enterprises and only where the OEB authorizes 

specific alternative treatment for regulatory purposes is altematiVe treatment acceptable. We continue to assess this guidance in light 

of the AcSB's revised implementation date. 

On November 8, 2010, the OEB published an amendment to a report it made on its policy, Transition to lntemorional Financial 

Reporting Standards. In response to the AcSB allowing rate-regulated entities the option to delay their adoption of IFRS to January 1, 

2012, the OEB has adjusted certain policy statements in the report to account for this choice. 

On November 17, 2010, the OEB initiated a working group to develop recommendations on how IFRS should be implemented 

together with IRJ‘A rate setting as well as issues that impact utilities under cost-of-service. We are actively participating in the working 

group. 

internal Control over Financial Reporting and Disclosure Controls and Procedures 
We are continuously analyzing the impacts of changes on our disclosure controls and procedures and internal controls over financial 
reporting as we proceed through our implementation of IFRS. Additional disclosure controls may be required to address first-time 

adoption and additional internal controls may be required to implement changes in our accounting policies and to support our 

ongoing IFRS reporting requirements. 

We have initiated the process of analyzing our current disclosure control and procedure and internal control documentation to 

identify changes required upon the adoption of IFRS. We have categorized each control process as low, medium or high-impact, 

based on the currently assessed risk of a major change being required upon implementation of IFRS. This ranking was completed 

in the fourth quarter of 2009. We completed updating the documentation for all of the low and medium-risk processes with IFRS 

emotion impact, including process documentation and risk and control matrices, during the second quarter of 2010. 

Completion of our documentation revisions for our high-risk processes had been put on hold pending an anticipated decision from 

the IASB on the allowance of rate-regulated accounting under IFRS due to the impact that would have had on these processes. We 

plan to initiate the completion of the revisions 10 our high-risk processes in the first quarter of 201 1 now that there is certainty that 

RRA will not be permitted upon our adoption of IFRS. Once our high-risk process documentation has been updated, we will begin 

walkthroughs of all of our revised process and control documentation for low, medium and high-risk processes At this time we 

estimate that we will complete this on a timely basis for reporting under IFRS in 2012. 

Financial Reporting Expertise 
The project's formal governance structure includes a steering committee consisting of senior level management from finance, 

information technology, treasury and our operations organizations. Project status reporting is provided to senior executive 

management and to the Audit and Finance Committee of our Board of Directors on a quarterly basis, or more often as necessary. 

The training of key finance and operational staff commenced in 2007 and has been ongoing. Training has also been given to the 

Audit and Finance Committee and senior executive management to communicate the key differences between Canadian GAAP and 

IFRS, and to provide them with an overview of the key impacts conversion could have on our financial statements. These groups are 

updated as developments in IF RS continue. Due to the extensive staffing requirements associated with such a large-scale project, an 

external expert advisor was engaged to assist with our IFRS conversion project, from the planning phase through to implementation. 
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The Audit and Finance Committee and senior management continue to be updated for key developments in IF RS and their potential 

impact on our financial statements. Updates are provided on at least a quarterly basis. This will continue through to our conversion 

to IFRS in 2012. During the third quarter we continued to provide training to our key finance and operational staff. To date, they 

have been trained in many key areas including property, plant and equipment, regulatory accounting, revenue recognition, liabilities, 

employee benefits, financial instruments and most recently income taxes. In addition to sessions on specific topics, we have also held 

one financial reporting update session. During rhe next year, we will continue to provide IFRS financial reporting update sessions on 

a regular basis. 

Business Activities 
The Company has the customary covenants normally associated with long-term debt. Among other things, our long-term debt 

covenants limit our permissible debt as a percentage of our total capitalization. Depending on the outcome of various exposure 

drafts under IFRS, we could undergo changes to our results that would impact our debt covenants. For example, covenants would 

be impacted as a result of de-recognition of regulatory assets and liabilities, accounting for expenditures related to employer- 

sponsored pension plans on an accrual basis versus a cash basis and the change in costs that are allowable versus disallowable for 

capitalization as part of the cost of self-constructed assets. As part of our IFRS transition project, we have been analyzing the impact 

of potential changes in accounting policy on our debt covenants and communicating potential scenarios and impacts analyses to our 

Audit and Finance Committee, Based on our current estimates, we would remain in compliance with our debt covenants. However, 

we met with our financial institutions and amended our credit agreement with the syndicate of banks to consider the potential impacts 

that IF RS may have on our covenants. Specifically, the calculation of our deb to total capitalization ratio was modified under this 

agreement for certain items to factor in IFRS impacts, such that the debt to total capitalization ratio is representative of what it was 

prior to IFRS. The same ratio is used to support rhe indenture agreement with our bondholders. Given our current estimates, the 

indenture agreement was not updated at that time because we anticipated that we would remain within the threshold for our debt to 

capitalization ratio given the information available at the time. We have continued to monitor the impact of conversion on our debt 

covenants as IFRS develops and as we finalize our policy choices under IFRS. Wirh the recent deferral of the IASB RRA project, we 

intend to re-assess the impact on our debt to capitalization ratio and identify appropriate next steps. 

information Technology (IT) Systems 
As part of an entity-wide system improvement project, many of our major financial systems were replaced in 2008 and 2009. To 

ensure that the future requirements of IF RS would be met, common team members were included within the governance structure of 

our IF RS project and the new entity-wide system implementation team. Al the some time, members of the IF RS implementation team 

were involved in the design of our new entitywide system. IT implications were identified and assessed during our diagnostic and 

design and planning stages of our IFRS project and were incorporated in the project's solution development stage. For example, 

the new system has been configured to track depreciation on a component level, based on the useful life of the asset, as currently 

required under IAS 16. The new system has also been configured 10 track allowable versus disallowable costs for capitalization 

under IAS 16. The system was designed with the maximum flexibility given the uncertainty of the outcome of certain impactive IASB 

projects at the time. When the AcSB deferred implementation of IFRS for rate-regulated entities, we began making the required 

changes to continue reporting under Canadian GAAP until January 1, 2012. We have substantially completed required changes 

to our systems in order to have them ready to report under IFRS beginning on January 1, 2012, with comparatives. 

Environmental Reporting 
We currently record environmental liabilities for the estimated future expenditures to comply with regulations that regrire us to 

remediate certain environmental issues Specifically, we have obligations related to PCB-contaminated equipment, chernica Ily-

contaminated lands adjacent to certain of our properties, and buildings that have asbestos- containing materials. We also currently 

record an asset retirement obligation (ARO) for the removal and disposal of asbestos-containing materials from some of our buildings. 

These obligations are recorded based on the present value of the future estimated cash flows. Under Canadian GAP this present 

value is calculated using a fixed discount rate which is the credit-adjusted risk-free rate at the date of recognition. When we transition 

to IFRS, we will be required to reassess this discount rate and, as it will no longer be fixed, we will be required to adjust it at each 

balance sheet date. The impact of this change on our recorded obligations cannot be predicted at this time as it will depend on 

future economic conditions. 
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Under Canadian GAAP, an ARO exists where there is a legal obligation to remove and dispose of an asset or remediate a 

contaminated site. Under IF RS an ARO also includes obligations that are not legal but which are constructive in nature. Such a 

constructive obligation may be inferred from other factors such as a reporting enterprise's policies, actions or public statements. Under 

IF RS, new constructive obligations will be recorded as AROs in cases where we expect that specific lands will no longer be used for 

operational purposes and where we expect to remove assets or remediate properties. 

DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND INTERNAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
Consistent with transitioning our financial systems to an SAP enterprise-wide platform as part of the entity-wide information system 

replacement and improvement project, we successfully implemented various Finance, Human Resources, Payroll and Investment 

Management modules in 2009. The reporting tool Business Intelligence/Business Warehouse was also implemented. This 

implementation included new controls over Internal Controls over Financial Reporting (ICFR) and the replacement of other controls 

in the previous environment. Our process documentation has been updated and the design and effectiveness of the controls have 

been tested. 

A Supply Chain Enhancement Project to develop an operating framework that outlines the strategy and objectives of supply chain 

is expected to be completed in 2011 The resulting new processes are currently being reviewed to a 	 cs the impact on the control 

environment. Process documents will be updated and controls will be tested for design and operating effectiveness in 2011. 

In compliance with the requirements of National Instrument 52-109, Certification of Disclosure in Issuers' Annual and Interim 

our Certifying Officers have reviewed and certified the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2010, 

together with other financial information included in our annual securities filings. Our Certifying Officers have also certified that 

disclosure controls and procedures (DCaP) have been designed to provide reasonable assurance that material information relating to 

our Company is made known within our Company. Based on the evaluation of the design and operation of our DC&P, our certifying 

officers concluded that our DC&P was effective as at December 31, 2010. Further, our Certifying Officers have also certified that 

ICFRs have been designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation 

of financial statements. Based on the evaluation of the design and operating effectiveness of the Company's ICFR, our Certifying 

Officers concluded that our ICFR was effective as at December 31, 2010. 

SELECTED ANNUAL INFORMATION 

The following table sets forth audited annual information for each of the three years ended December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010. 

This information has been derived from our audited annual Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Consolidated Statements of Operations 
Year ended December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions, except 

earnings per common share) 2010 2009 2008 
Revenues 5,124 4,744 4,597 

Net income 591 470 498 

Basic and fully diluted earnings per common share 5,727 4,528 4, 797  

Consolidated Balance Sheets 

Year ended December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions, except cash 

dividends per share) 2010 2009 2008 

Total assets 17,322 15,635 13,878 
Total long-term debt 7,778 6,881 6,133 

Cash dividends per common share 100 1,700 2,410 

Cash dividends per preferred share 1.375 1.375 1.375 
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OUTLOOK 
To achieve our vision to be the leading electricity delivery company in North America, we will continue to concentrate on our 

strategic objectives of safety, customer satisfaction, innovation and connecting renewable energy, reliability, protection of the 

environment, recruitment and knowledge retention, shareholder value and productivity. We work in an environment where safety 

is of the utmost importance. Our people underpin everything we do, and as such, we remain resolute in our commitment to safety. 

We will continue to focus our efforts to improve our customers' satisfaction by maintaining operational excellence through our 

efforts lo innovate and b renew transmission and distribution systems. In particular, we will focus on targeted investments to address 

overloaded or aging equipment at customer delivery points, power quality and network performance necessary to improve reliability, 

which will in turn improve customer satisfaction. We will also continue to assist customers in understanding and managing the 

impacts of building a dean energy future. 

The LTEP continues the energy strategies set out in the GEA introduced in 2009. The need to rapidly reduce the energy sector's 

carbon footprint dominates current environmental decision-making, leading to high expectation for immediate action and expansion 

of dean energy supply. Emerging technofogies and the need to connect dean and renewable generation challenges our 

Transmission and Distribution Businesses to recalibrate and establish a more flexible and smart electricity grid. 

We are *inning significant investments in transmission and distribution infrastructure and the continued proactive maintenance of our 

assets to ensure the electricity system's reliability in the public interest. Our investment plan supports the achievement of the Province's 

phase-out of coal-fired generation, renewable and nuclear objectives, facilitates the development and use of renewable energy 

resources, promotes system efficiency, sustains equipment performance, meets customers' service quality needs and facilitates the 

integration of new supply. 

In 2010, the CEEB approved our 2011 distribution rates with a revenue requirement of approximately $1,218 million. The revenue 

requirement approved was lower than requested, but should continue to support our work programs necessary to sustain our critical 

infrastructure, increase reliability through enhanced forestry management, support the smart meter requirements and invest in a 

sustainable electricity system that supports renewable generation. We will monitor and address any associated risks should they 

arise. We will be preparing evidence to support a potential distribution rate application for the years 2012 and 2013. 

In early 2011, the OEB approved our 2011 and 2012 transmission rates, with revenue requirements of approximately 

$1,346 million and $1,658 million, respectively. The approved revenue requirements will continue to support aging critical 

infrastructure, area supply projects and the Province's policy objectives. The 2012 revenue requirement includes the OEB's direction 

to adopt IFRS accounting for indirect overheads capitalized resulting in a $200 million shift between capital expenditures and 

operating expenses. 

The actual timing and expenditures in our plan are predicated on obtaining various approvals including OEB approvals and 

environmental assessment approvals; successful negotiations with customers, neighbouring utilities and other stakeholders; and 

consultations with First Nations and Metis communities. Further, we have made assumptions in the plan regarding cost responsibility 

and funding, consistent with the GEA regulations and amended TSC and DSC. 

As stewards of significant electricity assets, we are committed to the protection and sustainment of the environment for future 

generations. We are working towards being an environmental leader in our industry, by distributing clean and renewable energy, 

by upgrading our electricity grid, by minimizing the impacts of our own operations, and ensuring that environmental factors are 

considered in making our business decisions. Our commitment to the environment has been recognized by Canada's Energy 

Environment and Excellence group and Corporate Knights magazine. 
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Key enablers of the successful implementation of our work program are our human and material resourcing strategies. Our human 

resource strategy is focused on hiring through our association with universities, colleges and our unions, as well as skills development 

and retention. Significant retirement projections and increasing work volumes will result in an unprecedented number of new hires 

in the near term. With regard to materials, we are seeing increasing lead times and costs as marker shortages emerge globally. 

Consequently, materials sourcing strategies continue to be developed and implemented to ensure the availability of materials to 

support our work programs. 

We remain committed b a prudent and measured approach to distribution rarictnalization. In October 2009, the Government 

announced its intention to make the exemption from the electricity transfer lax permanent for transfers of electricity assets wirhin the 

public sector. We have considered and will continue to consider and respond to opportunities for acquisitions or divestitures, on a 

voluntary and commercial basis. The investment plan does no include any funding for any LDC acquisitions or divestitures. 

We will continue to increase enterprise value Ihrough productivily improvements and cost-effectiveness driven by technology. Over the 

last two years, we have replaced most of our core systems with an enterprise-wide information technology system. We will leverage 

Ihis inveztrnent as a platform for further effectiveness and efficiency gains, including enhancements in strategic sourcing. In addition, 

significant opportunity resides with smart meters and the proliferation of a smart grid, including energy efficiency, demand response 

and distribuied-resources technologies. 

Through the outlook period, we anticipate no changes to our role within the industry and expect that our financial returns will be 

sufficient to maintain our credit quaky. 

APPOINTMENT OF JANET HOLDER 

On July 1, 2010, Janet Holder was appointed to our Board of Directors. Ms. Holder is the President of Enbridge Gas Distribution 

and serves on the Board of Governors at the University of New Brunswick. 
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS AND INFORMATION 

Our oral and written public communications, including this document, often contain forward-looking statements that are based on 

current expectations, estimates, forecasts and projections about our business and the industry in which we operate and include 

beliefs and assumptions made by the management of our Company. Such statements include, but are not limited to statements about 

our strategy and our performance measures and targets; statements related to the IPSP; statements about smart meters including 

their capabilities, their timing of installation and our focus on building an advanced distribution solution that will leverage our 

smart meter investment; expectations regarding developments in the statutory and operating framework for electricity distribution 

and transmission in Ontario including the impacts of changes to codes, licences, rules, new regulatory guidelines, tariff rate 

changes, cost recovery, return on equity, rate structures, revenue requirements and impacts on an average customer's total bill; 

expectations regarding the timing and content of applications to, hearings with and decisions from the OEB and other regulatory 

bodies; statements related to the LTEP; expectations regarding the OEB's Framework for Transmission Project Development Plans; 

statements about outstanding legal proceedings; statements regarding time-of-use billing; expectations regarding future renewable 

energy generation; statements regarding our liquidity and capital resources and their use; expectations regarding our financing 

activities, including our capital management objectives and our ability to access the capital markets; expectations about our 

maturing debt and interest payments; expectations regarding the results of our ongoing and planned projects and/or initiatives 

and their completion dates; statements regarding expected future capital expenditures, the timing of these expenditures and our 

investment plans; statements regarding contractual obligations and other commitments; statements regarding the effect of load on 

our revenue including the anticipated impact of CDM programs; the effect of interest rates on our revenue requirements and results 

of operations; statements regarding the estimated impact of changes in the forecasted long-term Government of Canada bond yield 

on our results of operations; impacts to our business in respect of the adequacy and timing of supply of materials, supplies and 

services and credit risk of our counterpa riles; expectations regarding future pension contributions, effect of health care cost trend 

on the future benefits costs and the performance of our pension plan; the possibility of the Province making declarations pursuant 

to our memorandum of agreement with them; statements regarding possible future actions of the Province and regulatory bodies; 

expectations regarding connections of new generation to our transmission and distribution systems; expectations regarding asset 

condition; statements regarding workforce demographics and the market for skilled labour; statements regarding the amount and 

timing of future estimated environmental expenditures, including with respect to LAR and PCBs; statements about future asbestos 

removal expenditures and asset retirement obligations; expectations regarding our information technology strategy and enterprise 

reporting system; the possibility that we could in future decide to issue foreign currencydenominated debt; expectations regarding 

anticipated expenditures associated with transferring assets located on Indian lands; statements about our outsourcing arrangement 

with lnergi LP; statements regarding provincial ownership of our transmission corridors; statements about critical accounting estimates; 

statements about IFRS, our conversion to IFRS and the effect of the absence of rate-regulated accounting under IFRS; statements about 

the outlook period including our expectations regarding our role within the industry, our financial returns, our credit rating and credit 

quality and structural changes to our Company. Words such as 'expect: "anticipate," "intend: 'attempt: ''rna"plan," 

"believe,"seek,"estimate," 'gc;a1,"aim,"targel,' and variations of such words and similar expressions are intended to identify 

such forward-looking statements. These statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve assumptions and risks and 

uncertainties that are difficult to predict. Therefore, actual outcomes and results may differ materially from what is expressed, implied 

or forecasted in such forward-looking statements. We do not intend, and we disclaim any obligation to update ny forward-looking 

statements, except as required by law.  

These forward-looking statements are based on a variety of factors and assumptions including, but not limited to the following! 

no unforeseen changes in the legislative and operating framework for Ontario's electricity market; no unfavourable decisions from 

the OEB and other regulatory bodies concerning outstanding rate and other applications; no delays in obtaining the required 

approvals; no unforeseen changes in rate orders or rate structures for our Distribution and Transmission Businesses; a stable regulatory 

environment; the preparation of business plans, regulatory filings and future capital expenditures on the basis that commencing 

2011 rate-regulated accounting will not be permitted under IFRS; no unfavourable changes in environmental regulation; and no 

significant event occurring outside the ordinary course of business. These assumptions are based on information currently available to 

us, including information obtained from third-party sources. Actual results may differ materially from those predicted by such forward-

looking statements. While we do not know what impact any of these differences may have, our business, results of operations, 

financial condition and our credit stability may be materially adversely affected. Factors that could cause actual results or outcomes 

to differ materially from the results expressed or implied by forward-looking statements include, among other things. 
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• the impact of the GEA and the ap, including unexpected expenditures arising therefrom; 

• the risk that previously granted regulatory approvals may be subsequently challenged, appealed or overturned; 

• public opposition to and delays or denials of the requisite approvals and accommodations for our planned projects; 

• the risks associated with being controlled by the Province including the possibility that the Province may make declarations 

pursuant to the memorandum of agreement, as well as potential conflicts of interest that may arise between us, the Province 

and related parties; 

• the risks associated with being subject to extensive regulation including risks associated with C)EB action or inaction; 

• the timing and results of regulatory decisions regarding our revenue requirements, cost recovery and rates, as well as 

changes to niles under various regulatory body review; 

the potential impact of CDM programs on our load and our revenues; 

unanticipated changes in electricity demand or in our costs; 

• the risk that we are not able to arrange sufficient cost-effective financing 	 wring deb and to fund capital 

expenditures and other obligations; 

the risks associated with the execution of our capital and operation, maintenance and administration programs necessary 

to maintain the performance of our aging asset base; 

• the risk that we may not recover all of our project costs to prepare a bid associated with the OEB's Framework for 

Transmission Project Development Plans; 

the risk that we will be unable to source the materials necessary to support our work programs; 

the risks related to our workforce demographic and our potential inability to attract and retain qualified personnel; 

the risk that assumptions that form the basis of our recorded environmental liabilities and related regulatory assets may 

change; 

the risk of currently undetermined future asbestos removal costs; 

the risk to our facilities posed by severe weather conditions, natural disasters or catastrophic events and our limited 

insurance coverage for losses resulting from these events; 

the risks associated with information system security and with maintaining a complex information technology systems 

infrastructure and transitioning most of our financial and business processes to an integrated business and financial 

reporting system; 

future interest rates, future investment returns, inflation, changes in benefits and changes in actuarial assumptions; 

the risks associated with changes in interest rates; 

• the inability to negotiate collective agreements consistent with our rate orders or in a timely fashion and the potential for 

labour disputes; 

• the risk that we may incur significant costs associated with transferring assets located on Indian lands; 

the potential that we may incur significant expenses to replace some or all of the functions currently ou 

agreement with Inergi LP is terminated; 

the impact of the ownership by the Province of lands underlying our transmission system; and 

the impact of the final outcome of the exposure draft on rate-regulated accounting under IFRS. 

We caution the reader that the above list of factors is not exhaustive. Some of these and other factors are discussed in more detail 

in the section 'Risk Management and Risk Factors' in this Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). You should review this 

section in detail. 

In addition, we caution the reader that information provided in this MD&A regarding our outlook on certain matters, including future 

expenditures, is provided in order to give context to the nature of some of our future plans and may not be appropriate for other 

purposes. 

This MD&A is dated as at February 10, 2011 Additional information about our Company, including our Annual Information Form 

is available on SEDAR at www sedar corn. 
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The Consolidated Financial Statements, Management's Discussion and Analysis ('MD&A') and related financial information 

presented in this Annual Report have been prepared by the management of Hydro One Inc. r Hydro One" or the "Company"). 

Management is responsible for the integrity, consistency and reliability of all such information presented. The Consolidated Financial 

Statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Canada and applicable securities 
legislation. The MD&A has been prepared in accordance with National Instrument 51-102, Part 5. 

The preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements and information in the MD&A involves the use of estimates and 

assumptions based on management's judgement, particularly when transactions affecting the wrent accounting period cannot be 

finalized with certainly until future periods. Estimates and assumptions are based on historical experience, current conditions and 
various other assiimplions believed b be reasonable in the circumstances, with critical analysis of the significant accounting policies  

followed by the Company as described in Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. The preparation of the Consolidated 
Financial Staten-tents and the MD&A includes information regarding the estimated impact of future events and transactions. The 

MD&A also includes information regarding sources of liquidity and capital resources, operating trends, risks and uncertainties. Actual 

results in he future may differ materially from the present assessment of this information because future events and circurnstanc_es may 

not occur as expected. The Consolidated Financial Statements and MD&A have been properly prepared within reasonable limits of 
materiality and in light of information up to February 10, 2011. 

In meeting its responsibiliy for the reliability of financial information, management maintains and relies on a comprehensive system 

of internal control and internal audit. The system of internal control includes a written corporate conduct policy; implementation of a 

risk management framework; effective segregation of duties and delegation of authorities; and sound and conservative accounting 

policies that are reguktrly reviewed. This structure is designed to provide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded and that 

reliable information is available on a timely basis. In addition internal and disclosure controls have been documented, evaluated, 

tested and identified consistent with National Instrument 52-109 (Bill 198). An internal audit function evaluates the effectiveness 

of these internal controls consistent with its annual audit plan and reports its findings to management and the Audit and Finance 
Committee of the Hydro One Board of Directors, as required. 

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been examined by KPMG LLP, independent external auditors appointed by the Hydro 

One Board of Directors. The external auditors' responsibility is to express their opinion on whether the Consolidated Financial 

Statements are fairly presented in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Canada. The Independent Auditors' 

Report, which appears on page 43, outlines the scope of their examination and their opinion. 

The Hydro One Board of Directors, through its Audit and Finance Committee, is responsible for ensuring that management fulfills its 
responsibilities for financial reporting and internal controls. The Audit and Finance Committee of Hydro One met periodically with 

management, the internal auditors and the external auditors b satisfy itself that each group had properly discharged its respective 
responsibiliy and ka review the Consolidated Financial Statements before recommending approval by the Board of Directors. The 

external auditors had direct and full access to the Audit and Finance Committee, with and without the presence of management, to 

discuss their audit and their findings as to the integriy of the financial reporting and the effectiveness of the system of internal controls. 

The Company's President and Chief Executive Officer and Executive Vice-President and Chief Financial Officer have certified Hydro 

One annual Consolidated Financial Statements and annual MD&A filed under provincial securities legislation, related disclosure 

controls and procedures and the design and effectiveness of related internal controls over financial reporting pursuant b National 
Instrument 52-109.  

On behalf of Hydro One Inc 's management. 

Laura For muse 

President and Chief Executive Officer 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' 
To the Shareholder of Hydro One Inc 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Hydro One Inc., which comprise the consolidated balance 

sheets as al December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009, the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income, 

retained earnings and accumulated other comprehensive income, and cash flows for the years then ended, and notes, comprising a 

summary of significant accounting pol icies and other explanatory information. 

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with 

Canadian generally accepted accounting principles, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable 

the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error: 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on rhese consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our 

audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical 

requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are 

free from material misstatement 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial 

statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 

consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control 

relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but no for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 

control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audits is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 

opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Hydro One Inc. 

as at December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in 

accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. 

hP 

Chartered Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants 

Toronto, Canada 

February 10, 2011 
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CONSOLIDATED STAT \ITS OF OPERATIONS 

Year ended December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions, except per share amounts) 	 2010 	 2009 

Revenues 

Transmission (Note 16) 	 1,307 	 1,147 

Distribution (Not,  16) 	 3,754 	 3,534 

Other 	 63 	 63  

	

5,124 	 4,744 

Costs 

Purchased power (Note 16) 	 2,474 	 2,326 

Operation, maintenance and administration (No 16) 	 1,078 	 1,057 

Depreciation and amortization (Note 3) 	 583 	 537 

	

4,135 	 3,920 

Income before financing charges and provision for 

payments in lieu of corporate income taxes 

Financing charges (Note 4)  

989 

342 

824 

308 

  

Income before provision for payments in lieu 

of corporate income taxes 	 647 	 516 

Provision for payments in lieu of corporate 

income taxes (Notes 5 and 16) 	 56 	 46 

Net income 	 591 	 470 

Other comprehensive income  

Comprehensive income 591 470 

Basic and fully diluted earnings per 

common share (Canadian dollars) (Note 15) 	 5,727 	 4,528 

CONSOLIDAT ED STAT EM ENTS 0_ 

Year ended December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 	 2010 	 2009  

Retained earnings, January 1 	 1,791 	 1,497 

Change in accounting policy for the recognition of future income 

tax assets and liabilities (Note 2) 	 12 

Net income 	 591 	 470 

Dividends (Note 15) 	 (28) 	 (188) 

Retained earnings, December 31 	 2,354 	 1,791  

See uccomputlyitty notes to Comolidoted 1-ittumid Stoterrierits. 
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CONSOLIDATED STAT EM ENTS 0= ACCLAALLATF.=_D 

Year ended December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions)  

Accumulated other comprehensive income, January 1 
Other comprehensive income  

Accumulated other comprehensive income, December 31 

CONSOLIDATED 

December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 	 2010 	 2009 
Assets 
Current assets: 

Cash 	 33 
Short-term investments (Note 17) 	 139 
Accounts receivable (net of allowance for doubtful 

accounts - $25 million; 2009 - $25 million) (Note 16) 	 911 	 843 
Regulatory assets (Note 8) 	 42 	 72 

Materials and supplies 	 21 	 21 
Future income tax assets (Note 5) 	 35 	 21 

Other 	 8 	 16 

	

1,189 	 973 

Fixed assets (Note 6)• 

Fixed assets in service 	 19,767 	 18,407 
Less: Accumulated depreciation 	 7,247 	 6,815 

	

12,520 	 11,592 
Construction in progress 	 1,402 	 1,256 

Future use land, components and spares 	 139 	 150 

	

14,061 	 12,998 

Other long-term assets: 

Regulatory assets (Notes 8 and 22) 	 1,013 	 858 

Deferred pension asset (Note 12) 	 460 	 424 
Long-term investment (Note 9) 	 249 
Intangible assets (net of accumulated amortization) (Notes 2 and 7) 	 189 	 218 
Goodwill 	 133 	 133 
Future income tax assets (Notes 2 and 5) 	 19 	 18 

Other 	 9 	 13 

	

2,072 	 1,664 

Total asset, 	 17,322 	 15,635 

2010 2009 

(10) (10) 

(10) (10) 

See acoompunyins nde3 fv Cant5olidded 1-inandul Skslements. 
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CONSO _IDATED 

December 31 (Canadian dollars rn mrProns) 2010  2009 

Liabilities 
Current liabilities: 

Bank indebtedness 26 

Accounts payable and accrued charges (Notes 13 and 16) 884 800 

Regulatory liabilities (Note 8) 72 100 

Accrued interest 84 74 

Short-term notes payable 55 

Long-term debt payable within one year Vote 9) 500 600 

1,540 1,655 

Long-term debt (Note 9) 7,278 6,281 

Other long-term liabilities: 
Employee future benefits other than pension (Note 12) 980 940 

Regulatory liabilities (Notes 8 and 22) 540 489 

Future income tax liabilities (Notes 5 and 22) 693 533 

Environmental liabilities (Note 13) 287 303 

Asset retirement obligations (Note 14) 11 

Long-term accounts payable and other liabilities 12 16 
2,523 2,281 

Total liabilities 11,341 10,217 

Contingencies and commitments (Notes 18 and 19) 

Shareholder's equity (Note 15) 

Preferred shares (authorized' unlimited; issued: 12,920,000) 323 323 

Common shares (authorized' unlimited; issued: 100,000) 3,314 3,314 

Retained earnings 2,354 1,791 

Accumulated other comprehensive income (10)  (10) 

Total shareholder's equity 5,981 5,418 

Total liabilities and shareholder's equity 17,322 15,635 

Sec uccurripunying mutes to Comoliciated hinuncid Stcderipents. 

On behalf of the Board of Directors: 

James Amen 

Chair 

Michael J. Mueller 

Chair, Audit and Finance Committee 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS 

Year ended December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 2010  2009 
Operating activities 

Net income 591 470 
Environmental expenditures (17) (9) 
Adjustments for non-cash items! 

Depredation and amortization (excluding removal costs) 526 487 
Regulatory asset and liability accounts (10) (34) 
Future income taxes (8) 16 
Asset retirement obligation 4 

Other 1 

1,087 930 
Changes in non-cash balances related 

to operations (Note 17) 77 (38) 
Net cash from operating activities 1,164 892 

Financing activities 

Long-term debt issued 1,500 1,150 
Long-term debt retired (6001 (400) 
Short-term notes payable (55) 55 
Dividends paid (28) (188) 
Other 2 

817 619 Net cash from financing activities 

Investing activities 

Capital expenditures 

Fixed assets (1,557) (1,473) 

Intangible assets (13) (93) 

(1,570) (1,566) 
Long-term investments (250) 
Other assets 37  13 

Net cash used in investing activities (1,783) (1,553) 

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 198 (42) 
Cash and cash equivalents, January 1 (26) 16 
Cash and cash equivalents, December 31 (Note 17) 172 (26) 

-.•ef.x,...orripuriying Ides to O'Jrtsulidutecll-incricial Slutemerib. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED 

1. DESCRIPTION OF THE BUSINESS 
Hydro One Inc. (Hydro One or the Company) was incorporated on December 1, 1998, under the Business Corporations Act 

(Ontario) and is wholly owned by the Province of Ontario the Province). The principal businesses of Hydro One are the transmission 

and distribution of electricity to customers within Ontario. These businesses are regulated by the Ontario Energy Board (OEB). 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of Consolidation 
The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries: Hydro One 

Networks Inc. (Hydro One Networks), Hydro One Remote Communities Inc. (Hydro One Remote Communities), Hydro One 

Brampton Networks Inc. (Hydro One Brampton), Hydro One Telecom Inc., Hydro One Lake Erie Link Management Inc. and 

Hydro One Lake Erie Link Company Inc. 

Basis of Accounting 
The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Canada 

(Canadian GAAP). 

Rate-setting 
The rates of the Company's electricity Transmission and Distribution Businesses are subject lo regulation by the OEB. 

Transmission 

On August 16, 2007, the OEB issued its decision in respect of Hydro One Networks' 2007 and 2008 transmission rate 

application. As part of that decision the OEB approved the disposition of export and wheeling fees liability and the transmission 

market-ready regulatory asset, which was factored into rates and refunded to customers over the four-year period ending 

December 31, 2010 .  

On May 30, 2008, Hydro One Networks submitted an application to the OEB to adjust Uniform Transmission Rates (UTRs) effective 

January 1, 2009. On August 28, 2008, the OEB approved the application allowing Hydro One Networks to recover revenues 

consistent with the OEB-approved 2008 revenue requirement which reflected the full repayment to customers of the amounts recorded 

in the Earnings Sharing Mechanism and the Revenue Difference Deferral Account at the end of 2008. 

To achieve the necessary funding in support of required infrastructure, Hydro One Networks filed a transmission rate application 

for 2009 and 2010 rates in September 2008. The application sought OEB approval for revenue requirements of approximately 

$1,233 million and $1,341 million, based on a return on equiy of 8.53% and 9.35% for 2009 and 2010, respectively. On 

May 28, 2009, the OEB issued its decision in respect of this application. The decision, which was effective July 1, 2099, resulted 

in reduced revenue requirements of $1,180 million and $1,240 million in 2009 and 2010, respectively, primarily due to a lower 

approved return on equity. The OEB decision disallowed development capital expenditures of $180 million for 2010, but agreed 

to reconsider the projects if additional evidence was provided. On September 4, 2009, Hydro One Networks filed the additional 

evidence on two projects amounting to approximately $160 million in capital expenditures. The OEB approved the supplemental 

evidence for inclusion in Hydro One Networks' 2010 rates. This resulted in a revised revenue requirement of $1,257 million for 

2010, on the basis of an updated return on equiy of 8.39% for 2010. 
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On May 19, 2010 Hydro One Networks submitted an application for 2011 and 2012 transmission rates in continued support of 
its aging critical infrastructure and the supply mix objectives for generation, including off-coal initiatives and initiation of investments 
in support of the Green Energy Ad (GEA). This application sought the approval of revenue requirements of approximately 
$1,446 million for 2011 and $1,547 million for 2012.  

On December 23, 2010, the OEB issued its decision effective January 1, 2011 which resulted in revenue requirements of 

$1,346 million for 2011 and $1,658 million for 2012. The change in our 2012 revenue requirement resulted in a higher revenue 
requirement than originally submitted due to the OEB directing Hydro One to adopt IFRS accounting for overheads capitalized 

resulting in a $200 million increase in 2012. 

Dis tabu tion 

On December 18, 2008, the OEB issued a decision approving substantially all work program expenditures effective May 1, 2008, 

for implementation on February 1, 2009. The DEB also approved recovery of our smart meter expenditures made prior to the end of 

2007. The decision approved the establishment of the revenue recovery account (Rider 4) to record the revenue differential between 
existing distribution rates and new rates. Rider 4 is being recovered over a 27-month period commencing February 1, 2009 and 

ending April 30, 2011 

In late 20X)8, Hydro One Networks filed an incentive regulation application for 2009 rates, with an update filed in January 2009, 
b reflect the impact of the 2008 distribution rate decision. The application was filed on the basis of the OEB's third-generation 

Incentive Regulation Mechanism (IRM) process, which adjusts rates by considering inflation, productivity targets, significant events 
outside the control of management and a capital adjustment mechanism to recover costs for new incremental capital coming in 

service beyond a prescribed threshold. On May 13, 2009, the OEB released its decision approving the basic IRM increase and 

the $1.65 per month per metered customer for smart meters. The revised rates were approved effective May 1, 2009, with an 
implementation date of June 1, 2009. 

In 2009, Hydro One Networks filed a cost-of-service application with the OEB for 2010 and 2011 distribution rates reflecting the 

Company's plan to invest in its network assets to meet objectives regarding public and employee safety; regulatory and legislative 

compliance; maintenance of system security and reliability of system growth requirements; and investments required by the GEA. 

The application sought DEB approval of revenue requirements of approximately $1,150 million and $1,264 million for 2010 and 
2011, respectively. 

On April 9, 2010, the OEB released its decision approving revenue requirements of $1,146 million for 2010 and $1,236 million 
for 201 1 to support the necessary work programs, the implementation of the GEA and the installation of smart meters. The OEB also 
approved certain distribution-related deferral account balances sought by Hydro One Networks in its application including retail 

settlement variance accounts, regulatory asset recovery account I, retail cost variance accounts and smart meters. The OEB ordered 

that the approved balances be aggregated into a single regulatory account (Rider 6) to be recovered over an 18-month period from 
May 1, 2010 to December 31, 2011 

On November 1, 2007, Hydro One Brampton filed an application for 2008 rates on the basis of the OEB's second-generation IRM 

policy which incorporates an OEB-approved formula that considers inflation and efficiency targets. On March 19, 2008, the OEB 

released its decision. The revised rates, including an amount of 67 cents per month per metered customer for smart meters, were 

approved with an implementation date of May 1, 2008. 

On November 7, 2008, Hydro One Brampton filed cm application on the same basis for 2009 distribution rates. On March 13, 

2009, the OEB released it decision and approved the submission on the basis of its second-generation IRM policy. The revised 

ra s, including an amount of $1.00 per month per metered customer for smart meters, were approved for implementation effective 
May 1, 2009 

On November 6, 2009, Hydro One Brampton filed an application for 2010 distribution rates on the basis of the OEB's second- 

generation IRM process. On April 13, 2010, the OEB released its decision regarding this rate application approving our submission 

on the basis of the OEB's cost-of-capital and second-generation IRM policies. The revised rates had an implementation date of 
May 1,2010.  
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On August 29, 2008, Hydro One Remote Communities filed a 2009 cost-of-service rate application proposing 

an increase of about $10 million over the 2006 approved revenue requirement as a result of increased fuel 

costs. On April 30, 2009, the OEB issued a decision regarding this rate application approving all work 

program expenditures effective May 1, 2009 .  

On November 4, 2009, Hydro One Remote Communities filed an application for 2010 distribution rates under 

the OEB's third-generation IRM, seeking approval of an increase to basic rates for the distribution and generation 

of electricity effective May 1, 2010. The increase reflects the standard inflationary adjustments incorporated 

in the third-generation IRM applications. On April 14, 2010, the OEB issued a decision regarding this rate 

application under the OEB's third-generation IRM policies. The revised rates were approved for implementation 

on May 1,2010. 

Regulatory Accounting 

The OEB has the general power to include or exclude costs, revenues, losses or gains in the rates of a specific 

period, resulting in a change in rhe liming of accounting recognition from that which would have applied in an 

unregulated company. Such change in liming involves the application of rate-regulated accounting, giving rise 

to the recognition of regulatory assets and liabilities. The Company's regulatory assets represent certain amounts 

receivable from future customers and costs that have been deferred for accounting purposes because it is 

probable that they will be recovered in future rates. In addition, the Company has recorded regulatory liabilities 

which represent amounts for expenses incurred in different periods than would be the case had the Company 

been unregulated. The Company continually assesses the likelihood of recovery of each of its regulatory assets 

and continues to believe that it is probable that the OEB will factor its regulatory assets and liabilities into the 

selling of future rates. If, at some future date, the Company judges that it is no longer probable that the OEB will 

include a regulatory asset or liability in future rates, the appropriate carrying amount will be reflected in results 

of operations in the period that the assessment is made. Specific regulatory assets and liabilities are disclosed in 

Note 8. 

Revenue Recognition and Aiiocation 
Transmission revenues are collected through OEB-approved rates, which are based on an approved revenue 

requirement that includes a rale of return. Such revenue is recognized as power is transmitted and delivered to 

customers. 

Distribution revenues attributable to the delivery of electricity are based on OEB-approved distribution rates and 

are recognized as electricity is delivered to customers. The Company estimates the monthly revenue for rhe 

period based on wholesale power purchases because customer meters are not generally read at the end of 

each month. Unbilled revenue included within accounts receivable as at December 31, 2010 amounted to 

$493 million (2009 - $434 million). 

Distribution revenue also includes an amount relating to rate protection for rural residential and remote customers, 

which is received from the Independent Electricity System Operator (IESO) based on a standardized customer 

rate that is approved by the OEB. The current legislation provides rate protection for prescribed classes of rural 

residential and remote consumers by reducing the electricity rates that would otherwise apply.  

Segment revenues for transmission, distribution and other also include revenue related to sales of other services 

and equipment. Such revenue is recognized as services are rendered or as equipment is delivered. 

Corporate income and Capital Taxes 
Under the Electricity Act, 1998, Hydro One is required to make payments in lieu of corporate taxes to the 

Ontario Electricity Financial Corporation (OEFC). These payments are calculated in accordance with the rules 

for computing income and taxable capital and other relevant amounts contained in the Income Tax Act (Canada) 

and the Taxation Act, 2007 (Ontario) (Corporations Tax Act (Ontario), prior to 2009) as modified by the 

Electricity Act, 1998, and related regulations. 

58 	HYDRO ONE ANNUAL REPOR1 2010 



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Effective January 1, 2009, the Company adopted amendments to the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (CICA) 

Handbook Section 3465, income loxes and CICA Handbook Section 1 100, Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. These 

amended sections establish new standards for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of future income tax assets 

and liabilities of rate-regulated enterprises. 

For transactions and events that cause temporary differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts 

for accounting purposes, the Company recognized future income lax asses and liabilities, and corresponding regulatory liabilities 

and asses, as a result of adopting these amended standards on January 1, 2009. Adjustments to retained earnings were recorded 
on January 1, 2009 for the cumulative earnings impact of future income tax assets and liabilities as at December 31, 2008 that are 
excluded from the rate-setting process 

Current income Taxes 

The provision for current taxes and the assets and liabilities recognized for the current and prior periods are measured at the amounts 

receivable or payable from/lo the OEFC. 

Future income Taxes 

Future income taxes are provided for using the liability method and are recognized on temporary differences between the carrying 

amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding lax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. 

Future income lax liabilities are generally recognized on all taxable temporary differences and future tax assets are recognized to 

the extent that it is more likely than not that they will be realized from taxable profits available against which deductible temporary 

differences can be utilized. 

Future income taxes are calculated ar the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is sealed or the asset is 

realized, based on the lax rates and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Future 

income taxes are charged or credited to the Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Income. 

The carrying amount of future income lax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that all or part of 

the future income tax assets have not met the more likely than not criterion. Previously unrecognized future income tax assets are 

reassessed at each balance sheet date and are recognized to the extent that it has become more likely than not that they will be 

recovered from future taxable profits. 

The Company has recognized regulatory assets and liabilities which correspond to future income taxes that flow through the rate-

making process 

Materials and Supplies 

Materials and supplies represent consumables, spare parts and construction material held for internal construction and maintenance 

of fixed assets. These assets are carried at lower of average cost or net realizable value. 

Fixed Assets 

Fixed assets are capitalized at cost, which comprises materials, labour, engineering, overheads, depreciation on service equipment 

and the OEB-approved allowance for funds used during construction applicable to capital construction activities within regulated 

businesses, or interest applicable to capital construction activities within unregulated businesses 

Fixed assets in service consist of transmission, distribution, communication, administration and service assets and easements. Fixed 

assets also include future use assets such as land; major components and spare parts; and capitalized development costs associated 

with deferred capital projects. 

Transmission 

Transmission assets include assets used for the transmission of high-voltage electricity such as transmission lines; support structures; 

foundations; insulators; connecting hardware and grounding systems; and assets used to step up the voltage of electricity from 

generating stations for transmission and to step down voltages for distribution, such as transformers, circuit breakers and switches. 

HYDRO ONt ANNUAL ?tP(JR1 2010 	59 



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Distribution 

Distribution assets comprise assets related to the distribution of low-voltage electricity, including lines, poles, switches, transformers, 

protective devices and metering systems. 

Communication 

Communication assets include the fibre-optic and microwave radio system, optical ground wire, lowers, telephone equipment and 

associated buildings. 

Administration and Service 

Administration and service assets include administrative buildings, major computer systems, personal computers, transport and work 

equipment, tools, vehicles and other minor fixed assets 

Easements 

Easements include statutory rights of use for transmission corridors and abutting lands granted under the Reliable Energy and 
Consumer Protection Act, 2002, as well as other amounts related to land access rights. 

Intangible Assets 

Intangible assets represent computer applications software and other assets. These assets are capitalized at cost, which comprises 

materials, purchased software, labour and consulting, engineering, overheads and the DEB-approved allowance for funds used 

during construction applicable to capital construction activities within regulated businesses 

Construction and Development in Progress 
Overhead costs, including shared corporate functions and services costs, are capitalized on a fully allocated basis, consistent 

with an 0E8-approved methodology. Financing costs are capitalized on rate-regulated fixed assets under construction and 

intangible assets under development, based on the OEB's approved allowance for funds used during construction (2010 - 4.34%; 

2009 - 5.89%). 

Depreciation and Amortization 
The capital costs of fixed assets and intangible assets, primarily consisting of applications software, are depreciated or amortized on 

a straight-line basis, except for transport and work equipment, which is depreciated on a declining balance basis. 

The Company periodically initiates an external review of its fixed asset and intangible asset depreciation and amortization rates, 

as required by the OEB. The last review resulted in changes to rates effective January 1, 2007. A summary of depreciation and 

amortization rates for the various classes of assets is included below. 

Depreciation and amortization rates (%) 

Range 	 Average 
Transmission 1%- 3% 2% 
Distribution 1% - 13% 2% 
Communication 1%- 13% 5% 
Administration and service 1% - 20% 9% 

The costs of intangible assets are primarily included within the administration and service classification above and these assets 

are amortized on a straight-line basis. Amortization rates for computer applications software and other intangible assets range from 

9% b 1 1%. 

Depreciation rates for easements are based on their contract life. The majorily of easements are held in perpetuity and are not 

depreciated. 

60 	HYDRO ONt ANNUAL RH-UR I 2010 



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

In accordance with group depreciation practices, the original cost of fixed assets that are normally retired is charged to accumulated 

depreciation or amortization, with no gain or loss reflected in current results of operations. Gains and losses on sales of fixed assets 

and losses on premature retirements are charged to results of operations as adjustments to depreciation or amortization expense. 

Depreciation expense also includes the costs incurred to remove fixed assets where no asset retirement obligation has been recorded. 

The estimated service lives of fixed or intangible assets are subject to periodic review. Any changes arising from such a review are 

implemented on a remaining service life basis consistent with their inclusion in electricity rates. 

Goodwill 

Goodwill represents the cost of acquired local distribution companies in excess of fair value of the net identifiable assets purchased 

and is evaluated for impairment on an annual basis, or more frequently if circumstances require. Goodwill impairment is assessed 
based on a comparison of the fair value of the reporting unit to the underlying carrying value of the reporting unit's net assets, 

including goodwill, with any write-down of the carrying value of goodwill being charged against the results of operations. The 

Company has determined that goodwill is not impaired. All of rhe goodwill is attributable to the Distribution Business segment. 

Discounts and Premiums on Debt 

Discounts and premiums are amortized over the period of the related debt using the effective interest method. 

Financial instruments 

Comprehensive Income 

Comprehensive income is comprised of the Company's net income and other comprehensive income (00). OC1 includes the 

amortization of net unamortized hedging losses on discontinued cash fbw hedges and the change in fair value on existing cash flow 
hedges to the extent that the hedge is effective. The Company amortizes its unamortized hedging losses on d iscontinued  cash How 

hedges to financing charges using the effective interest method over the term of the hedged debt. 

Financial Assets and LiabilitIes 

Al financial instruments are classified into one of the following five categories: held-to-maturity investments, loans and receivables, 

held-for-trading, other liabilities or available-for-sale. All financial instruments, including derivatives, are carried at fair value on the 

Consolidated Balance Sheet except for loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments and other financial liabilities, which are 

measured at amortized cost. Held-for-trading financial instruments are measured at fair value and all gains and losses are included in 

financing charges in the period in which they arise. Avaibble-forsale financial instruments are measured at fair value with revaluation 

gains and losses included in OCI until the instrument is derecognized or impaired. The Company has classified its financial 

instruments as follows: 

Cash 

Accounts receivable 

Short-term investments 
Long-term investment 

Fixed-to-floating interest rate swaps 

Long-term accounts receivable 

Bank indebtedness 

Accounts payable 

Short-term notes payable 

Long-term debt (unless otherwise specified) 

MTN Series 14 Note 

$500 million of MTN Series 19 Note 

Hed-for-trading 

Loans and receivables 

Held-to-maturity/Held-for-trading 

Held-to-malurity/Held-for-troding 

Not classified 

Loans and receivables 

Other liabilities 
Other liabilities 

Other liabilities 

Other liabilities 

Not classified 

Not classified 

Short-term investments are generally classified as held-to-maturity; however, certain short-term investments are classified as held-

for-trading when the Company has no intent to hold a pool of assets to their maturity. Documentation of the short-term investment 

classification is made on inception .  
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Were long-term debt is designated as part of a hedging relationship, as in the case of the MTN Series 14 Note and $500 million 

of the MTN Series 19 Note, the long-term debt, and related hedging instrument, are not classified .  

All financial instrument transactions are recorded at trade date. 

Derivative Instruments and I-lecige Accounting 

All derivative instruments, including embedded derivatives, are carried at fair value on the Consolidated Balance Sheet unless 

exempted from derivative treatment as a normal purchase and sale or when it is deemed that the economic characteristics and 

risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related to the economic characteristics and risks of the host contract. All changes 

in fair value are recorded in financing charges unless cash flow hedge accounting is used in which case changes in fair value are 

recorded in 001 to the extent that the hedge is effective. The gain or loss related to the ineffective portion, if any, is recorded in 

financing charges. 

The Company does not engage in derivative trading or speculative activities. 

The Company periodically develops hedging strategies for execution taking into account risk management objectives. At the 

inception of a hedging relationship, the Company formally documents the hedging relationship between the hedged item and the 

hedging instrument, its risk management objective for establishing the hedging relationship, the nature of the specific risk exposure 

being hedged, and the method for assessing effectiveness of the hedging relationship. The Company also asses,Ps, both at the 

inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, whether the hedging items that are used are effective in offsetting changes in fair 

values or cash flows of the hedged items. 

Transaction Costs 

Transaction costs for financial assets and liabilities that are other than held-for-trading are added to the carrying value of the asset or 

liability and then amortized over the expected life of the instrument using the effective interest method. 

Financial. Instrument Disclosures 

The fair market value of the Company's long-term debt is determined using the fair value hierarchy levels disclosed in Note 10 

Employee Future Benefits 
Employee future benefits provided by Hydro One include pension, group life insurance, health care and long-term disability. 

In accordance with the OEB's rate orders, pension costs are recorded when employer contributions are paid to the pension fund 

in accordance with the Pension Benefits Act (Ontario). Actuarial valuations are conducted at least every three years. Pension costs 

are also calculated on an accrual basis. Pension costs are actuarially determined using the protected benefit method prorated on 

service and based on assumptions that reflect management's best estimate of the effect of future events, including future compensation 

increases, on the actuarial present value of accrued pension benefits. Pension plan assets, consisting primarily of listed equity 

securities as well as corporate and government debt securities, are valued using fair values. Past service costs from plan amendments 

and all actuarial gains or losses are amortized on a straight-line basis over the expected average remaining service life of the 

employees covered. 

Employee future benefits other than pension are recorded on an accrual basis. Costs are determined by independent actuaries 

using the projected benefit method prorated on service and based on assumptions that reflect management's best estimates. Past 

service costs from plan amendments and actuarial gains or losses are amortized on a straight-line basis over the expected average 

remaining service life of the employees covered. 

Employee future benefit costs are attributed to labour and charged to operations or capitalized as part of the cost of fixed assets .  
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Environmental Costs 
Hydro One records a liability for the estimated future expenditures associated with the assessment and remediation of contaminated 

lands and for the phase-out and destruction of polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs) contaminated mineral oil removed from electrical 

equipment, based on the present value of these estimated future expenditures. As the Company anticipates that the related 

expenditures will continue to be recoverable in future rates, a regulatory asset has been recorded to reflect the future recovery of 

these costs from customers. Hydro One reviews its estimates of future environmental expenditures on an ongoing basis. 

Asset Retirement Obligations 
When required by force of law or regulation, Hydro One records an asset retirement obligation based on the present value of the 

estimated fair value expenditures to remove certain assets and mitigate related sites. Where the Company anticipates that the related 

expenditures will be recoverable in future rates, a corresponding amount is capitalized as a cost of the related fixed assets. Some 

of the Company's transmission and distribution assets, particularly those located on unowned easements and rights-of-way, may 

have asset retirement obligations, conditional or otherwise. The majority of the Company's easements and righlsof-way are either of 

perpetual duration or are automatically renewed annually. Land rights with finite terms are generally subject to extension or renewal. 

As the Company expects to use the majority of its facilities in perpetuity, no asset retirement obligation currently exists. If, at some 

future date, a particular facility is shown not to meet the perpetuity criterion, it will be reviewed to determine whether a measurable 

asset retirement obligation exists. In such a case, an asset retirement obligation would be recorded at that lime. 

Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian GAAF' requires management to make estimates and assumptions 

that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the 

financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the year. Actual results could differ from estimates, 

including changes as a result of future decisions made by the DEB or the Province. 

Emerging Accounting Changes 
International Financial Reporting Standards (FRS) 

On February 13, 2008 the Canadian Accounting Standards Board (Ac.SB) confirmed that publicly accountable enterprises will be 

required to adopt IFRS in place of Canadian generally accepted accounting principles for interim and annual reporting purposes for 

fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2011. On October 14, 2009, the Public Sector Accounting Board released a decision 

summary confirming that government organizations following commercial practices adhere ro standards for publicly accountable 

entities after January 1, 2011. On September 10, 2010, the AcSB decided to permit rate-regulated entities to defer their IFRS 

implementation date to January 1, 2012. As such, the Company will apply IFRS to its financial statements ending December 31, 

2012 with restatement of the amounts recorded on the opening IFRS balance sheet as at January 1, 2011, for comparative 

purposes. The Company continues to assess the impact of conversion to IF RS on its results of operations. 

3. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION 

Year ended December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 2010 2009 

Depreciation of fixed assets in service 456 418 

Amortization of intangible assets 43 36 

Fixed asset removal costs 57 50 

Amortization of regulatory and other assets 27 33 

583 537 
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4. FINANCING CHARGES 

Year ended December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 2010 2009 

Interest on long-term debt payable 409 369 

Less: Interest capitalized on construction and development in progress (54) (58) 

Interest earned on investments (3) (1)  
Other (10) (2)  

342 308 

5. PROVISION FOR PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF CORPORATE INCOME TAXES 

The provision for payments in lieu of corporate income taxes (Ms) differs from the amount that would hove been recorded using the 

combined Canadian Federal and Ontario statutory income tax rate. The reconciliation between the statutory and effective tax rates is 

provided as follows: 

(Canadian dollars in millions) 2010 2009 

Income before provision for PlLs 647 516 

Federal and Ontario statutory  income tax rate 31.00% 33.00% 

Provision for PILs at statutory rate 201 170 

Increase (decrease) resulting from: 

Net temporary differences included in amounts charged to customers: 

Capital cost allowance in excess of depreciation and amortization (82) (74) 

Retail settlement variance accounts - 4 

Pension contributions in excess of pension expense (18) (15) 

Overheads capitalized for accounting but deducted for tax purposes (13) (14) 
Interest capitalized for accounting but deducted for tax purposes (17) (19) 
Employee future benefits other than 	expense in excess of cash payments pension 3 1 

Environmental expenditures (5) (3) 

Other (15) (6) 

Net temporary differences (147) (126) 

Net permanent differences 2  2 

Total income tax provision for PILs 56  46 

Current income tax provision for Plls 64 30 

Future income tax provision for PILs (8)  16 

Total income tax provision for PILs 56 46 

Effective income tax rate 8.66% 8.91% 

The provision for payments in lieu of current income taxes of $64 million represents the amount payable to the OEFC with respect 

to current year earnings. The outstanding balance due to the OEFC at December 31, 201 0 is $17 million (2009 - $6 million 

recoverable). 

The payments in lieu of future income taxes recoverable of $8 million reflects the decrease in the liability for payments in lieu of future 

income taxes that are not expected to be recovered from the Company's customers through future rates. The decrease in the liability 

for payments in lieu of future income taxes that is expected to be recovered from the Company's customers through future rates has 

resulted in a decrease in regulatory assets. 
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Future income Tax Assets and Liabilities 
Payments in lieu of future income lax assets and liabilities arise from differences between the carrying amounts and tax bases of the 

Company's assets and liabilities. The tax effects of these differences are as fdlows: 

December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 2010 2009 

Future income tax assets 
Depreciation and amortization in excess of capital cost allowance 9 6 

Employee future benefits other than pension expense in excess of cash payments 5 4 

Retail settlement variance accounts 3 

Environmental expenditures 3 3 

Other 5 3 

Total future income tax assets 22 19 

Less: current portion 3 1 
19 18 

December 31 (Canadian dollars inmillions) 2010 2009 

Future income tax liabilities 
Capital cost allowance in excess of depredation and amortization (1,0041 (825) 

Employee future benefits other than pension expense in excess of cash payments 337 314 

Environmental expenditures 76 82 

Transmission and Distribution amounts received but not recognized for accounting purposes (69) (68) 

Goodwill (171 (18) 

Retail settlement variance accounts 5 5 

Other 11 (3) 

Total future income tax liabilities (661) (513) 

Less: current portion 32 20 

(693) 1533) 

As at December 31, 2010, payments in lieu of future income tax assets of $574 thousand (2009 - $461 thousand), based on 

substantively enacted income tax rates and laws, have not been recorded, as it is more likely than not that the assets will not be 

realized in the future. 
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6. FIXED ASSETS 

December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) Fixed Assets 

Accumulated 

Depreciation 

Construction 

in Progress Total 

2010 
Transmission 10,204 3,626 1,070 7,648 
Distri bution 7,230 2,556 262 4,936 
Communication 892 426 37 503 
Administration and service 1,089 554 33 568 
Easements 491 85 406 

19,906 7,247 1,402 14,061 

2009 
Transmission 9,485 3,455 956 6,986 
Distribution 6,773 2,392 220 4,601 
Communication 806 376 54 484 
Administration and service 1,007 510 26 523 
Easements 486 82 404 

18,557 6,815 1,256 12,998 

Financing costs are capitalized on fixed assets under construction, including allowance for funds used during construction on 

regulated assets and interest on unregulated assets, and were $54 million in 2010 (2009- $55 million). 

7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) Intangible Assets 

Accumulated 

Amortization 

Development in 

Progress Total 
2010 
Computer applications software 395 209 1 187 
Other assets 5  3 2 

400 212 1 189 

2009 
Computer applications software 379 166 3 216 
Other assets 5 3 2 

384 169 3 218 

Financing costs are capitalized on intangible assets under development, including allowance for funds used during construction on 
regulated assets, and were $nil in 201 0 (2009 - $3 million). 
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8. REGULATORY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

Regulatory assets and liabilities arise as a result of the rate-making process. Hydro One has recorded the following regulatory assets 

and liabilities: 

December 31 (Canad ian dollars in millions) 2010  2009 
Regulatory assets: 

Regulatory future income tax asset 674 523 
Environmental 309 327 
Pension cost variance account 27 7 
Rider 2 (Regulatory asset recovery account II) 11 19 
Rural and remote rate protection variance account 7 24 
Long-term project devebiament cost account 7 2 
Rider 4 (Revenue Recovery Account) 5 18 
Other 15 10 

Total regulatory assets 1,055 930 
Less: current portion 42 72 

1,013 858 

Regulatory liabilities: 
Deferred pension 460 424 
External revenuevarianceaccount 29 12 
Regulatory future income tax liability 30 32 
Retail settlement variance accounts 22 
Rider 3 (regulatory liability refund account) 19 49 
Rider 6 19 31 
Rider 8 9 
Hydro One Brampton rider 6 9 
Export and wheeling fees 3 15 
Other 15 17 

Total regulatory liabilities 612 589 
Less: current portion 72 100 

540 489 

Regulatory Assets 
Regulatory Fu ture income Tax Asset and Liability 

Future income taxes are recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial 

statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. The Company has recognized regulatory 

assets and liabilities which correspond to future income taxes that flow through the rale-making process. In the absence of rate- 

regula ted accounting, the Company's provision for PILs would have been recognized using the liability method and there would be 

no regulatory accounts established for taxes to be recovered through future rotes. As a result the provision for PILs would have been 

higher by approximately $104 million (2009 - $127 million) including the impact of a change in substantively enacted tax rates. 

Environmental 

Hydro One records a liability for the estimated future expenditures required to remedia le past environmental contamination (see 

Note 1 3). Because such expenditures are expected to be recoverable in future rates, the Company has recorded an equivalent 

amount as a regulatory asset. In 2010, this regulatory asset decreased by $15 million (2009 - increased by $30 million) to reflect 

related changes in the Company's PCB liability and decreased by $1 million (2009 - increased by $40 million) for a change in the 

land assessment and remediation (LAR) liability. The environmental regulatory asset is amortized to results of operations based on the 

pattern of actual expenditures incurred. The OEB has the discretion to examine and assess the prudence and the timing of recovery 
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of all of Hydro One's actual environmental expenditures. In the absence of fate-regulated accounting, operation, maintenance and 

administration expenses would have been lower by $16 million (2009 - higher by $70 million). In addition, amortization expense 

in 2010 would have been lower by $17 million (2009 - $9 million) and financing charges would have been higher by $15 million 

(2009 - $13 million). 

Pension Cost Variance Account 

The pension cost variance account was established for Hydro One Networks' Transmission and Distribution Businesses to track the 

difference between the actual pension costs incurred by the Company and estimated pension costs approved by the OEB. The 

balance in this account reflects the excess of pension costs paid compared to OEB-approved amounts. On May 28, 2009, the 

OEB announced its decision regarding the Company's rate application in respect of the Transmission Business of Hydro One 

Networks for 2009 and 2010 rates. As part of this decision, the OEB approved recovery of the proposed balance in this account 

plus accrued interest for recovery over 18 months ending December 31, 2010. In the December 23, 2010 decision on 2011 and 

2012 transmission rates, the OEB approved the December 31, 2009 balance, including accrued interest, to be recovered over a 

one-year period from January 1, 2011 Lc) December 31, 2011 In the absence of rate-regulated accounting, revenue would have 

been lower by $20 million in 2010 (2009 - $7 million). 

Rider 2 or Regulatory Asset Recovery Account H (RARA 

On April 12, 2006, the OEB announced its decision regarding the Company's rate application in respect of the Distribution Business 
of Hydro One Networks. As part of this decision, the OEB also approved the distribution-related deferral account balances sought 

by Hydro One. The RARA II includes retail settlement and cost variance amounts and distribution low-voltage service amounts, plus 

accrued interest. In the absence of rate-regulated accounting, amortization expense in 2010 would have been lower by $8 million 

(2009 - $23 million). In addition, related financing charges would have remained the same in both years. 

Rural. and Remote Rate Protection Variance Account (RRRP) 

Hydro One receives rural rate protection amounts from the IESO. A portion of these amounts is provided to retail customers of 

Hydro One Networks who are eligible for rate protection. In 2002, the OEB approved a mechanism to collect the RRRP through the 

Wholesale Market Service Charge. Variances between the amounts remitted by the IESO to Hydro One and the fixed entitlements 
defined in the regulation, and subsequent OEB utility rate decisions, are tracked by the Company in the RRRP variance account to be 

disposed of at a later date. 

Long-term Project Development Cost Account 

On May 28, 2009 the OEB approved the creation of a deferral account to record HydroOne's costs of preliminary work to 

advance certain transmission projects identified in its 2009 and 2010 transmission rate application. On March 25, 2010, the OEB 

issued a decision amending the scope of the account to include the 20 major transmission projects identified in the September 21, 

2009 request from the Government of Ontario. In its December 23, 2010 decision, the OEB approved the recovery of the 

December 31, 2009 balance, including accrued interest, over a one-year period from January 1, 2010 to December 31, 2011 

The Company anticipates that it will seek recovery for the remaining balance in its next transmission rate application. In the absence 

of rate-regulated accounting, operation, maintenance and administration expenses would have been higher by $5 million (2009 -
$2 million). 

Rider 4 or Revenue Recovery Account 

On December 18, 2008, the OEB announced its decision regarding the Company's rate application in respect of the Distribution 

Business of Hydro One Networks. The approved rates were effective May 1, 2008 with an implementation date of February 1, 

2009. The OEB approved the establishment of Rider 4 to record the revenue differential between existing distribution rates and the 

new rates. The OEB ordered that the approved revenue requirement be retroactively recovered, through a rate rider, over a period 

of 27 months commencing February 1, 2009 and ending April 30, 2011. 

Regulatory Liabilities 
Deferred Pension 

In accordance with the OEB's 1999 transitional rare order, pension costs are recorded in results of operations when employer 

contributions are paid into the pension plan. The Company's deferred pension asset represents the cumulative difference between 

employer contributions and pension costs and the deferred pension regulatory liability results from the Company's recognition, as the 
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result of OEB direction, of revenues and expenses in different periods than would be the case for an unregulated enterprise. In the 

absence of rate-regulated accounting, operating, maintenance and administration expense would have been lower by $22 million 

(2009 - higher by $9 million). 

External Revenue Variance Account 

In its May 28, 2009 decision, the OEB approved forecasted amounts related to export service revenue, external revenue from 

secondary and use and external revenue from station maintenance and engineering and construction work. These revenue sources 

are an offset to the Company's revenue requirement, and as such, the OEB requested the establishment of new variance accounts 

to capture any difference between the approved forecast and actual revenues from these sources of external revenue. The balance 

reflects the excess of external revenue compared to the OEB'approved forecast. The OEB's December 23, 2010 decision approved 

the disposition of the December 31, 2009 balance, including accrued interest, over a one-year period from January 1, 2010 to 

December 31, 2011 

Retail Settlement Variance Accounts (RSVA) 

Hydro One has deferred certain retail settlement variance amounts under the provisions of Article 490 of the OEB's Accounting 

Procedures Handbook The OEB's December 18, 2008 decision allowed for the disposition of RSVA accumulated since May 1, 

2006 through to April 30, 2008, inclusive of interest, within the Regulatory Liability Refund Account (RLRA). Hydro One Networks 

accumulated a net liability in its RSVA from May 1, 2008 to December 31, 2009. On April 9, 2010, the OEB announced 

its decision regarding Hydro One Networks' distribution rate application which included the allowance to dispose of the RSVA 

accumulated during that period, inclusive of interest, within Rider 6. Hydro One Networks has accumulated a net liability in its RSVA 

account since December 31, 2009.  

RLRA 

The OEB's December 18, 2008 decision approved certain distribution-related deferral account balances sought by Hydro One in its 

application including RSVA amounts, deferred tax changes, OEB costs and smart meters. Amounts approved for recovery represented 

balances incurred prior to April 30, 2008, plus associated interest. The OEB ordered that the approved balances be aggregated 

into a single regulatory account to be recovered over a 27-month period from February 1, 2009 to April 30, 2011 

Rider 6 

As part of the April 9, 2010 decision, the OEB approved certain distribution-related deferral account balances sought by Hydro 

One in its application including retail settlement variance accounts, regulatory asset recovery account I, retail cost variance accounts 

and smart meters. The OEB ordered that the approved balances be aggregated into a single regulatory account to be recovered 

over an 18-month period from May 1, 2010 to December 31, 2011 

Rider-  8 

As part of the April 9, 2010 decision, the OEB also requested the establishment of deferral accounts which capture the difference 

between the revenue recorded on the basis of Green Energy Plan expenditures incurred and actual recoveries received 

Hydro One Brampton Rider 

On April 13, 2010, the OEB issued a decision regarding the 2010 distribution rates of Hydro One Brampton. Included in the 

OEB's decision was the approval of certain deferral account balances, primarily RSVA, sought by Hydro One Brampton in its 

application. The OEB ordered that the approved balances be aggregated into a single regulatory account to be disposed of over a 

Iwo-year period from May 1, 2010 to April 30, 2012. 

Export and Wheeling Fees 

Consistent with the IESO's Market Rules, an export and wheeling fee is collected by the IESO and remitted to Hydro One at the 

rate of $1 per MWh on electricity exported outside of Ontario. The amounts collected in respect of these export and wheeling fees, 

plus interest, were taken into consideration in the revenue requirement of Hydro One Networks' Transmission Business as part of the 

Company's transmission rate application filed with the OEB in September 2006. On August 16, 2007, the OEB issued its decision 

in respect of the Company's transmission rate application and approved final amounts and disposition treatments for the export and 

wheeling fees. The export and wheeling fees were factored into rates over a four-year period ending December 31, 2010. 
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9. DEBT 

December 31 (Canadian clokrs in 	lions) 2010 2009 

Longterm debt: 

7.15% debentures due 2010 400 

3.89% notes due 2010 200 

4.08% notes due 201 1 ' 250 250 

6.40% notes due 2011 250 250 

5.77% notes due 2012 600 600 

5.00% notes due 2013 600 600 

3.13% notes due 2014 750 250 

2.95% notes due 2015 250 

4.64% notes due 2016 450 450 

5.18% notes due 2017 600 600 

4.40% notes due 2020 300 

7.35% debentures due 2030 400 400 

6.93% notes due 2032 500 500 

6.35% notes due 2034 385 385 

5.36% notes due 2036 600 600 

4.89% notes due 2037 400 400 

6.03% notes due 2039 300 300 

5.49% notes due 2040 500 300 

6.59% notes due 2043 315 315 

5.00% notes due 2046 32.5 75 

7,775 6,875 

Add! Unrealized hedged loss' 8 11 

Less: Long-term debt payable within one year (500) (600) 

Net unamortized premiums 27 24 

Unamortized debt issuance costs (32) (29) 

long-term debt 7,278 6,281 

' Ihe unieulized hedged loss [elutes to the MIN Series 14 Note, and $5100 rrrilliun of the MIN Series 19 Note issued in Junuoly of 2010, which cue 

accounted fca us foil vulue hedyes. Ihe unieulized hedged loss is offset by the $8 'Hi hum 12009- $1 I million/ unrealized 9c_in on the iekrted fixed-to-1.1(3(.01ns 

interest lute swop Cuceroents. 

Short-term debt represents promissory notes pursuant to the Company's Commercial Paper Program. The notes are denominated in 

Canadian dollars with varying maturities not exceeding 365 days. In 2010, the notes had a weighted average interest rale 

of 0.05%. 

Hydro One has a $1,250 million committed and unused revolving standby credit facility with a syndicate of banks maturing in June 

2013. If used, interest on the facility would apply based on Canadian benchmark rates. This credit facility supports the Company's 

Commercial Paper Program. In addition, the Company holds $250 million of Province of Ontario Floating Rate Notes. 

The Company issues notes for long-term financing under the Medium-Term Note (MTN) Program. The maximum authorized principal 

amount of medium-term notes issuable under this program is $3,000 million, of which $1,250 million was remaining and available 

as at December 31, 2010. 

The long-term debt is unsecured and denominated in Canadian dollars. Such debt is summarized by the number of years to maturity 

in Note 10. 

70 	HYDRO ONL ANNUAL RH-UR 1 2010 



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

10. CARRYING AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT 

The carrying value of financial instruments as at December 31, 2010 is as follows: 

(Canadian dollars in millions 

Other 
Financial 

	

Derivatives 	Instruments 

	

Used for 	Used for 	Held-for- 	Loans and Other Financial 

	

Hedging 	Hedging 	Trading 	Receivables 	Liabilities 

Financial Assets 

Cash 	 33 

Accounts receivable 	 911 

Short-term investments 	 139 

Long-term investment 	 249 

Other assets 	 8 	 1 

Financial Liabilities 

Accounts payable and 

accrued charges' 
	

861 

Long-term debt 	 - 	 758 
	

7,020 

' At:courts purble curd cxziued Chr..119e6 do ilot include income tratke5 purible cm dividends payable. 

The carrying amounts of all financial instruments, except long-term debt, approximate fair value. The fair value of derivative financial 

instruments reflects the estimated amount that the Company, if required to settle an outstanding contract, would have been required 

to pay or would be entitled to receive at year end. The fair value of long-term debt, provided in the table below, is based on 

unadjusted year-end market prices for the same or similar debt of tbe same remaining maturities. The fair value measurement of brig-
term debt is categorized as level 1 as the inputs used reflect quoted prices in an active market. 

December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 2010 	 2009  

	

Carrying 	 Fair 	Carrying 	 Fair 

	

Value 	 Value 	 Value 	 Value  

	

7,775 	 8,555 	 6,875 	 7,302 

 

Long-term debt' 

' the cur ryipy yoke oi kinyierrri debt tepiesents the par value ot the notes (Ad deberdures, ChM than the MIN Series /4 Note and $.300 <<lion uf the 

MIN Series /9 Note, whic:hoieclesiyeuted U.S part of hedyiny ielcdioeships. 

Exposure to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk arises in the normal course of the Company's business. 

Market Risk 

Market risk refers primarily to the risk of loss that results from changes in commodity prices, foreign exchange rates and interest 

rates. The Company does not have commodity risk. The Company does have foreign exchange risk as it enters into agreements 

to purchase materials and equipment associated with the Company's capital programs and projects that are settled in foreign 

currencies. This foreign exchange risk is not material, although the Company could in the future decide to issue foreign currency 

denominated debt which would be hedged back to Canadian dollars consistent with Hydro One's risk management policy. Hydro 

One is exposed to fluctuations in interest rates as the regulated rate of return for the Company's Distribution and Transmission 

Businesses is derived using a formulaic approach which is based on the forecast for long-term Government of Canada bond yields 

and the spread in 30-year"A"-rated Canadian wilily bonds over the 30year benchmark Government of Canada bond yield. The 

Company estimates that a 1% decrease in the forecasted long-term Government of Canada bond yield or the "K-rated Canadian 

utility spread used in determining the Company's rate of return would reduce its Transmission Business' results of operations by 

approximately $16 million and its Distribution Business' results of operations by approximately $10 million. 
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Credit Risk 

Financial assets create credit risk that a counter-party will fail to discharge an obligation, causing a financial loss. As at December 

31, 2010, there were no significant concentrations of credit risk with respect to any class of financial assets. The Company's revenue 

is earned from a broad base of customers. As a result, Hydro One did not earn a significant amount of revenue from any individual 

customer. As at December 31, 2010, there were no significant balances of accounts receivable due from any single customer. 

In the year, the Company's provision for bad debts remained unchanged at $25 million 12009 - $25 million). Minor adjustments 

and write-offs were determined on the basis of a review of overdue accounts, taking into consideration historical experience. As at 

December 31, 2010, approximately 3% of the Company's accounts receivable were aged more than 60 days. 

Hydro One manages its counter-party credit risk through various techniques including entering into transactions with highly-rated 

counter-parties; limiting total exposure levels with individual counter-parties consistent with the Company's Board-approved Credit Risk 

Policy; entering into master agreements which enable net settlement and the contractual right of offset; and monitoring the financial 

condition of counterparties. The Company's credit risk for accounts receivable is limited to the carrying amount on the Consolidated 
Balance Sheet. 

The Company uses derivative financial instruments to manage interest rate risk. Hydro One may enter into derivative agreements such 

as forward-starting pay fixed-interest rate swap agreements to hedge against the effect of future interest rate movements on long-term 

fixed rate borrowing requirements. No such agreements were outstanding as at December 31, 201 0 .  

Derivative financial instruments result in exposure to credit risk since there is a risk of counter-party default. As at December 31, 

2010, the derivative instruments held by Hydro One include a $250 million fixed-to-floating interest rate swap agreement to convert 

the 4.08% coupon note maturing March 3, 2011 into a three-month variable rate debt and two $250 million fixed-to-floating 

interest rate swap agreements to convert $500 million of the 3.13% coupon note maturing November 19, 2014 into a three-month 

variable rate debt. The counter-pa rty credit risk exposure on the fair value of the three interest rate swap contracts is $1 1 million as at 

December 31, 2010. 

Liquidity Risk 

Liquidity risk refers to the Company's abiliy to meet its financial obligations as they come due. Short-term liquidity is provided 

through cash and cash equivalents on hand, funds from operations, the Company's Commercial Paper Program, under which it is 

authorized to issue up to $1,000 million in short-term notes with a term to maturity of less than 365 days, our revolving credit facility 

and through our holdings of Province of Ontario Floating Rate Notes. The Commercial Paper Program is supported by a total of 

$1,500 million in liquidity facilities comprised of a $1, 250 million committed revolving credit facility with a syndicate of banks 

maturing June 1, 2013 and the holding of $250 million of Province of Ontario Floating Rate Notes. The short-term liquidity under 

this program and anticipated levels of funds from operations should be sufficient to fund our normal operating requirements. 

As at December 31, 2010, accounts payable and accrued charges in the amount of $861 million are expected to be settled in 

cash at their carrying amounts within the next year. Long-term debt maturing over the next twelve months is $500 million. Interest 

payments over the next 12 months on the Company's outstanding long-term debt amount to $405 million. 

As at December 31, 2010, Hydro One has issued long-term debt in the amount of $7,775 million and the Company is required 

to make interest payments in the amount of $6,599 million. Principal outstanding, interest payments and related weighted average 

interest rates are summarized by the number of years to maturity in the following table. 
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Years  to  Maturity 

Principal Outstanding on 

Notes and Debentures 

(Canadian dollars in millions) 

Interest Payments 

(Canadian dollars in millions) 

Weighted Average 

Interest Rate 

(Percent) 

1 year 500 405 5.2 

2 years 600 383 5.8 

3 years 600 349 5.0 

4 years 750 319 3.1 

5 years 250 295 3.0 

2,700 1,751 4.5 

6- 10 years 1,350 1,246 4.8 

Over 10 years 3,725 3,602 6.0 

7,775 6,599 5.3 

11. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 
The Company's objectives with respect to its capital structure are to maintain effective access to capital on a long-term basis at 

reasonable rates, and to deliver appropriate financial returns. In order to ensure ongoing effective access to capital, the Company 

targets to maintain an 'A.  category long-term credit rating. 

The Company considers its capital structure to consist of shareholder's equity, short-term notes payable, long-term debt and cash and 

cash equivalents. The Company's capital structure as at December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009 was as follows: 

(Canadian dollars in millions) 2010 2009 

Short-term notes payable 55 

Long-term debt payable within one year 500 600 

Less: Cash and cash equivalents 33 (26) 

467 681 

Long-term debt 7,278 6,281 

Preferred Shares 323 323 

Common Shares 3,314 3,314 

Retained Earnings 2,354 1,791 

5,991 5,428 

Total Capital 13,736 12,390 

For the purposes of this table and the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, "cash and cash equivalents" refers to the 

Consolidated Balance Sheet items "cash" and "bank indebtedness." 

The Company has customary covenants typically associated with long-term debt. Among other things, Hydro One's long-term debt 

and credit facility covenants limit the permissible debt to 75% of the Company's total capitalization, limit the ability to sell assets and 

impose a negative pledge provision, subject to customary exceptions. At December 31, 2010, Hydro One is in compliance with all 

of these covenants and limitations. 
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12. EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS 
Hydro One has a contributory defined benefit pension plan covering all regular employees of Hydro One and its subsidiaries, 

except Hydro One Brampton. Employees of Hydro One Brampton participate in the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement System 

(OMERS), a multi-employer public sector pension fund. Current contributions by Hydro One Brampton are approximately $1 million 

annually. 

Nan Asset Mix 
Hydro One's pension plan asset mix at December 31, 2010 and 2009 was as follows' 

% of Flan Assets 

December 31 2010 2009 
Equity securities 63.5 63.3 

Debt securities 30.7 32.9 

Other 5.8 3.8 

100.0 100.0 

Supplementary information 
The Hydro One pension plan holds $14 million of Hydro One Inc. corporate bonds (2009 - $9 million) and holds debt securities of 

the Province of $70 million at December 31, 2010 (2009 - $88 million). 

The Company's pension plan provides benefits based on highest three-year average pensionable earning& For new management 
employees who commenced employment on or after January 1, 2004, and for new Society of Energy Professionals hired after 

November 17, 2005, benefits are based on highest fiveyear average pensionable earnings. After retirement, pensions are indexed 

to inflation. The measurement date used to determine plan assets and the accrued benefit obligation is December 31. Based on the 

actuarial valuation filed with the Financial Services Commission of Ontario (FSCO) in September 2010, effective for December 31, 

2009, the Company contributed $193 million to its pension plan in respect of 2010 (2009 - $1 1 2 million), $145 million of which 

is required to satisfy minimum funding requirements. The Company made an additional payment of $48 million in December 2010. 

Contributions are payable one month in arrears. All of the contributions are expected to be in the form of cash. Contributions after 

2012 will be based on an actuarial valuation effective December 31, 2012 and will depend on future investment returns, and 

changes in benefits or actuarial assumptions. 

Total cash payments for employee future benefits made in 2010, consisting of cash contributed by the Company to its funded pension 

plan and cash payments directly to beneficiaries for its unfunded other benefit plans, was $233 million (2009 - $155 million) 
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Year ended December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 

Pension 

2010  2009 

Employee Future Benefits 

other than Pension 

2010 	 2009 

Change in accrued benefit obligation 
Accrued benefit obligation, January 1 4,566 4,007 1,004 874 

Current service cost 94 73 24 19 

Interest cost 294 286 65 63 

Reciprocal transfers 4 - 

Benefits paid (262) (270) (42) (43) 
Net actuarial loss (gain) 300  470 127 91 

Accrued benefit obligation, December 31 4,996  4,566 1,178 1,004 

Change in plan assets 
Fair value of plan assets, January 1 4,336 3,836 

Actual return on plan assets 421 642 

Reciprocal transfers 4 6 

Benefits paid (262) (270) 

Employer's contributions' 191 112 

Employees' contributions 24 21 

Administrative expenses (15) (11) 
Fair value of plan assets, December 31 4,699 4,336 

Funded status 
Unfunded benefit obligation (297) (230) (1,178) (1,004) 

Unamortized net actuarial losses (gains) 746 640 144 10 

Unamortized past service costs 11 14  11 14 

Deferred pension asset (accrued benefit liability) 460 424 (1,023) (980) 

Less: Current portion - 43  40 

Deferred pension asset (long-term liability) 460  424 (980) (940) 

hi Jurtuuly 2011, the Curet.x3rly mode u conhibutiort of 	in impect of 201012010- $10 million in te•spect of 2009}. 
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Year ended December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 2010 

Pension 

2009 

Employee Future Benefits 

Other Than Pension 

2010 	 2009 

Components of net periodic benefit cost 

Current service cost, net of employee contributions 70 52 24 19 

Interest cost 294 286 65 63 

Actual return on plan assets net of expenses (406) (631) 
Actuarial loss (gain) 300 470 127 91 

Other (1)  (1) 

Costs arising in the period 257 176 216 173 

Differences between costs arising in the period and 

costs recognized in the period in respect of: 

Return on plan assets 129 359 

Actuarial (gain) loss (236) (410) (134) (101) 
Plan amendments 4 4 4 4 

Net periodic benefit cost 154 129 86 76 
Charged to results of operations./ 134 68 51 46 

Effect of a 1% increase in health care cost trench on: 

Accrued benefit obligation, December 31 185 141 

Service cost and interest cost 15 13 

Effect of a 1% decrease in health care cost trench on: 

Accrued benefit obligation, December 31 (146) (113) 

Service cost and interest cost (12) (10) 

Significant assumptions 

For net periodic benefit cost: 

Expected rate of return on plan assets 6.50% 7.25% - 

Weighted average discount rate 6.50% 7.25% 6.50% 7.25% 

Rate of compensation scale escalation (without merit) 230% 2.75% 2.50% 2.75% 

Rate of cost of living increase 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 

Average remaining service life of 

employees (years) 10 10 11 11 

Rate of increase in health care cost trend' 4.81% 4.81% 

For accrued benefit obligation, December 31: 

Weighted average discount rate 5.75% 6.50% 5.75% 6.50% 

Rale of compensation scale escalation (without merit) 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 

Rate of cost of living increase 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 

Rate of increase in health care cost trend" 4.86% 4.81% 

7  Ihre Q'Jrripony folkms the cosh bosis otQca.iunting. Duilly 2010, pension costs of $191 million 12009 - $1 13 million) were othibutid to Upon', of which 

$ 134 million 12009- $68 million/ wan chulyed to optlotions and $.5/ million 12009 - $45 	was COpit(.111Zed us put of the cost of fixed onsets. 

8.5/% in 2010 giodiny down to 4.8 1% pe onnutri in and <Ate' 2029 12009 - 8.81% in 2009 yiodiny down to 4.8 1% per onnuin in and Qftel 20291. 

4  8.31% in 201 1 yodiny down to 4.86% pci atrium in and (Ike' 2029 12009 - 8..5/%4, 2010 9uding down to 4.8 1% pei onnum in (Ind J.*, 20291. 
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13. ENVIRONMENTAL LIABILITIES 

December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 

Polychlorinated 

Biphenyls 

IPCB) 

Land Assessment 

and Remedia riot, 

(LAR) Total 

2010 
 

Opening balance, January 1 262 65 327 
Interest accretion 13 2 15 
Expenditures (9) (8) (17) 
Revaluation adjustment (1.5) (1) (16) 
Ending balance, December 31 251 58 309 
Less: Current portion (15) (7) (22) 

236 51 287 

2009 
Opening balance, January 1 225 28 253 
Interest accretion 12 1 13 

Expenditures (4) 15) (9) 
Revaluation adjustment 29 41 70 

Ending balance, December 31 262 65 327 
Less: Current portion (14) (10) (24) 

248 55 303 

Estimated future environmental expenditures for each of the five years subsequent to December 31, 2010 and in total thereafter are 

as follows: 2011 - $22 million; 2012 - $23 million; 2013 - $34 million; 2014 - $40 million; 2015 - $33 million and thereafter - 

$217 million. Of the total estimated future expenditures, $308 million relate to PCB (2009- $320 million) and $61 million to (AR 

(2009 - $69 million). 

Consistent with its accounting policy for environmental costs, hydro One records a liability for the estimated future expenditures 

associated with the removal and destruction of PCB-contaminated insulating oils and related electrical equipment and for [he 

assessment and remediation of chemically-contaminated lands. The Company's recorded liability is based on management's best 

estimate of the present value of the future expenditures expected to be required to comply with existing regulations. 

There are uncertainties in estimating future environmental costs due to potential external events such as changes in legislation or 

regulations and advances in remediation technologies. All factors used in estimating the Company's environmental liabilities represent 

management's best estimates of [he present value cost required to meet existing legislation or regulations. However, it is reasonably 

possible [hat numbers or volumes of contaminated assets, cost estimates to perform work, inflation assumptions and the assumed 

pattern of annual cash flows may differ significantly from [he Company's current assumptions. In addition, for [he PCB program, [he 

availability of critical resources such as skilled labour and replacement assets and the ability to take maintenance outages in critical 

facilities may influence the timing of expenditures. Estimated environmental liabilities are reviewed annually or more frequently if 

significant changes in regulation or other relevant factors occur. Estimate changes are accounted for prospectively. 

In determining the amounts to be recorded as environmental liab lilies, [he Company estimates the current cost of completing required 
work and makes assumptions as to when [he future expenditures will actually be incurred, in order to generate future cash flow 

information. A long-term inflation assumption of approximately 2% has been used to express these current cost estimates as estimated 

future expenditures. Future environmental expenditures have been discounted using factors ranging from 3.75% to 6.25%, depending 

on the appropriate rate for the period when increases in the obligations were first recorded. 

PCBs 

On September 17, 2008, Environment Canada published its final regulations governing the management, storage and disposal of 

PCBs. These regulations were enacted under [he Canadian Environmental Protection Act, 1999. The regulations impose timelines 

for disposal of PCBs based on criteria including type of equipment, in-use status and PCB-contamination thresholds. All PCBs in 
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concentrations of 500 parts per million (ppm) or more, except for specified equipment, had to be disposed of by the end of 2009 .  

However, in 2009, Hydro One sought and received an extension until 2014 for the removal of PCB from certain station equipment 

that could potentially be contaminated in excess of this threshold. Under the regulations, PCBs in equipment in concentrations greater 

than 50 ppm and less than 500 ppm, or greater than 50 ppm for pole-top transformers, pole-top auxiliary electrical equipment and 

light ballasts must be disposed of by the end of 2025. 

Management judges that the Company currently has very few PCB-contaminated assets in excess of 500 ppm. Priority will be given 

to targeting inspection and testing work toward identifying and removing PCB in assets that must be compliant by 2014. Assets b 

be disposed of by 2025 primarily consist of pde-mounted distribution line transformers and light ballasts. Contaminated distribution 

and transmission station equipment will generally be replaced or will be decontaminated by removing PCB-contaminated insulating 

oil and retrofilling with replacement oil that is less than 2 ppm. 

Management's best estimate of the total estimated future expenditures to comply with PCB regulations is about $308 million. These 

expenditures are expected to be incurred over the period from 2011 to 2025 As a result of its most recent cost estimate to comply 

with existing PCB regulations, the Company reduced its December 31, 201 0 PCB liability by approximately $15 million compared 

to September 30, 2010.  

LAR 
As part of its annual review of environmental liabilities, the Company also reviewed its liability for lAR. As a result of this review, 

the Company reduced its December 31, 2010 liabiliy by approximately $1 million compared to September 30, 2010. The 

Company's best estimate of the total future expenditures to complete its [AR program is about $61 million. 

14. ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS 
Consistent with the Company's accounting policy for asset retirement obligations, Hydro One records a liability for the present value 

of the estimated future expenditures associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets that the Company is legally required 

to remove. A corresponding amount is recorded as an asset retirement cost that is capitalized as part of the carrying amount of the 

related fixed asset 

There are uncertainties in estimating future expenditures due to potential external events such as changing legislation or regulations 

and advances in remediation technologies. All factors used in estimating the Company's asset retirement obligations represent 

management's best estimates of the costs required to meet existing legislation or regulations. However, it is reasonably possible that 

numbers or volumes of contaminated assets, cast estimates to perform work, inflation assumptions and the assumed pattern of annual 

cash flows may differ significantly from the Company's current assumptions. Asset retirement obligations are reviewed annually or 

more frequently if significant changes in regulation or other relevant factors occur. Estimate changes are accounted for prospectively. 

In determining the amounts to be recorded as asset retirement obligations, the Company estimates the current fair yoke for 

completing required removal and remediation work and makes assumptions as to when the future expenditures will actually be 

incurred, in order to generate future cash flow information. A long-term inflation assumption of approximately 2% has been used to 

express these current cost estimates as estimated future expenditures. Future expenditures have been discounted using factors ranging 

from approximately 3% to 5%, depending on the appropriate rate for the period when expenditures are expected to be incurred. 

Hydro One has recorded a liabiliy for the estimated future expenditures associated with the removal and disposal of asbestos-

containing materials installed in some of its facilities. The Company's liability is based on management's best estimate of the present 

value of the estimated future expenditures to comply with existing regulations. During the year, the Company completed a study with 

the aid of an expert external consultant to estimate the future expenditures required to remove asbestos prior to facility demolition. The 

Company has recorded a $7 million liability in respect of this obligation as at December 31, 2010 based on the net present value 

of the Company's best estimate of the total future expenditures of $18 million to complete its asbestos removal activities. 

Hydro One has also recorded a $4 million asset retirement obligation related to the decommissioning and removal of its switching 

station located at Ontario Power Generation's Abitibi Canyon Generating Station 

78 	HYDRO ONE ANNUAL REPOR I 2010 



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

15. SHARE CAPITAL 

Common and Preferred Shares 
On March 31, 2000, the Company issued to the Province 12,920,000 5.5% cumulative preferred shares with a redemption value 

of $25.00 per share, and 99,990 common shares, bringing the total number of outstanding common shares to 100,000. The 

Company is authorized to issue an unlimited number of preferred and common shares. 

The preferred shares are entitled to an annual cumulative dividend of $18 million, which is payable on a quarterly basis. The 

preferred shares are redeemable at the option of the Province at a price of $25 per share, representing the stated value, plus 

any accrued and unpaid dividends if the Province sells a number of the common shares which it owns to the public such that the 

Province's holdings are reduced to less than 50% of the common shares of the Company Hydro One may elect, without condition, 

to pay all or part of this redemption price by issuing additional common shares to the Province. If the Province does not exercise 

its redemption right, the Company would have the ability to adjust the dividend on the preferred shares to produce a yield that is 

0.50% less than the then-cur-rent dividend market yield for similarly rated preferred shares. The preferred shares do not carry voting 

rights, except in limited circumstances, and would rank in priority over the common shares upon liquidation. 

Dividends 
Common dividends are declared at the sole discretion of the Hydro One Board of Directors, and are recommended by management 

hosed on results of operations, maintenance of the deemed regulatory capital structure, financial condition, cash requirements and 

other relevant factors such as industry practice and shareholder expectations. 

In 2010, preferred dividends in the amount of $18 million (2009 - $18 million) and common dividends in the amount of $10 

million (2009 - $170 million) were declared. 

Earnings per Share 
Earnings per share is calculated as net income during the ),ear, after cumulative preferred dividends, divided by the weighted 

average number of common shares outstanding during the year. 

16. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
The Province, OEFC, 1E50, Ontario Power Authority (OPA) and Ontario Power Generation Inc. (OPG) are related parties of Hydro 

One. In addition the OEB is related to the Company by virtue of its status as a Provincial Crown Corporation. Transactions between 

these parties and Hydro One were as follows: 

Hydro One received revenue for transmission services from IESO, based on uniform transmission rates approved by the OEB. 

Transmission revenue for 2010 includes $1,277 million (2009 - $1,121 million) related to these services. Hydro One receives 

amounts for rural rate protection from the IESO. Distribution revenue for 2010 includes $127 million (2009 - $127 million) related 
to this program. Hydro One also received revenue related to the supply of electricity to remote northern communities from the IESO. 

Distribution revenue for 2010 includes $28 million (2009 - $31 million) related to these services. 

In 2010, Hydro One purchased power in the amount of $2,361 million (2009 - $2,265 million) from the IESO administered 

electricity marker, $19 million (2009- $19 million) from OPG and $1 3 million (2009- $11 million) from OEFC. 

Under the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998, the OEB is required to recover all of its annual operating costs from gas and electricity 

distributors and electricity transmitters. In 2010, Hydro One incurred $11 million (2009- $10 million) in OEB fees. 

Hydro One has service level agreements with the other successor corporations. These services include field, engineering, logistics 

and telecommunications services. Revenues related to he provision of construction and equipment maintenance services to the other 

successor corporations were $14 million (2009 - $1 3 million), primarily for the Transmission Business. Operation, maintenance and 

administration costs related to the purchase of services from the other successor corporations were less than $2 million in each of 

2010 and 2009. 
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The OPA funds substantially all of our Conservation Demand Management (CDM) programs. The funding includes program costs, 

incentives, management fees and bonuses In 2010, Hydro One received $38 million from the OPA in respect of the CDM 

programs (2009 - $23 million) and had a net accounts receivable of $1 million in both 2010 and 2009. 

The provision for payments in lieu of corporate income taxes, properly taxes and capital taxes was paid or payable to the OEFC 

and dividends were paid or payable to the Province. 

The amounts due lo and from related parties as a result of the transactions referred to above are as follows: 

December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 	 2010 	 2009  

Accounts receivable 	 111 	 108  

Accounts payable and accrued charges 	 (283) 	 (254) 

Included in accounts payable and accrued charges are amounts owing to the IESO in respect of power purchases of $222 million 

(2009 - $211 million) .  

17. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

For the purposes of the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, 'cash and cash equivalents' refers to the Consolidated Balance 

Sheet items 'cash', "short-term investments° and °bank indebtedness.' The changes in non-cash balances related to operations 

consist of the following: 

Year ended December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 2010 2009 

Accounts receivable increase (68) (89) 

Materials and supplies increase - (2) 

Accounts payable and accrued charges increase 87 

Accrued interest increase 10 10 

Long-term accounts payable and other liabilities (decrease) increase (3) 4 

Empbyee future benefits other than pension increase 40 32 

Other 11 7 

77 (38) 

Supplernertiary information: 

Interest paid 409 361 

Payments in lieu of corporate income taxes 48 77 

18. CONTINGENCIES 

Legal Proceedings 
Hydro One is involved in various lawsuits, claims and regulatory proceedings in the normal course of business. In the opinion of 

management, the outcome of such matters will not have a material adverse effect on the Company's consolidated financial position, 

results of operations or cash flows. 

On March 29, 1999, the Whitesand First Nation Band commenced an action in the Ontario Superior Court of Justice, naming as 

defendants the Province, the Attorney General of Canada, Ontario Hydro, OEFC, OPG and our Company. On May 24, 2001, the 

Whitesand First Nation Band issued an almost identical claim against the same parties. The Red Rock First Nation Band commenced 

a similar claim on September 7, 2001 against the same parties. In 2004, the various claims were consolidated. These actions 

sought declaratory relief, injunctive relief and damages in an unspecified amount. The claims arose out of flooding activities of 

Ontario Hydro and the alleged effects of flooding on lands in which the two First Nations claim an interest. In May 2009, all parties 

entered into an agreement to dismiss all actions against Hydro One on a without costs basis. On July 27, 2010, by court order, the 

consolidated action and the cross claim of the Attorney General of Canada against Hydro One were dismissed without costs. 
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Transfer of Assets 

The transfer orders by which we acquired certain of Ontario Hydro's businesses as of April 1, 1999 did not transfer title to some 

assets located on lands held for bands or bodies of Indians under the Indian Act (Canada). Currently, OEFC holds these assets 

Under the terms of the transfer orders, we are required to manage these assets until we have obtained all consents necessary to 

complete the transfer of title of these assets to us. We cannot predict the aggregate amount that we may have to pay, either on an 

annual or one-time basis, to obtain the required consents. However, we anticipate having to pay more than the $761,500 that 

we paid to these Indian bands and bodies in 2010. If we cannot obtain consents from the Indian bands and bodies, OEFC will 

continue to hold these assets for an indefinite period of lime. If we cannot reach a satisfactory settlement, we may have to relocate 

these assets from the Indian lands to other locations at a cost that could be substantial or, in a limited number of cases, to abandon a 

line and replace it with diesel-generation facilities. The costs relating 10 these assets could have a material adverse effect on our net 

income if we are not able to recover them in future rate orders. 

19. COMMITMENTS  

Agreement with Inergi 

Effective March 1, 2002, Inergi LP (Inergi) (a wholly owned subsidiary of Cap Gemini Canada Inc.) began providing services 10 

Hydro One. On May 1, 2010, consistent with the terms of the contract, the Company extended the Master Services Agreement 

with Inergi for a further three-year period to expire on February 28, 2015. As a result of this agreement, Hydro One receives from 

Inergi a range of services including business processing and information technology outsourcing services, as well as core system 

support related primarily to SAP implementation and optimization. Inergi billing for these services has ranged between $93 million 

and $130 million per year and is subject to external benchrna king every three years to ensure Hydro One is receiving a defined 
competitive and continuously improved price. In connection with this agreement, on March 1, 2002 the Company transferred 

approximately 900 employees to Inergi, including about 130 non-regular employees. 

The annual commitments under the agreement in each of the five years subsequent to December 31, 2010, and in total thereafter 

are as follows: 2011 - $143 million; 2012 - $139 million; 2013- $135 million; 2014 - $130 million; 2015 - $22 million; and 

thereafter - $nil. The agreement expires on February 28, 2015. 

Prudential Support 
Purchasers of electricity in Ontario, through the IESO, are required to provide security to mitigate the risk of their default based on 

their expected activity in the market. As at December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009, the Company provided prudential 

support to rhe IESO on behalf of Hydro One Networks and Hydro One Brampton using only parental guarantees of $325 million. 

Prudential support at December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009 was also provided on behalf of two distributors using 

guarantees of $660 thousand. The IESO could draw on these guarantees if these subsidiaries or distributors fail 10 make a payment 

required by a default notice issued by the IESO. The maximum potential payment is the face value of any bank letters of credit 

plus the nominal amount of the corporate guarantee. If Hydro One's highest long-term credit rating deteriorated to below the "Aa" 

category, the Company would be required to resume providing letters of credit as prudential support. 

Retirement Compensation Arrangements 

Bank letters of credit have been issued to provide security for the Company's liability under the terms of a trust fund established 

pursuant to the supplementary pension plan for the employees of Hydro One and its subsidiaries. The trustee is required to draw 

upon the letters of credit if Hydro One is in default of its obligations under the terms of this plan. Such obligations include the 

requirement to provide the trustee with an annual actuarial report as well as letters of credit sufficient to secure the Company's 

liabiliy under the plan, to pay benefits payable under the plan and to pay the letter of credit fee. The maximum potential payment 

is the face value of the bank letters of credit. As at December 31, 2010, Hydro One had bank letters of credit of $113 million 

(2009 - $107 million) outstanding relating to retirement compensation arrangements. 

Operating Leases 
The future minimum lease payments under operating leases for each of the five years subsequent to December 31, 2010, and in 

total thereafter are as follows: 2011 - $5 million; 2012 - $8 million; 2013 - $6 million; 2014 - $7 million; 201 5 - $2 million; and 

thereafter - $25 million. 
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20. SEGMENT REPORTING 
Hydro One has three reportable segments: 

• The Transmission Business, which comprises the core business of providing transportation and connection services, is 

responsible for transmitting electric-1y throughout the Ontario electricity grid; 

• The Distribution Business, which comprises the core business of delivering and selling electricity to customers; and 

• The "other' segment, the operations of which primarily consist of those of the telecommunications business. 

The designation of segments is based on a combination of regulatory status and the nature of the products and services provided. 

The accounting policies followed by the segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant accounting policies 

(see Note 2). Segment information on the above basis is as follows: 

Year ended December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) Transmission Distribution Orher  Consolidated 

2010 

Segment proFrt 

Revenues 1,307 3,754 63 5,124 

Purchased power 2,474 2,474 

Operation, maintenance and administration 416 602 60 1,078 

Depreciation and amortization 273 300 10 583 

Income (loss) before financing charges and provision 

for payments in lieu of corporate income taxes 618 378 (7) 989 

Financing charges 342 

Income before provision for payments in lieu of 

corporate income taxes 647 

Capital expenditures 936 629  5 1,570 

Year ended December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) Transmission Distribution Other  Consolidated 

2009 

Segment profit 

Revenues 1, 147 3,534 63 4,744 

Purchased power 2,326 2,326 

Operation, maintenance and administration 438 564 55 1,057 

Depreciation and amortization 240 287  10 537 

Income (loss) before financing charges and provision for 

payments in lieu of corporate income taxes 4-69 357 (2) 824 

Financing charges 308 

Income before provision for payments in lieu of 

corporate income taxes 516 

Capital expenditures 918 643 5  1,566 

December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 2010  2009 

Total assets 

Transmission 9,805 8,993 

Distribution 6,908 6,481 

Other 609  161 

17,322 15,635 

All revenues, costs and assets, as the case may be, are earned, incurred or held in Canada.  
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21. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

On February 2, 2011, the Power Workers' Union (PWU) requested that the Ministry of tabour appoint a Conciliation Officer to 

assist Hydro One and the PWU in finalizing a new collective agreement. Negotiations on the new agreement began on January 10, 

2011.  

On January 24, 2011, Hydro One issued notes under the Company's MTN Program. The issue consisted of $50 million Howling-rate 

notes with a maturity date of July 24, 2015. 

On January 19, 2011, Hydro One issued $250 million in notes under the Company's MTN Program. The issue has an additional 

offering of 2.95% notes maturing on September 11, 2015, originally issued on September 13, 2010. The total amount outstanding 

for this issue is now $500 million. 

On January 19, 2011, Hydro One entered into two $125 million notional principal amount fixed-to-floating interest rate swaps to 

convert $250 million of Hydro One's 2.95% coupon note maturing September 11, 2015, into Ihree-month variable rate debt .  

On January 17, 2011, the PWU made an appeal to the Divisional Court of Ihe Supreme Court of Canada under the Ontario 

Energy Board Act, 1998 in regard to the OEB's December 23, 201 0 decision approving Hydro One Networks' transmission rates 

for 2011 and 2012. The PWU submitted the appeal on the grounds that the decision failed to identify operations, maintenance 

and administration costs that the OEB considers imprudent and were therefore omitted in the calculation of the approved revenue 

requirement. The PWU is requesting that the OEB's determination regarding the revenue requirement and related rates be set aside 
and that the matter be remitted to a differently constituted panel of the OEB for a new hearing with respect to these issues. The 

appeal is not anticipated to impad upon the collection of the new 2011 transmission rates during the proceeding. The outcome of 

this appeal is not determinable at this time. 

22. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 

The comparative Consolidated Financial Statements have been reclassified from statements previously presented to conform to the 

presentation of the December 31, 2010 Consolidated Financial Statements. 

In the third quarter, the Company changed the presentation of tax balances associated with certain temporary differences related 

to intangible assets and other regulatory account balances, to reflect how these balances will ultimately be settled. As a result, 

the Company reclassified the tax balances associated with these temporary differences, such that the amount of future income lax 

liabilities and the related net regulatory asset in the interim period balance sheet, and in the comparative December 31, 2009 

balance sheet, have been reduced by $160 million. The change in presentation has no impact on revenue or operating cash How. 
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Year ended December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 2010 2009 2008  2007 2006 

Statement of operations data 

Revenues 

Transmission 1,307 1,147 1,212 1,242 1,245 

Distribution 3,754 3,534 3,334 3,382 3,273 

Other 63 63 51 31  27 

5,124 4,744 4,597 4,655 4,545 

Costs 

Purchased power 2474 2,326 2,181 2,240 2,221 

Operation, maintenance and 

administration 1,078 1,057 965 995 880 

Depreciation and amortization 583 537  548 521 515 

4,135 3,920 3,694 3,756 3,616 

Income before financing charges and provision 

for payments in lieu of corporate income taxes 989 824 903 899 929 

Financing charges 342 308 292 295  295 

Income before provision for payments in lieu 

of corporate income taxes 647 516 611 604 634 

Provision for payments in lieu of corporate 

income taxes 56 46 113 205  179 

Net income  591 470 498 399 455 

Bask and fully diluted earnings per 

common share  (Canadian dollars) 5,727 4,528 4,797 3,809 4,366 

December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 

Balance sheet data 

Assets 

Transmission 9,805 8,993 7,877 7,273 6,950 

Distribution 6,908 6,481 5,873 5,407 5,161 

Other  609 161 128 106 99 

Total assets 17,322 15,635 13,878 12,786 12,210 

Liabilities 

Current liabilities (including current portion 

of long-term debt) 1,540 1,655 1,300 1,452 1,194 

Long-term debt 7,278 6,281 5,733 5,063 4,848 

Other long-term liabilities 2,523 2,281 1,721 1,385 1,347 

Shareholder's equity 

Share capital 3,637 3,637 3,637 3,637 3,637 

Retained earnings 2,354 1,791 1,497 1,258 1,184 

Accumulated other comprehensive income (10) (10) (10) (9) 
Total liabilities and shareholder's equity 17,322 15,635 13,878 12,786 12,210 
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EAR SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL 

Year ended December 31 (Canadian dollars in millions) 2010 2009 2008  2007 2006 

Other financial data 
Capital expenditures 

Transmission 936 918 704 560 402 

Distribution 629 643 570 511 417 

Other  5 5 10 20 4 

Total capital expenditures 1,570 1,566 1,284 1,091  823 

Ratios 
Net asset coverage on long-term debt' 177 1.79 1.84 1.87 1.92 

Earnings coverage ratio' 2.39 2.15 2.63 2.67 2.67 

Operating statistics 
Transmission 

Units transmitted (T'M4' 142.2 139.2 148.7 152.2 151.1 

Ontario 20-minute system peak demand (MW)' 25,145 24,477 24,231 25,809 27,056 

Ontario 60-minute system peak demand (10WP 25,075 24,380 24,195 25,737 27,005 

Total transmission lines (circuit-kilometres) 28,951 28,924 29,039 28,915 28,600 

Distribution 

Units distributed to Hydro One customers 29.1 28.9 29.9 30.2 29.0 

Units distributed through Hydro One lines (TVVh)'A 42.5 43.5 44.7 45.7 44.7 

Total distribution lines 	(circuit-kilometres) 123,552 123,528 123,260 122,933 122,460 

Customers 1,345,177 1,333,920 1,325,745 1,311,714 1,293,396 

Total regular employees 5,717 5,427 5,032 4,602 4,295 

' I he net asset covelaye an lungtetni debt latio is culculated us Idol assets minus fatal 	excludiny lorrj-teini debt lincludiny cm lent puilionf divided 

by lonyieirri debt lincluding culient poitionf, 

7  I he eon rings CXNe1C-19e Idit) bus been WICUk_Ited on the sue of net 111WITle, fillth1C1119 CIN...119e5C/Ild I.NOVISKJE1 fun payments in lieu of copulate IIKX)rile tunes 

divided by the sum of fincinciny chaiyes, capitalized interest cud curriulitive pit/felled dividends. 

Systertneluted statistics include pieliminaly figures fon Decenibei. 

4  Units distributed thtaucjh Hydro One lines leplesett fatal dist' ibuion system leguilernenb and include elechicity dish ibuted to (.7.7115U111e15 who pUICFR.1.5ed 

power dilectly fiats the IESC). 
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Financial Statements

GREAT LAKES POWER TRANSMISSION LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
December 31, 2009



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Auditors’ Report 
 
 
To the Partners of 
Great Lakes Power Transmission Limited Partnership 
 
 
We have audited the balance sheet of Great Lakes Power Transmission Limited Partnership (the 
“Partnership”) as at December 31, 2009 and the statements of partners’ equity, income and 
comprehensive income and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the 
responsibility of the General Partner, Great Lakes Power Transmission Inc.  Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.  Those 
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. 
 
In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
the Partnership as at December 31, 2009 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year 
then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. 
 
 

 
 
 
Chartered Accountants 
Licensed Public Accountants 
 
April 9, 2010 
 
 
 

Deloitte & Touche LLP 
Brookfield Place 
181 Bay Street 
Suite 1400 
Toronto ON  M5J 2V1 
Canada 
 
Tel: (416) 601-6150  
Fax: (416) 601-6151  
www.deloitte.ca 

 



Great Lakes Power Transmission Limited Partnership
Balance Sheet
as at December 31, 2009

thousands of CDN dollars Notes 2009 2008

Assets
Current Assets
Cash 393$             1,990$           
Accounts receivable 3,152           3,014             
Due from related parties 5 203              -                 
Prepaid expenses and other 215              -                 
Current portion of regulatory asset 8 358              1,649             

4,321           6,653             

Pension asset 9 1,587           -                 
Regulatory asset 8 716              4,044             
Property, plant and equipment, net 6 215,401       212,330         

222,025$      223,027$       

Liabilities and Capital Account
Current liabilities
Accounts and other payables 1,635$          505$              
Current portion of regulatory liability 8 1,340           -                 
Due to related parties 5 279              2,080             

3,254           2,585             

  1

3,254           2,585             

Pension liability 9 1,837           -                 
Regulatory liability 8 2,680           2,512             
Trans senior bonds 7 117,025       119,079         

124,796       124,176         

Partners' Equity 97,229         98,851           
222,025$      223,027$       
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Great Lakes Power Transmission Limited Partnership
Statement of Partners' Equity
for the year ended December 31, 2009

thousands of CDN dollars Notes

Brookfield 
Infrastructure 

Holdings 
(Canada) Inc. 

Great Lakes 
Power 

Transmission 
Inc. 2009 2008

Partners' equity, beginning of year 98,754$            97$                   98,851$          76,409$          
Allocation of net income 7,371                7                       7,378              10,708            
Allocation of contributed surplus adjustment 14 -                    -                    -                 21,275            
Distributions (8,991)               (9)                      (9,000)            (9,541)            
Partners' equity, end of year 97,134$            95$                   97,229$          98,851$          
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Great Lakes Power Transmission Limited Partnership
Statement of Income and Comprehensive Income
for the year ended December 31, 2009

thousands of CDN dollars Notes 2009 2008

 3

thousands of CDN dollars Notes 2009 2008

Revenues 31,888$         35,074$          

Expenses
Operating and administration 6,288            5,021              
Maintenance 1,622            2,309              
Taxes, other than income taxes 93                 66                  Taxes, other than income taxes 93                 66                  

8,003            7,396              

23,885          27,678            

Interest 11 7,832            7,787              
Depreciation 6,973            6,549              
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 8 1,649            1,749              
Oth 53 28Other expenses 53                 28                  
Net income before income taxes 7,378            11,565            

Current tax provision 12 -               754                 
Future tax provision 12 -               103                 
Net income and comprehensive income 7,378$           10,708$          
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Great Lakes Power Transmission Limited Partnership
Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended December 31, 2009

thousands of CDN dollars Notes 2009 2008

 4

thousands of CDN dollars Notes 2009 2008

Operating Activities
Net income 7,378$           10,708$          
Items not affecting cash;
   Depreciation 6,973            6,549              
   Amortization of prepaid expenses 611               178                 
   Non-cash interest expense 144               40                     Non cash interest expense 144               40                  
   Future income taxes -                    103                 
   Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 1,649            1,749              
Net change in non-cash working capital and other 10 (390)             (2,811)            

16,365          16,516            

Investing activities
Receipt of amounts due from related parties -                    3,718              
P d di iti f t l t d i t 2 7Proceeds on disposition of property, plant and equipment 2                   7                    
Additions to property, plant and equipment (11,244)        (13,538)          
Net changes in regulatory assets and liabilities 2,280            (2,810)            

(8,962)          (12,623)          

Financing activities
Dividends paid (9,000)          (9,541)            
Increase in borrowings - 4,250Increase in borrowings -                    4,250              

(9,000)          (5,291)            

Decrease in cash (1,597)          (1,398)            
Cash, beginning of year 1,990            3,388              
Cash, end of year 393$              1,990$            

 4



GREAT LAKES POWER TRANSMISSION LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2009 
(thousands of CDN  dollars)  
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1. NATURE AND DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS 
  

Great Lakes Power Transmission Limited Partnership (the “Partnership”) was formed on May 17, 2007 
for the purpose of acquiring the assets and liabilities of the transmission division of Great Lakes 
Power Limited (“GLPL”). The Partnership completed this purchase on March 12, 2008 for total cash 
consideration of $92,500, which was paid directly to GLPL by Brookfield Infrastructure Partners LP 
(“BIP”), the ultimate parent of the Partnership. BIP then contributed these net assets directly to the 
Partnership.   
 
Brookfield Infrastructure Holdings (Canada) Inc. is the Limited Partner and holds a 99.9% interest in 
the Partnership. Great Lakes Power Transmission Inc., the General Partner, holds a 0.1% limited 
interest in the Partnership and is responsible for management of the Partnership. Both the General 
and Limited partners are wholly owned subsidiaries of BIP.  
 
As both the Partnership and GLPL were owned and operated by the same ultimate parent at the time 
of the acquisition, this transaction constitutes a reorganization of entities under common control and 
has been accounted for using the continuity of influence method. Accordingly, these financial 
statements have been presented giving retroactive effect to this transaction using historical carrying 
costs of the assets and liabilities of the transmission division of GLPL for all periods presented. This 
treatment is described in further detail in note 2. 
 
The Partnership is engaged in the transmission of electricity to the area adjacent to Sault Ste. Marie, 
Canada and is subject to the regulations of the Ontario Energy Board (the “OEB”). 

 
2.   BASIS OF PRESENTATION 
 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted 
accounting principles.  All amounts are reported in thousands of Canadian dollars, except as 
otherwise noted.   
 
These financial statements reflect the results of the Partnership for the twelve month period ended 
December 31, 2009.  As required under the continuity of influence method these financial statements 
have been prepared as if the Partnership owned the assets and liabilities of Great Lakes Power 
Limited Transmission Division (“GLPLTD”) in the comparative period.  As the Partnership did not have 
any of its own operations prior to March 12, 2008 the comparatives contained within these financial 
statements effectively represent the operations of GLPLTD for the period January 1 to March 12, 
2008 and the results of the Partnership for the period March 13 to December 31, 2008.  The 
difference between the exchange value of the assets and liabilities transferred on sale and the 
proceeds has been treated as an increase to contributed surplus as of March 12, 2008 (see note 14). 
 

3.   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

The following accounting policies have been applied in the preparation of these financial statements: 
 

(a)     Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost, including costs of acquisition incurred by 
the Partnership, less accumulated depreciation. The cost of the property, plant and 
equipment is depreciated over the estimated service lives of the assets as follows:  
 
 



GREAT LAKES POWER TRANSMISSION LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2009 
(thousands of CDN  dollars)  
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 Method Rate
Buildings Straight-line 40 years
Transmission stations, towers and related fixtures Straight-line 25 to 40 years
Equipment Straight-line 5 to 40 years

      
Construction work in progress is not depreciated until the assets are put into service.  

  
 (b) Impairment of long-lived assets 
 

The Partnership reviews long-lived assets for other than temporary impairment whenever 
events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount may not be recoverable.  
The determination of whether impairment has occurred is based on an estimate of 
undiscounted cash flows attributable to the assets, as compared to the carrying value of the 
assets.  Should an asset be considered to be impaired, an impairment loss is recognized in an 
amount equal to the excess of the asset’s carrying value over its fair value.  

 
  (c) Deferred financing fees 
   

Financing costs associated with the offering of debt are capitalized, netted against the debt, 
and amortized over the term of the debt using the effective interest method. 

 
  (d) Capitalization of interest 
   
  Interest on funds used in construction is charged to construction work in progress at the 

prescribed rate of return applicable to the rate base. 
 
 (e) Revenue recognition 

  The Partnership recognizes revenue on an accrual basis, when electricity is wheeled, at the 
regulated rate established by the OEB. 
 

 (f) Income taxes  

As of March 12, 2008, the date of the transfer of the transmission assets from GLPL, the 
Partnership recorded no income tax transactions, and balances previously recorded by 
GLPLTD have been adjusted against contributed surplus. This is because the Partnership is 
not subject to income taxation as a result of its formation as a limited partnership.     
 
Prior to March 12, 2008, the Partnership used the asset and liability method in accounting for 
income taxes. Under this method, future income tax assets and liabilities were determined 
based on differences between the financial reporting and tax basis of assets and liabilities, 
and were measured using the enacted, or substantively enacted, tax rates and laws that 
would have been in effect when the differences are expected to reverse, taking into account 
the organization of the Partnership’s financial affairs and its impact on taxable income and 
tax losses. 
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(g)  Pension and Employee Future Benefits 
 

The cost of retirement benefits for the Partnership’s defined benefit pension plan and post 
employment benefits is recognized as the benefits are earned by employees. The Partnership 
uses the projected benefit method pro-rated on the length of service and management’s best 
estimate assumptions to value its pension and other retirement benefits. Assets are valued at 
fair value for purposes of calculating the expected return on plan assets. Past service costs 
resulting from plan amendments are being amortized on a linear basis over the average 
remaining service period of active members expected to receive the benefits under the plan. 
Cumulative gains and losses in excess of 10% of the greater of the accrued benefit obligation 
and the market value of the plan assets are amortized over the average remaining service 
period of active members expected to receive benefits under the plan. The average 
remaining service lives under the defined benefit pension plan as at December 31, 2009 
varies from 12.0 to 16.0 years. The average remaining service life under the post-
employment benefit plan as at December 31, 2009 is 16.0 years. 
 

 (h) Use of estimates 

   The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amount of assets and liabilities, and disclosures of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses during the reporting period. During the years presented, management has made a 
number of estimates and valuation assumptions including accruals and depreciation. 
Estimates are based on historical experience, current trends and various other assumptions 
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.  Actual results could differ from 
those estimates. 

 
(i)    Rate Regulation 

 
On January 1, 2005, the Partnership adopted CICA Handbook Accounting Guideline 19, 
Disclosure by Entities Subject to Rate Regulation.  The Partnership is regulated by the OEB.  
Accounting standards recognize that rate regulation can create economic benefits and 
obligations, which are reported in the financial statements as regulatory assets and liabilities.  
When the regulation provides assurance that incurred costs will be recovered in the future, 
the Partnership may defer these costs and report them as a regulatory asset.  If current 
recovery is provided for costs expected to be incurred in the future, the Partnership reports a 
regulatory liability.  Also, if the regulation provides for lesser or greater planned revenue to 
be received or returned by the Partnership through future rates, the Partnership recognizes 
and reports a regulatory asset or liability, respectively.  The measurement of such regulatory 
assets and liabilities are subject to certain estimates and assumptions, including assumptions 
made in the interpretation of the regulation.  

 
(j)     Goodwill and Intangible Assets 
 

Effective January 1, 2009, the Partnership adopted CICA Handbook Section 3064, Goodwill 
and Intangible Assets (“Section 3064”), replacing Handbook Sections 3062, Goodwill and 
Other Intangible Assets and 3450, Research and Development Costs.   
 
Section 3064 established standards for the recognition, measurement, presentation and 
disclosure of goodwill and intangibles by profit-oriented enterprises.  Implementation of this 
standard did not have a material impact on the Partnership’s financial statements. 
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4.   CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Rate Regulated Enterprises 

During 2007, the Accounting Standards Board (“AcSB”) issued an exposure draft proposing to 
remove all specific references to rate regulated accounting from the CICA Handbook. In August 
2007, the AcSB decided to remove a temporary exemption in CICA Handbook Section 1100 
“Generally Accepted Accounting Principles”, retain existing references to rate regulated accounting 
in the CICA Handbook, amend CICA Handbook Section 3465 “Income Taxes” to require the 
recognition of future income tax liabilities and assets as well as a corresponding regulatory asset or 
liability, and retain existing requirements to disclose the effects of rate regulation per AcG-19. The 
new rules will apply retrospectively to annual financial statements relating to fiscal years beginning 
on or after January 1, 2009. 

As explained in note 3, the Partnership is not subject to income taxation and as a result these 
changes did not have an impact on the Partnership.  

Credit Risk and the Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities – EIC-173 

In January 2009, the Emerging Issues Committee of the CICA issued Abstract No. 173, Credit Risk 
and the Fair Value of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (“EIC-173”).  EIC-173 requires an 
entity to take into account its own credit risk and that of the relevant counterparties when 
determining the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities, including derivative 
instruments.  This EIC, which was effective for the Partnership on January 1, 2009, had no impact 
on the financial position or results of operations because the Partnership had been incorporating 
the aforementioned credit risks into its valuation methodology before the EIC was issued. 

Financial Instruments – Disclosures – Handbook Section 3862 

In June 2009, the CICA amended Handbook Section 3862, Financial Instruments – Disclosures, to 
enhance disclosure requirements about the liquidity risk of financial instruments, to include new 
disclosure requirements about fair value measurements of financial instruments and to include 
implementation guidance about fair value measurement disclosures to assist in applying the 
Handbook Section.  Handbook Section 3862 now requires that all financial instruments measured at 
fair value be categorized into one of three hierarchy levels, described below, for disclosure 
purposes.  Each level is based on the transparency of the inputs used to measure the fair values of 
assets and liabilities: 

i. Level 1 – inputs are based on unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical 
assets and liabilities; 

ii. Level 2 – inputs other than quoted prices in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or 
liability, either directly or indirectly; and 

iii. Level 3 – inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data. 
 

Determination of fair value and the resulting hierarchy requires the use of observable market data 
whenever available.  The classification of a financial instrument in the hierarchy is based upon the 
lowest level of input that is significant to the measurement of fair value.  The amendments to 
Handbook Section 3862 had no impact on the Partnership’s financial position or results of 
operations. 
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5.   RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 

(a) In the normal course of operations, Riskcorp Inc., an insurance broker related through 
common control, entered into transactions with GLPLTD and the Partnership to provide 
insurance.  These transactions have been measured at exchange value.  The total cost 
allocated to the Partnership in 2009 was $178 (2008 - $115) and no amount remains 
outstanding at year end (2008 - $nil). 

 
(b) In accordance with an OM&A agreement that existed between the Partnership and GLPL 

between March 13, 2008 and June 30, 2009, the transmission assets were operated by GLPL, 
and all costs were passed on to the Partnership.  GLPL was responsible for all operating, 
maintenance, administrative, and capital activity, the cost of which was tracked and billed to 
the Partnership with no mark-up. 

 
(c)  The Partnership has provided services to and received services from entities under common 

control in the normal course of operations. The balances payable and receivable for these 
services are non-interest bearing and unsecured.  The balances payable to and receivable 
from related parties will come due during the following year. 

 
(d) As a result, the following balances are receivable (payable) at December 31: 

 
2009 2008

Due from related parties  
Services provided to entities under common control $           203 $                -
  
Due to related parties  
Services received from entities under common control          (279)                   -
Costs paid by GLPL on behalf of the Partnership - (2,080)
 $          (76) $      (2,080)

  
6.   PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
 

 2009 2008 
 Accumulated Net Book Net Book

Cost Depreciation Value Value
Land $         929 $             - $           929 $         544 
Buildings 15,224 4,552 10,672 10,192 
Transmission stations, towers and 
related fixtures 270,766 70,934 199,832 199,366 
Construction work in progress 3,968 - 3,968 2,228 
  $  290,887 $  75,486 $   215,401 $   212,330 

 
Cost and accumulated depreciation as at December 31, 2008 were $278,605 and $66,275, 
respectively. 

During 2009, the Partnership disposed of assets that had a net book value of $2 for net proceeds of 
$2 (2008 - $107 and $7, respectively). 
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7.   TRANS SENIOR BONDS 

On March 12, 2008, the financing agreement of the First Mortgage Bonds was amended to remove 
the security against the generation assets and to convert 31.25% of the principal amount of the 
Series 1 Bonds into Trans Senior Bonds having a principal of $120,000, the terms of which remain 
substantially unchanged.  The Trans Senior Bonds are now secured by a charge on transmission 
present and future real property assets of the Partnership.  On behalf of the Partnership, a 
company related through common control, Brookfield Renewable Power Inc. (“BRPI”), obtained a 
letter of credit in the amount of $3,960 to cover six months of interest payments on the Trans 
Senior Bonds. 
 
The fair market value of the Trans Senior Bonds is $131,951 based on current market prices for 
debt with similar terms (2008 - $110,990).  Amortization of deferred financing fees for the year 
related to the Partnership’s long-term debt is included in interest expense and totalled $144 (2008 - 
$40). 

 
The Trans Senior Bonds (“the Bonds”) bear interest at the rate of 6.6%. Semi-annual payments of 
interest only are due and payable on June and December 16 each year until and including June 16, 
2013.  Equal blended semi-annual payments of principal and interest on the Bonds will commence 
on December 16, 2013 and will continue until and including June 16, 2023. The Bonds will not be 
fully amortized by their maturity date. The remaining principal balance of the Bonds will be fully 
due on June 16, 2023. 
 
During the year management evaluated its previous estimates surrounding regulatory assets to 
determine if amounts would be collected in future rate applications.  As a result it was determined 
that $2,198 of deferred financing fees should be reclassified from regulatory assets to Trans Senior 
Bonds. 
 
 2009 2008
Trans Senior Bonds $   120,000 $   120,000 
Less: Unamortized deferred financing fees (2,975) (921)
 $   117,025 $   119,079
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8.   EFFECT OF RATE REGULATION 
 
The Partnership recorded the following regulatory assets and liabilities as at December 31: 

  
 2009 2008
Regulatory assets:  
Deferred loss on disposal of transmission assets  $              -       $      1,649  
Wholesale metering services rebates - 465
Reorganization costs relating to the transfer of assets 1,041 3,562
Other regulatory assets 33 17
Less: current portion (358)  (1,649)
Long-term portion     $          716 $      4,044

  
Regulatory liability:  
Deferred rate impact accrual    $       2,578 $      2,512
Deferred loss on disposal of transmission assets 71 -
Wholesale metering services rebates 122 -
Changes in tax legislation 1,249 -
Less: current portion (1,340) -
Total $       2,680 $      2,512

 
The Partnership operates in accordance with the regulations of the OEB. Regulatory assets and 
liabilities represent certain revenues earned or costs incurred in the current year or in prior years 
that have been or are expected to be recovered from customers upon approval from the OEB. In 
the absence of rate regulation, these balances would have been recorded as revenues or expenses 
in the statement of income and comprehensive income. 
 
Reorganization costs relating to the transfer of assets  
 

These reorganization costs were the result of the transfer of the Partnership’s assets from GLPL to 
the Partnership.  Legislation through the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998 requires the separation of 
transmission assets from generation assets; however, GLPL had an exemption to operate its 
transmission, distribution, and generation business within the same company until December 31, 
2008. The costs associated with the transfer of the Partnership’s assets were capitalized as 
regulatory assets as they are eligible for recovery through future rates, subject to OEB approval. 
The Partnership has included its request to recover this amount in its 2010 rate application filed 
with the OEB on November 30, 2009. 
 
Other regulatory assets 
 
Other regulatory assets are driven by three drivers, as follows: 
 
(a) The Partnership incurred costs related to a study undertaken as a result of the settlement 

agreed upon in the last transmission rate application.  As approved by the OEB, these costs 
have been deferred and will be recovered at a later date, and there is no risk of non-collection 
of this balance.  The Partnership has included its request to recover this amount in its 2010 
rate application filed with the OEB on November 30, 2009. 
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(b) The Partnership incurred incremental administrative expenses related to IFRS.  The OEB has 
approved a deferral account to track incremental administrative expenses for the purposes of 
future recovery.  The Partnership will include its request to recover this amount in its next rate 
application filing to the OEB. 

 
(c) The Partnership incurred incremental costs related to the OEB’s Feed-in-Tariff program, which 

is a program initiated for the development of renewable generation.  The OEB has approved a 
deferral account to track similar costs for other regulated utilities in the province, and the 
Partnership believes it will be eligible to recover these costs through a future rate application.  
The Partnership will include its request to recover this amount in its next rate application filing 
to the OEB. 

 
Deferred rate impact accrual 
 
The deferred rate impact accrual (“DRIA”) was for revenues being recovered through the 2005 rate 
application filed with the OEB.  On November 1, 2007, the OEB implemented a new uniform 
transmission rate as a result of the rate application filed by Hydro One Networks Inc.  This resulted 
in the termination of the over recovery of the DRIA.  At December 31, 2009, the DRIA balance of 
$2,578 is payable to the Ontario transmission rate-payers.  The Partnership has included its request 
to disburse this amount in its 2010 rate application filed with the OEB on November 30, 2009. 
 

 Deferred loss on disposal of transmission assets 
 
As prescribed by regulatory order, gains or losses on disposals of assets are recorded as a 
regulatory asset or liability subject to approval by the OEB. For the year ended December 31, 2005, 
GLPLTD incurred a loss on disposal of transmission assets of $8,246. This regulatory asset was 
recovered over a period of five years, which commenced on April 1, 2005, through rate increases. 
During 2009, the Partnership recovered the remaining $1,649, plus an additional $71 of the 
deferred loss.  The Partnership has included its request to disburse this amount in its 2010 rate 
application filed with the OEB on November 30, 2009. 
 
Wholesale metering services rebates 
 
As prescribed by regulatory order, the rebates related to metering services were recorded as a 
regulatory asset.  The Partnership was responsible for paying the rebates and recording them in a 
regulatory asset deferral account.  As a result of a change in a management assumption in 2009, 
the Partnership reduced the balance of the deferral account by the total costs avoided as a result of 
no longer providing meter services between 2005 and 2009.  The Partnership has included its 
request to disburse this amount in its 2010 rate application filed with the OEB on November 30, 
2009. 
 
Changes in tax legislation 
 
This amount relates to differences that resulted from legislative changes to tax rates and rules in 
comparison to those rates and rules assumed in the Partnership’s most recently approved revenue 
requirement.  The purpose of capturing these amounts for future disbursal or recovery is to ensure 
that both ratepayers and regulated utilities are protected from changes in legislation that may 
affect the amount of taxes payable by a utility in any given year. 
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Between 2005 and 2009, income and capital tax rates have declined, resulting in the Partnership 
collecting a surplus of revenue when compared to the actual tax expenses incurred.  As a result, 
the Partnership is required to return the excess funds to ratepayers and has included its request to 
disburse this amount in its 2010 rate application filed with the OEB on November 30, 2009. 
 

9.    PENSION AND EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS 
 

The Partnership is part of a registered defined benefit, final pay pension plan and an unfunded non-
pension benefit plan (the “Plans”).  The Plans were transferred to the Partnership from GLPL on July 
1, 2009, and they are representative of the employees transferred from GLPL to the Partnership on 
the same date.  The consideration paid from GLPL to the Partnership as a result of the transfer was 
$156.  
 
The non-pension plan includes benefits such as health and dental care, retirement bonuses and life 
insurance.  The obligation under these plans is determined periodically through the preparation of 
actuarial valuations.  The benefit plan contribution for the Partnership for 2009 was $298. The 
investment rate of return was 7.50%. The discount rate used was 7.50% with a rate of 
compensation increase of 3.50%. 
 
The Partnership also participates in a defined contribution pension plan provided to certain 
employees.  The Partnership contributes amounts based on the level of employee contributions for 
this plan.  
 
The Partnership’s defined benefit pension plan and post employment benefits information is 
provided in the following table.  As the stand-alone plan is a new plan for the Partnership, no 
comparative information is available. 
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 2009
 Defined Benefit

Pension Plan
Non-Pension
Benefits Plan

Weighted average assumptions 

Benefit obligation 
Discount rate 6.70% 6.70%
Rate of compensation increase 3.50% 3.50%
Initial health care trend rate - 7.07%
Ultimate trend rate - 4.43%
Year ultimate rate reached - 2029
Benefit expense 
Discount rate 7.50% 7.50%
Long-term rate of return on plan assets 7.50% -
Rate of compensation increase 3.50% 3.50%
Initial health care trend rate - 7.18%
Ultimate trend rate - 4.43%
Year ultimate rate reached - 2029
Accrued benefit obligations 
Balance, beginning of period $  10,820 $   1,762
Current service cost 69 27
Interest cost 405 85
Employee contributions 57 -
Net benefit payments (313) (55)
Actuarial loss 1,252 768
Balance, end of year $  12,290 $   2,587
Fair value plan assets 
Balance, beginning of period $    10,840  $               -
Employer contributions 243 55
Employee contributions 57 -
Actual return on plan assets 903 -
Benefits paid (313) (55)
Balance, end of year $    11,730 $               -

Reconciliation of accrued benefit liability  
Plan (deficit) $       (560)  $    (2,587)
Unamortized transitional obligation 686 700
Unamortized net actuarial loss 1,461 50
Accrued benefit asset (liability) $      1,587 $    (1,837)
Expense 
Current service costs $            69 $            27
Interest cost 405 85
Actual return on plan assets (903) -
Actuarial loss 1,252 768
Costs arising in the year       823           880
Differences between costs arising in the period 
and costs recognized in the period in respect of: 
Actuarial loss (1,252) (768)
Return on plan assets 496 -
Transitional obligation 74 59
Net expense $          141 $          171
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In 2009, the total employer expense for the Partnership’s defined contribution pension plan was 
$28. 

 
 Actuarial valuations 
 

Actuarial valuations for the Partnership’s plans are required every year.  The most recent actuarial 
valuations for the pension and non-pension benefit plans were completed on July 1, 2009.  The 
Partnership measures its accrued benefit obligations and the fair value of plan assets for 
accounting purposes as at December 31 of each year.  The valuations include an indexation of 
pension payments of 2.0% per year. The Partnership may choose to perform valuations for these 
plans prior to the earliest required dates. 
 

         Sensitivity analysis 
 
The Partnership’s sensitivity in the non-pension benefit plan to a 1% change in the health care cost 
trend rate, for the year ended December 31, 2009, is summarized as follows: 
 
 Benefit 

Obligation 
Benefit

Expense
Impact of a 1% increase in health care cost trend rate $   1,150  $      117  
Impact of a 1% decrease in health care cost trend rate $    (911) $      (90)

  
 Asset category 

 
The partnership’s defined benefit pension plan asset allocations at December 31, by asset category 
are as follows: 

 
 2009 
Equity securities 61% 
Debt securities 39% 
Total 100% 

  
Cash payments 
 
All employer contributions were fully paid during the year and as such, no balance owing remains 
outstanding as at year-end. 
 

10.   STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
 

2009 2008
Accounts receivable $          (138) $           165
Prepaid expenses and other (826) -
Due from related parties (203) -
Pension asset and liability 250 -
Due to related parties (1,801) 1,493
Accounts and other payables 2,328 (5,208)
Taxes payable - 739
 $          (390) $      (2,811)
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Capital asset additions totaling $404 have been excluded from the Statement of Cash Flows as they 
remain unpaid at year end.  During 2009, capital asset additions totaling $1,602 have been included 
in the Statement of Cash Flows as they were accrued at December 31, 2008 and paid in 2009. 

 
11.   INTEREST AND FINANCING FEES 
 

The net interest and financing fees recorded in the financial statements at December 31 are 
comprised as follows: 

 
2009 2008

Interest expense incurred $          7,920 $         8,045
Amortization of deferred financing fees 144 40
Other interest (48) 46
Capitalized interest (184) (344)
 $          7,832  $         7,787

 
12.   INCOME TAXES 
 

The Partnership does not record income tax expenses as it is not subject to income taxation as a 
result of its formation as a limited partnership. 
The provision for income taxes in the statement of income and comprehensive income represents the 
income taxes payable for the period from January 1, 2008 to March 12, 2008, while the ownership 
and operation of the transmission assets was the responsibility of GLPL.  The provision for income 
taxes in the 2008 comparative statement of income and comprehensive income represents an 
effective tax rate different than the Canadian statutory rate of 33.50%.  The differences are as 
follows: 

 
 

2009 Mar 12, 2008
  
Net income before taxes $                  - $         2,683
Computed income tax expense at Canadian statutory rate - 899
Decrease resulting from:  
   Impact of future rate change on future income tax liability - (42)
Income tax provision $                  -  $            857

 
 
The Partnership does not record a future income tax liability as it is not subject to income taxation as 
a result of its formation as a limited partnership. 

 
13. PARTNERSHIP UNITS 

 
The Partnership is authorized to issue an unlimited number of Class A and Class B partnership units, 
of which 19,898 Class A units and 1 Class B unit were issued and outstanding as at December 31, 
2008.  There has been no change in the number of units issued during 2009 and the value of these 
units is nominal.  
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14.  CONTRIBUTED SURPLUS 
 

As part of the purchase and sale agreement between GLPL and the Partnership (discussed in note 1) 
certain assets and liabilities were excluded from the transfer. As a result, the Partnership has 
recorded the following adjustments to remove these amounts and has credited them to contributed 
surplus:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
In addition a contribution of $485k was made by BIP and has been included in contributed surplus. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
15.   FUTURE ACCOUNTING POLICY CHANGES 
 

International Financial Reporting Standards 
 
On February 13, 2008, the Accounting Standards Board of Canada (“AcSB”) confirmed that publicly 
accountable enterprises will be required to adopt IFRS in place of Canadian GAAP for interim and 
annual reporting purposes for fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2011.  The Partnership 
is in the process of evaluating the potential impact of the conversion to IFRS on its financial 
statements.  Although the impact of the adoption of IFRS on the Partnership’s financial position 
and results of operations is not yet reasonably determinable or estimable, the Partnership does 
expect a significant increase in financial statement disclosure requirements resulting from the 
adoption of IFRS. 
 
Financial Instruments – Recognition and Measurement 

 
In June 2009, the CICA amended Handbook Section 3855 to clarify when an embedded 
prepayment option is separated from its host debt instrument for accounting purposes. This 
amendment applies to interim and annual financial statements relating to fiscal years beginning on 
or after January 1, 2011. Earlier adoption is permitted. 
 
This section has also been amended to clarify the application of the effective interest method after 
a debt instrument has been impaired. This amendment applies retrospectively to financial 
statements for fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2010. The Partnership expects these 
amendments will have no impact on its results of operations and financial position. 
 

 March 12, 2008
Taxes payable $       1,848
Future income tax liability 19,442
PST receivable (500)

 $   20,790

 March 12, 2008
Assets and liabilities not transferred to the Partnership $     20,790
Contribution of capital by Brookfield Infrastructure Partners LP 485
 $   21,275
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Comprehensive Revaluation of Assets and Liabilities 
 
In August 2009, the CICA amended Handbook Section 1625 – “Comprehensive Revaluation of 
Assets and Liabilities” to be consistent with Handbook Section 1582 – “Business Combinations”, 
Handbook Section 1601 and Handbook Section 1602, which were issued in January 2009. The 
amendments apply prospectively to comprehensive revaluations of assets and liabilities occurring in 
fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2011. Earlier adoption is permitted as of the beginning 
of a fiscal year. The Partnership does not expect these amendments to have an impact on its 
results of operations and financial position.   
 

16. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 

The Partnership’s primary capital management objective is to ensure the sustainability of its capital 
to support continuing operations, meet its financial obligations, allow for growth opportunities and 
provide stable dividends to its partners.  The Partnership manages its capital to maintain an 
investment grade credit rating while providing its ultimate parent with a prudent use of leverage to 
enhance returns and ensure access to incremental borrowings needed to fund new growth 
initiatives. 

The Partnership manages its capital structure in accordance with changes in economic conditions.  
Generally, developments are funded with external borrowings.  In order to adjust the capital 
structure, the Partnership may elect to adjust the dividend amount paid to its partners, increase or 
reduce the equity participation in new and existing operations, adjust the level of capital spending 
or issue new partnership units. 

The Partnership manages its capital in order to maintain a debt to capitalization ratio below 75%.  
As at December 31, 2009, the ratio was 55% (2008 – 55%).  The table below presents the detail 
of the Partnership’s capitalization and the calculation of the ratio:   

 2009 2008
Debt  
     Trans Senior Bonds $     120,000 $     120,000 
    120,000    120,000 
     Partners’ equity 97,274 98,851
Total capitalization $     217,274     $     218,851
Debt to capitalization 55% 55%

 
17. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Partnership classifies its financial assets and liabilities as outlined below: 

Cash is designated as a financial asset held-for-trading and is measured at fair value through net 
income at each period end. 

Accounts receivable as well as due from related parties are classified as loans and receivables, 
accounts and other payables, due to related parties, and Trans Senior Bonds are classified as other 
financial liabilities, and each are measured at fair value at inception and are subsequently 
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. 
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The carrying value approximates fair value for the Partnership’s financial assets and liabilities, with 
the exception of long-term debt. 

The Partnership has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments: market 
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.  The Partnership’s management is responsible for determining the 
acceptable level of risk. 

Market Risk 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of financial assets or liabilities will 
fluctuate due to movements in market prices. 

Interest Rates: 
The Partnership’s long-term debt is subject to a fixed interest rate of 6.6%, payable semi-annually 
on June 16 and December 16.  As a result of having fixed rate debt, fluctuations in market interest 
rates are not expected to materially affect the Partnership’s cash flows.   
 
Credit Risk 

Credit risk arises from the potential for a counterparty to default on its contractual obligations and 
is limited to those contracts where the Partnership would incur a loss in replacing the defaulted 
transaction.  The Partnership’s financial instruments that are potentially exposed to credit risks are 
accounts receivable.  The Partnership actively manages its exposure to credit risk by assessing the 
ability of counterparties to fulfill their obligations under the related contracts prior to entering into 
such contracts, and continually monitors these exposures.  
 
The vast majority of accounts receivable transactions entered by the Partnership are with the 
Independent Electricity System Operator (“IESO”).  The IESO operates the provincial transmission 
system, and is a reliable counterparty.  The quality of the Partnership’s counterparties mitigates 
the Partnership’s exposure to credit risk. 
 
Liquidity Risk 
 
Liquidity risk is the risk the Partnership cannot meet a demand for cash or fund an obligation when 
due.  Liquidity risk is mitigated by the Partnership’s cash and cash equivalent balances and through 
the use and management of amounts due from related parties.  The Partnership is subject to risk 
associated with debt financing, including the ability to refinance its debt at maturity.  This risk is 
mitigated by the long-term duration of the Partnership's debt secured by high quality assets. 

 
18. COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES AND GUARANTEES 

In the normal course of operations, the Partnership executes agreements that provide for 
indemnification and guarantees to third parties in transactions such as debt issuances.  The nature 
of substantially all of the indemnification undertakings prevents the Partnership from making a 
reasonable estimate of the maximum potential amount the Partnership could be required to pay 
third parties as the agreements do not specify a maximum amount and the amounts are dependent 
upon the outcome of future contingent events, the nature and likelihood of which cannot be 
determined at this time.  Historically, the Partnership has not made significant payments under 
such indemnification agreements. 
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On behalf of the Partnership, BRPI obtained a letter of credit totalling $3,960 to cover six months 
of interest payments on the Trans Senior Bonds.  No amount has been drawn against this letter of 
credit. 

In the normal course of operations, the Partnership has committed as at December 31, 2009 to 
spend approximately $404 (2008 - $1,602) on capital projects in future years. 

The Partnership may, from time to time, be involved in legal proceedings, claims, and litigation that 
arise in the ordinary course of business which the Partnership believes would not reasonably be 
expected to have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the Partnership. 

There are no specified decommissioning costs relating to the Ontario transmission assets. The 
Partnership has a comprehensive repair and capital expenditure program to ensure that its 
transmission lines are maintained to optimum industry standards.  Replacement of the assets 
occurs in accordance with a long term capital plan and would involve typical costs of removal as 
part of that process.  In the circumstance where a portion of a line or other assets were removed 
completely, there may be some contractual obligations under private or crown easements or other 
land rights which require the transmission owner to reinstate the land to a certain standard, 
typically the shape it was prior to the construction of the transmission assets.  As well, certain 
environmental, land use and/or utility legislation, regulations and policy may apply in which we 
would have to comply with remediation requirements set by the government.  The requirements 
will typically depend on the specific property characteristics and what criteria the government 
determines to be appropriate to meet safety and environmental concerns.  These asset lives are 
indeterminate given their nature.  As the individual assets or components reach the end of their 
useful lives, they are retired and replaced.  Historically, certain asset components have been 
replaced a number of times, thus creating a perpetual asset with an indeterminate life.  As such, 
the retirement date for these lines cannot be reasonably estimated and therefore, the fair value of 
the associated liability cannot be determined at this time.  As a result, no liability has been accrued 
in these financial statements. 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
 
To the Partners of 
Great Lakes Power Transmission Limited Partnership  
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Great Lakes Power Transmission Limited 
Partnership, which comprise the balance sheet as at December 31, 2010, and the statements of income and 
comprehensive income, partners’ equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.  
 
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's 
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion.  
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Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
Great Lakes Power Transmission Limited Partnership as at December 31, 2010 and the results of its 
operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted 
accounting principles. 
 
 

 
 
 
Chartered Accountants 
Licensed Public Accountants 
April 18, 2011 
 



Great Lakes Power Transmission Limited Partnership
Balance Sheet
as at December 31, 2010

thousands of CDN dollars Notes 2010 2009

Assets
Current Assets
Cash 77$               393$              
Accounts receivable 3,224           3,152             
Due from related parties 5 2,447           203                
Prepaid expenses and other 644              215                
Current portion of regulatory asset 8 -               358                

6,392           4,321             

Pension asset 9 1,757           1,587             
Regulatory asset 8 2,881           716                
Property, plant and equipment, net 6 215,142       215,401         

226,172$      222,025$       

Liabilities and Capital Account
Current liabilities
Accounts and other payables 2,893$          1,635$           
Current portion of regulatory liability 8 1,482           1,340             
Due to related parties 5 205              279                

4,580           3,254             

3

4,580           3,254             

Pension liability 9 2,025           1,837             
Regulatory liability 8 4,250           2,680             
Trans senior bonds 7 117,177       117,025         

128,032       124,796         

Partners' Equity 98,140         97,229           
226,172$      222,025$       
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Great Lakes Power Transmission Limited Partnership
Statement of Partners' Equity
for the year ended December 31, 2010

thousands of CDN dollars Notes

Brookfield 
Infrastructure 

Holdings 
(Canada) Inc. 

Great Lakes 
Power 

Transmission 
Inc. 2010 2009

Partners' equity, beginning of year 97,132$            97$                   97,229$          98,851$          
Allocation of net income 8,403 8 8,411 7,378              
Distributions (9,490) (10) (9,500) (9,000)            
Capital contributions 1,998 2 2,000 -                 
Partners' equity, end of year 98,043$            97$                   98,140$          97,229$          

44



Great Lakes Power Transmission Limited Partnership
Statement of Income and Comprehensive Income
for the year ended December 31, 2010

thousands of CDN dollars Notes 2010 2009

5

thousands of CDN dollars Notes 2010 2009

Revenues 33,398$         31,888$          

Expenses
Operating and administration 7,450            6,288              
Maintenance 2,118            1,622              
Taxes, other than income taxes 119               93                  Taxes, other than income taxes 119               93                  

9,687            8,003              

23,711          23,885            

Interest 11 7,934            7,832              
Depreciation 7,393            6,973              
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 6,8 -               1,649              
Oth (i ) (27) 53Other (income) expenses (27)               53                  
Net income before income taxes 8,411            7,378              

Current tax provision 12 -               -                 
Future tax provision 12 -               -                 
Net income and comprehensive income 8,411$           7,378$            
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Great Lakes Power Transmission Limited Partnership
Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended December 31, 2010

thousands of CDN dollars Notes 2010 2009

Operating Activities
Net income 8,411$          7,378$           
Items not affecting cash;
   Depreciation 7,393           6,973             
   Amortization of prepaid expenses 984              611                
   Non-cash interest expense 152              144                
   Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment -                   1,649             
Net change in non-cash working capital and other 10 (1,597)          (390)               

15,343         16,365           

Investing activities
Proceeds on disposition of property, plant and equipment 1                  2                    
Change in investment amounts due from related party 5 (2,200)          -                     
Additions to property, plant and equipment (7,339)          (11,244)          
Net changes in regulatory assets and liabilities 1,379           2,280             

(8,159)          (8,962)            

Financing activities
Dividends paid (9,500)          (9,000)            
Capital contributions 2,000           -                     

(7,500)          (9,000)            

6
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Decrease in cash (316)             (1,597)            
Cash, beginning of year 393              1,990             
Cash, end of year 77$               393$              
Supplemental cash flow information:
Cash interest paid 7,920$          7,920$           

6
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1. NATURE AND DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS 
  

Great Lakes Power Transmission Limited Partnership (the “Partnership”) was formed on May 17, 2007 
for the purpose of acquiring the assets and liabilities of the transmission division of Great Lakes 
Power Limited (“GLPL”), a related party due to common ownership. 
 
Brookfield Infrastructure Holdings (Canada) Inc. is the Limited Partner and holds a 99.9% interest in 
the Partnership. Great Lakes Power Transmission Inc., the General Partner, holds a 0.1% limited 
interest in the Partnership and is responsible for management of the Partnership. Both the General 
and Limited partners are wholly owned subsidiaries of Brookfield Infrastructure Partners LP (“BIP”).  
 
The Partnership is engaged in the transmission of electricity to the area adjacent to Sault Ste. Marie, 
Canada and is subject to the regulations of the Ontario Energy Board (the “OEB”). 

 
2.   BASIS OF PRESENTATION 
 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted 
accounting principles.  All amounts are reported in thousands of Canadian dollars, except as 
otherwise noted.   

 
3.   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

The following accounting policies have been applied in the preparation of these financial statements: 
                  

(a)     Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation. The cost 
of the property, plant and equipment is depreciated over the estimated service lives of the 
assets as follows:  

 
 Method Rate
Buildings Straight-line 40 years
Transmission stations, towers and related fixtures Straight-line 25 to 40 years
Equipment Straight-line 5 to 40 years

      
Construction work in progress is not depreciated until the assets are put into service.  

  
 (b) Impairment of long-lived assets 
 

The Partnership reviews long-lived assets for other than temporary impairment whenever 
events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount may not be recoverable.  
The determination of whether impairment has occurred is based on an estimate of 
undiscounted cash flows attributable to the assets, as compared to the carrying value of the 
assets.  Should an asset be considered to be impaired, an impairment loss is recognized in an 
amount equal to the excess of the asset’s carrying value over its fair value.  

 
  (c) Deferred financing fees 
   

Financing costs associated with the offering of debt are capitalized, netted against the debt, 
and amortized over the term of the debt using the effective interest method. 
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  (d) Capitalization of interest 
   
  Interest on funds used in construction is charged to construction work in progress at the rate 

prescribed by the OEB. 
 
 (e) Revenue recognition 

  The Partnership recognizes revenue on an accrual basis, when electricity is wheeled, at the 
regulated rate established by the OEB. 
 

 (f) Income taxes  

The Partnership is not subject to income taxation as a result of its formation as a limited 
partnership.     
 

(g)  Pension and Employee Future Benefits 
 

The cost of retirement benefits for the Partnership’s defined benefit pension plan and post 
employment benefits is recognized as the benefits are earned by employees. The Partnership 
uses the projected benefit method pro-rated on the length of service and management’s best 
estimate assumptions to value its pension and other retirement benefits. Assets are valued at 
fair value for purposes of calculating the expected return on plan assets. Past service costs 
resulting from plan amendments are being amortized on a linear basis over the average 
remaining service period of active members expected to receive the benefits under the plan. 
Cumulative gains and losses in excess of 10% of the greater of the accrued benefit obligation 
and the market value of the plan assets are amortized over the average remaining service 
period of active members expected to receive benefits under the plan. The average 
remaining service lives under the defined benefit pension plan as at December 31, 2010 
varies from 13.0 to 14.0 years. The average remaining service life under the post-
employment benefit plan as at December 31, 2010 is 17.0 years. 
 

 (h) Use of estimates 

   The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amount of assets and liabilities, and disclosures of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses during the reporting period. During the years presented, management has made a 
number of estimates and valuation assumptions including accruals and depreciation. 
Estimates are based on historical experience, current trends and various other assumptions 
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.  Actual results could differ from 
those estimates. 

 
(i)    Rate Regulation 

 
On January 1, 2005, the Partnership adopted CICA Handbook Accounting Guideline 19, 
Disclosure by Entities Subject to Rate Regulation.  The Partnership is regulated by the OEB.  
Accounting standards recognize that rate regulation can create economic benefits and 
obligations, which are reported in the financial statements as regulatory assets and liabilities.  
When the regulation provides assurance that incurred costs will be recovered in the future, 
the Partnership may defer these costs and report them as a regulatory asset.  If current 
recovery is provided for costs expected to be incurred in the future, the Partnership reports a 
regulatory liability.  Also, if the regulation provides for lesser or greater planned revenue to 
be received or returned by the Partnership through future rates, the Partnership recognizes 
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and reports a regulatory asset or liability, respectively.  The measurement of such regulatory 
assets and liabilities is subject to certain estimates and assumptions, including assumptions 
made in the interpretation of the regulation.  

 
4.   FUTURE ACCOUNTING POLICY CHANGES 
 

International Financial Reporting Standards 
 
On February 13, 2008, the Accounting Standards Board of Canada (“AcSB”) confirmed that publicly 
accountable enterprises will be required to adopt IFRS in place of Canadian GAAP for interim and 
annual reporting purposes for fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2011.  Subsequently, on 
September 8, 2010, the AcSB issued a decision that provides for an optional one year deferral of the 
mandatory IFRS changeover date for entities with rate-regulated activities.  As a result, the 
Partnership has opted to defer adoption of IFRS until the fiscal year beginning January 1, 2012. 
 
The Partnership is in the process of evaluating the potential impact of the conversion to IFRS on its 
financial statements.  Although the impact of the adoption of IFRS on the Partnership’s financial 
position and results of operations is not yet reasonably determinable or estimable, the Partnership 
does expect a significant increase in financial statement disclosure requirements resulting from the 
adoption of IFRS. 

 
5.   RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 

(a) In the normal course of operations, Riskcorp Inc., an insurance broker related through 
common control, entered into transactions with the Partnership to provide insurance.  These 
transactions have been measured at exchange value.  The total cost allocated to the 
Partnership in 2010 was $196 (2009 - $178) and no amount remains outstanding at year end 
(2009 - $nil). 

 
(b)  The Partnership has provided services to and received services from entities under common 

control in the normal course of operations.  The balances payable and receivable for these 
services are non-interest bearing and unsecured.  The balances payable to and receivable 
from related parties will come due during the following year. 

 
 Office Complex 
 
 Effective July 1, 2009, the office complex in which the Partnership conducts its operations is 

owned by GLPL, and leased by the Partnership.  Lease payments are made to GLPL on a 
monthly basis, with the annual lease cost for 2010 equal to $308 (2009 - $154). 

 
 Communication Equipment 
 
 The Partnership uses various types of communication assets including Supervisory Control 

and Data Acquisition (“SCADA”) equipment, and a fibre optic network.  The communication 
equipment is owned by GLPL and is licensed by the Partnership.  License fee payments are 
made to GLPL on a quarterly basis, with the annual lease cost for 2010 equal to $484 (2009 
– $178). 

 
 Road Maintenance 
 
 The Partnership shares a remote roadway in the northern portion of its service territory with 

GLPL.  The roadway is used for access to various generating stations and transmission 
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stations.  The road maintenance costs are shared between the Partnership and GLPL, with 
GLPL incurring the initial cost and passing a predetermined portion on to the Partnership.  
Payments for this road maintenance are made to GLPL as the costs are incurred by GLPL, 
with the total portion borne by the Partnership in 2010 equal to $152 (2009 - $41). 

 
(c) At December 31, 2010, the Partnership had an outstanding loan receivable from BIP in the 

amount of $2,200 (2009 - $nil).  The loan is short-term in nature and is non-interest bearing. 
   
(d) As a result, the following balances are receivable (payable) at December 31: 

 
2010 2009

Due from related parties  
Services provided to entities under common control 
Loan receivable from BIP 

$           247 
2,200 

$            203
-

        2,447           203
Due to related parties  
Services received from entities under common control          (205)              (279)

  
6.   PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
 

 2010 2009 
 Accumulated Net Book Net Book

Cost Depreciation Value Value
Land $         929 $             - $           929 $         929 
Buildings 15,559 5,123 10,436 10,672 
Transmission stations, towers and 
related fixtures 275,292 77,749 197,543 199,832 
Construction work in progress 6,234 - 6,234 3,968 
  $  298,014 $  82,872 $   215,142 $   215,401 

 
Cost and accumulated depreciation as at December 31, 2009 were $290,887 and $75,486, 
respectively. 

During 2010, the Partnership disposed of assets that had a net book value of $1 for net proceeds of 
$1 (2009 - $2 and $2, respectively). 

7.   TRANS SENIOR BONDS 

The Trans Senior Bonds (“the Bonds”) have a principal amount of $120,000 and are secured by a 
charge on transmission present and future real property assets of the Partnership.  On behalf of the 
Partnership, a company related through common control, Brookfield Renewable Power Inc. (“BRPI”), 
obtained a letter of credit in the amount of $3,960 to cover six months of interest payments on the 
Bonds. 
 
The fair market value of the Bonds is $138,198 based on current market prices for debt with similar 
terms (2009 - $131,951).  Amortization of deferred financing fees for the year related to the 
Partnership’s long-term debt is included in interest expense and totalled $152 (2009 - $144). 
 
The Bonds bear interest at the rate of 6.6%. Semi-annual payments of interest only are due and 
payable on June and December 16 each year until and including June 16, 2013.  Equal blended 
semi-annual payments of principal and interest on the Bonds will commence on December 16, 2013 
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and will continue until and including June 16, 2023. The Bonds will not be fully amortized by their 
maturity date. The remaining principal balance of the Bonds will be fully due on June 16, 2023. 
 

 2010 2009
Trans Senior Bonds $   120,000 $   120,000 
Less: Unamortized deferred financing fees (2,823) (2,975)

 $   117,177 $   117,025

 
8.   EFFECT OF RATE REGULATION 

 
The Partnership recorded the following regulatory assets and liabilities as at December 31: 
  

 2010 2009
Regulatory assets: 
Reorganization costs relating to the transfer of assets $              - $      1,041
Green energy and green economy deferred costs 1,104 -
Deferred litigation fees 1,661 -
Other regulatory assets 116 33
Less: current portion -  (358)
Long-term portion        $     2,881 $         716

  
Regulatory liability:  
Deferred rate impact accrual $      2,251 $      2,578
Aggregated approved liability disbursal 3,481 -
Deferred loss on disposal of transmission assets - 71
Wholesale metering services rebates - 122
Changes in tax legislation - 1,249
Less: current portion (1,482) (1,340)
Total        $    4,250 $      2,680

 
The Partnership operates in accordance with the regulations of the OEB. Regulatory assets and 
liabilities represent certain revenues earned or costs incurred in the current year or in prior years 
that have been or are expected to be recovered from customers upon approval from the OEB. In the 
absence of rate regulation, these balances would have been recorded as revenues or expenses in 
the statement of income and comprehensive income. 
  
Reorganization costs relating to the transfer of assets  
 

These reorganization costs were the result of the transfer of the Partnership’s assets from GLPL to 
the Partnership.  Legislation through the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998 requires the separation of 
transmission assets from generation assets; however, GLPL had an exemption to operate its 
transmission, distribution, and generation business within the same company until December 31, 
2008. The costs associated with the transfer of the Partnership’s assets were recorded as regulatory 
assets in 2009 and were subsequently approved for recovery in the OEB’s Decision and Order dated 
May 21, 2010.  The balance of the regulatory asset was transferred to the aggregated approved 
liability disbursal as an offset to various regulatory liability balances that were also approved for 
repayment to ratepayers. 
 
Green energy and green economy deferred costs 
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In a decision dated March 25, 2010, the OEB approved the establishment of a deferral account to 
record capital expenditures as well as operation, maintenance and administration expenses related 
to renewable generation connection, system planning, and infrastructure investment arising from the 
Green Energy and Green Economy Act, 2009.  The balance in this regulatory asset account 
represents the costs incurred that meet the definition of the costs approved to be recorded in this 
regulatory asset deferral account. The Partnership will include its request to recover the balance of 
this account in a future rate application filing to the OEB. 
 
Deferred litigation fees 
 
In accordance with the settlement agreement reached by the parties to the Partnership’s 2011-2012 
rate application, the Partnership has established a deferral account to capture professional fees and 
expenses associated with an outstanding claim in respect of a transmission project completed in 
2007.  In 2009, $1,474 relating to this balance was included within property, plant and equipment.  
As required by the settlement agreement this balance has been transferred to regulatory assets in 
2010.  The Partnership will include its request to recover the balance of this account in a future rate 
application filing to the OEB. 
 
Other regulatory assets 
 
Other regulatory assets are impacted by three drivers, as follows: 
 
(a) The Partnership incurred costs related to a study undertaken as a result of the settlement 

agreed upon in GLPT’s 2005-2006 transmission rate application.  The costs associated with the 
study were recorded as regulatory assets in 2009 and were subsequently approved for recovery 
in the OEB’s Decision and Order dated May 21, 2010.  The costs associated with the study were 
transferred to the aggregated approved liability disbursal as an offset to various regulatory 
liability balances that were also approved for repayment to ratepayers. 

 
(b) The Partnership incurred incremental administrative expenses related to International Financial 

Reporting Standards.  The OEB has approved a deferral account to track incremental 
administrative expenses for the purposes of future recovery.  The Partnership will include its 
request to recover this amount in its next rate application filing to the OEB. 

 
(c) The Partnership incurred incremental costs related to OEB fees that were above the level 

approved for recovery in 2010 rates.  These costs were approved to be deferred in a regulatory 
asset account in the OEB’s Decision and Order dated May 21, 2010. The Partnership will include 
its request to recover this amount in its next rate application filing to the OEB. 

 
Deferred rate impact accrual 
 
The deferred rate impact accrual (“DRIA”) account was used for incremental revenues being 
recovered through the 2005 rate application filed with the OEB.  On November 1, 2007, the OEB 
implemented a new uniform transmission rate as a result of the rate application filed by Hydro One 
Networks Inc.  This resulted in the termination of the over recovery of the DRIA.  At December 31, 
2009, the DRIA balance of $2,578 was payable to the Ontario transmission rate-payers.   
 
Offsetting the 2009 balance are accrual entries in 2010 that reflect GLPT’s revenue deficiency 
between the actual revenues that GLPT collects compared to the approved revenue requirement in 
2010.  In 2010, GLPT recorded a revenue deficiency of $327 as an offset to this account to reflect 
revenue that was earned but not collected.  The deficiency accrual methodology for 2010 was 
approved by the OEB in its Decision and Order dated August 31, 2010. 
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In its Decision and Order dated May 21, 2010, the OEB approved the disbursal of the net balance of 
the DRIA over a period of three years, beginning in 2011.  The total approved disbursal included in 
the uniform transmission rates effective January 1, 2011 is equal to $2,251. 
 
Aggregated approved liability disbursal 
 
In its decision and order dated May 21, 2010, the OEB approved the disbursal of various regulatory 
asset and liability balances.  The net balance of the approved regulatory accounts is included in the 
aggregate approved liability disbursal.  Of the net balance, $3,213 will be returned to rate payers 
over a five year period and $268 will be returned to rate payers over a three year period, both 
commencing in 2011. 
 
Deferred loss on disposal of transmission assets 
 
As prescribed by regulatory order, gains or losses on disposals of assets are recorded as a regulatory 
asset or liability subject to approval by the OEB. For the year ended December 31, 2005, GLPLTD 
incurred a loss on disposal of transmission assets of $8,246. This regulatory asset was recovered 
over a period of five years, which commenced on April 1, 2005, through rate increases. During 2009, 
the Partnership recovered the remaining $1,649, plus an additional $71 of the deferred loss.  The 
amount of $71 was transferred to the aggregated approved liability disbursal. 
 
Wholesale metering services rebates 
 
As prescribed by regulatory order, the rebates related to metering services were recorded as a 
regulatory asset.  The Partnership was responsible for paying the rebates and recording them in a 
regulatory asset deferral account.  As a result of a change in a management assumption in 2009, the 
Partnership reduced the balance of the deferral account by the total costs avoided as a result of no 
longer providing meter services between 2005 and 2009.  The 2009 balance of $122 was transferred 
to the aggregated approved liability disbursal. 
 
Changes in tax legislation 
 
This amount relates to differences that resulted from legislative changes to tax rates and rules in 
comparison to those rates and rules assumed in the Partnership’s most recently approved revenue 
requirement.  The purpose of capturing these amounts for future disbursal or recovery is to ensure 
that both ratepayers and regulated utilities are protected from changes in legislation that may affect 
the amount of taxes payable by a utility in any given year. 
 
Between 2005 and 2009, income and capital tax rates have declined, resulting in the Partnership 
collecting a surplus of revenue when compared to the actual tax expenses incurred.  As a result, the 
Partnership is required to return the excess funds to ratepayers.  The 2009 balance of $1,249 was 
transferred to the aggregated approved liability disbursal. 
 

9.    PENSION AND EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS 
 

The Partnership is part of a registered defined benefit, final pay pension plan and an unfunded non-
pension benefit plan (the “Plans”).  The Plans were transferred to the Partnership from GLPL on July 
1, 2009, and they are representative of the employees transferred from GLPL to the Partnership on 
the same date.  The consideration paid from GLPL to the Partnership as a result of the transfer was 
$156.  
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The non-pension plan includes benefits such as health and dental care, retirement bonuses and life 
insurance.  The obligation under these plans is determined periodically through the preparation of 
actuarial valuations.  The benefit plan contribution for the Partnership for 2010 was $755 (2009 - 
$298). The investment rate of return was 6.70% (2009 – 7.50%). The discount rate used was 
6.70% (2009 – 7.50%) with a rate of compensation increase of 3.50% (2009 – 3.50%). 
 
Certain amendments were made to the eligibility criteria for the non-pension plan effective January 
1, 2010.  The increase to the liability was $109, which is being amortized over 14 years. 
 
The Partnership also participates in a defined contribution pension plan provided to certain 
employees.  The Partnership contributes amounts based on the level of employee contributions for 
this plan.  
 
The Partnership’s defined benefit pension plan and post employment benefits information is 
provided in the following tables. 
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 2010 2009
 Defined Benefit

Pension Plan
Non-Pension
Benefits Plan

Defined Benefit 
Pension Plan 

Non-Pension
Benefits Plan

Weighted average assumptions  
Benefit obligation  
Discount rate 5.75% 5.75% 6.70% 6.70%
Rate of compensation increase 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50%
Initial health care trend rate - 7.00% - 7.07%
Ultimate trend rate - 4.43% - 4.43%
Year ultimate rate reached - 2029 - 2029
Benefit expense  
Discount rate 6.70% 6.70% 7.50% 7.50%
Long-term rate of return on plan assets 6.70% n/a 7.50% -
Rate of compensation increase 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50%
Initial health care trend rate - 7.07% - 7.18%
Ultimate trend rate - 4.43% - 4.43%
Year ultimate rate reached - 2029 - 2029
Accrued benefit obligations  
Balance, beginning of period $     12,290 $      2,587 $    10,820 $      1,762
Current service cost 191 78 69 27
Interest cost 820 182 405 85
Employee contributions 121 - 57 -
Plan amendments - 109 - -
Net benefit payments (694) (199) (313) (55)
Actuarial loss 1,709 543 1,252 768
Balance, end of year $     14,437 $     3,300 $    12,290 $      2,587
Fair value plan assets  
Balance, beginning of period $     11,730 $              - $    10,840  $             -
Employer contributions 556 199 243 55
Employee contributions 121 - 57 -
Actual return on plan assets 1,040 - 903 -
Benefits paid (694) (199) (313) (55)
Balance, end of year $     12,753 $              - $    11,730 $             -
Reconciliation of accrued benefit liability   
Plan (deficit) $    (1,684) $   (3,300) $       (560)  $    (2,587)
Unamortized transitional obligation 539 582 686 700
Unamortized past service costs - 101 - -
Unamortized net actuarial loss 2,902 592 1,461 50
Accrued benefit asset (liability) $      1,757 (2,025) $      1,587 $    (1,837)
Expense  
Current service costs $          191 $          78 $           69 $          27
Interest cost 820 182 405 85
Plan amendments - 109 - -
Actual return on plan assets (1,040) - (903) -
Actuarial loss 1,709 543 1,252 768
Costs arising in the year        1,680         912          823           880
Differences between costs arising in the period 
and costs recognized in the period in respect 
of: 

 

Actuarial loss (1,694) (543) (1,252) (768)
Return on plan assets 253 - 496 -
Plan amendments - (101) - -
Transitional obligation 147 118 74 59
Net expense $          386 $        386 $          141 $          171
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In 2010, the total employer expense for the Partnership’s defined contribution pension plan was 
$83 (2009 - $28). 

 
 Actuarial valuations 
 

Actuarial valuations for the Partnership’s plans are required every three years.  The most recent 
actuarial valuations for the pension and non-pension benefit plans were completed on July 1, 2009.  
The Partnership measures its accrued benefit obligations and the fair value of plan assets for 
accounting purposes as at December 31 of each year.  The valuations include an indexation of 
pension payments of 2.0% per year. The Partnership may choose to perform valuations for these 
plans prior to the earliest required dates. 
 

         Sensitivity analysis 
 
The Partnership’s sensitivity in the non-pension benefit plan to a 1% change in the health care cost 
trend rate, for the year ended December 31, 2010, is summarized as follows: 
 
 Benefit 

Obligation 
Benefit

Expense
Impact of a 1% increase in health care cost trend rate $      586  $        58  
Impact of a 1% decrease in health care cost trend rate $    (459) $      (45)

  
 Asset category 

 
The Partnership’s defined benefit pension plan asset allocations at December 31, by asset category 
are as follows: 

 
 2010 2009 
Equity securities 61% 61% 
Debt securities 39% 39% 
Total 100% 100% 

  
Cash payments 
 
All employer contributions were fully paid during the year and as such, no balance owing remains 
outstanding as at year-end. 
 

10.   STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
 

2010 2009
Accounts receivable $            (72) $         (138)
Prepaid expenses and other (1,413) (826)
Due from related parties (44) (203)
Pension asset and liability 18 250
Due to related parties (74) (1,801)
Accounts and other payables (12) 2,328
 $          (1,597) $        (390)

 
Capital asset additions totaling $1,674 have been excluded from the Statement of Cash Flows as 
they remain unpaid at year end.  During 2010, capital asset additions totaling $404 have been 
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included in the Statement of Cash Flows as they were accrued at December 31, 2009 and paid in 
2010. 

 
11.   INTEREST AND FINANCING FEES 
 

The net interest and financing fees recorded in the financial statements at December 31 are 
comprised as follows: 

 
2010 2009

Interest expense incurred $          7,920 $         7,920
Amortization of deferred financing fees 152 144
Other interest 70 (48)
Capitalized interest (208) (184)
 $          7,934  $         7,832

 
12.   INCOME TAXES 
 

The Partnership does not record income tax expenses as it is not subject to income taxation as a 
result of its formation as a limited partnership. 

 
13.   PARTNERSHIP UNITS 

 
The Partnership is authorized to issue an unlimited number of Class A and Class B partnership 
units, of which 2,019,998 Class A units and 2 Class B units were issued and outstanding as at 
December 31, 2010.  19,998 Class A units and 2 Class B units were issued and outstanding as at 
December 31, 2009.  

14. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 

The Partnership’s primary capital management objective is to ensure the sustainability of its capital 
to support continuing operations, meet its financial obligations, allow for growth opportunities and 
provide stable dividends to its partners.  The Partnership manages its capital to maintain an 
investment grade credit rating while providing its ultimate parent with a prudent use of leverage to 
enhance returns and ensure access to incremental borrowings needed to fund new growth 
initiatives. 

The Partnership manages its capital structure in accordance with changes in economic conditions.  
Generally, developments are funded with external borrowings.  In order to adjust the capital 
structure, the Partnership may elect to adjust the dividend amount paid to its partners, increase or 
reduce the equity participation in new and existing operations, adjust the level of capital spending 
or issue new partnership units. 

The Partnership manages its capital in order to maintain a debt to capitalization ratio below 75%.  
As at December 31, 2010, the ratio was 55% (2009 – 55%).  The table below presents the detail 
of the Partnership’s capitalization and the calculation of the ratio:   
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   2010 2009
Debt     
     Trans Senior Bonds   $     120,000 $     120,000 
     120,000    120,000 
     Partners’ equity  98,140 97,229
Total capitalization   $     218,140     $     217,229
Debt to capitalization   55% 55%

There has been no change in the Partnership’s approach to managing capital in the year. 

 
15. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Partnership classifies its financial assets and liabilities as outlined below: 

Cash is designated as a financial asset held-for-trading and is measured at fair value through net 
income at each period end. 

Accounts receivable as well as due from related parties are classified as loans and receivables, 
accounts and other payables, due to related parties, and Trans Senior Bonds are classified as other 
financial liabilities, and each are measured at fair value at inception and are subsequently 
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. 

The carrying value approximates fair value for the Partnership’s financial assets and liabilities, with 
the exception of long-term debt. 

The Partnership has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments: market 
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.  The Partnership’s management is responsible for determining the 
acceptable level of risk. 

Market Risk 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of financial assets or liabilities will 
fluctuate due to movements in market prices. 

Interest Rates: 
The Partnership’s long-term debt is subject to a fixed interest rate of 6.6%, payable semi-annually 
on June 16 and December 16.  As a result of having fixed rate debt, fluctuations in market interest 
rates are not expected to materially affect the Partnership’s cash flows.   
 
Credit Risk 

Credit risk arises from the potential for a counterparty to default on its contractual obligations and 
is limited to those contracts where the Partnership would incur a loss in replacing the defaulted 
transaction.  The Partnership’s financial instruments that are potentially exposed to credit risks are 
accounts receivable and due from related parties.  The Partnership actively manages its exposure 
to credit risk by assessing the ability of counterparties to fulfill their obligations under the related 
contracts prior to entering into such contracts, and continually monitors these exposures.  
 
The vast majority of accounts receivable transactions entered by the Partnership are with the 
Independent Electricity System Operator (“IESO”).  The IESO operates the provincial transmission 
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system, and is a reliable counterparty.  The quality of the Partnership’s counterparties mitigates 
the Partnership’s exposure to credit risk. 
 
Liquidity Risk 
 
Liquidity risk is the risk the Partnership cannot meet a demand for cash or fund an obligation when 
due.  Liquidity risk is mitigated by the Partnership’s cash and cash equivalent balances and through 
the use and management of amounts due from related parties.  The Partnership is subject to risk 
associated with debt financing, including the ability to refinance its debt at maturity.  This risk is 
mitigated by the long-term duration of the Partnership's debt secured by high quality assets. 

16. COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES AND GUARANTEES 

In the normal course of operations, the Partnership executes agreements that provide for 
indemnification and guarantees to third parties in transactions such as debt issuances.  The nature 
of substantially all of the indemnification undertakings prevents the Partnership from making a 
reasonable estimate of the maximum potential amount the Partnership could be required to pay 
third parties as the agreements do not specify a maximum amount and the amounts are dependent 
upon the outcome of future contingent events, the nature and likelihood of which cannot be 
determined at this time.  Historically, the Partnership has not made significant payments under 
such indemnification agreements. 

On behalf of the Partnership, BRPI obtained a letter of credit totalling $3,960 to cover six months 
of interest payments on the Trans Senior Bonds.  No amount has been drawn against this letter of 
credit. 

In the normal course of operations, the Partnership has committed as at December 31, 2010 to 
spend approximately $1,674 (2009 - $404) on capital projects in future years. 

The Partnership may, from time to time, be involved in legal proceedings, claims, and litigation that 
arise in the ordinary course of business which the Partnership believes would not reasonably be 
expected to have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the Partnership. 

There are no specified decommissioning costs relating to the Ontario transmission assets. The 
Partnership has a comprehensive repair and capital expenditure program to ensure that its 
transmission lines are maintained to optimum industry standards.  Replacement of the assets 
occurs in accordance with a long term capital plan and would involve typical costs of removal as 
part of that process.  In the circumstance where a portion of a line or other assets were removed 
completely, there may be some contractual obligations under private or crown easements or other 
land rights which require the transmission owner to reinstate the land to a certain standard, 
typically the shape it was prior to the construction of the transmission assets.  As well, certain 
environmental, land use and/or utility legislation, regulations and policy may apply in which we 
would have to comply with remediation requirements set by the government.  The requirements 
will typically depend on the specific property characteristics and what criteria the government 
determines to be appropriate to meet safety and environmental concerns.  These asset lives are 
indeterminate given their nature.  As the individual assets or components reach the end of their 
useful lives, they are retired and replaced.  Historically, certain asset components have been 
replaced a number of times, thus creating a perpetual asset with an indeterminate life.  As such, 
the retirement date for these lines cannot be reasonably estimated and therefore, the fair value of 
the associated liability cannot be determined at this time.  As a result, no liability has been accrued 
in these financial statements. 


